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THIS DOCUMENT AND ANY ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS ARE IMPORTANT AND REQUIRE YOUR IMMEDIATE
ATTENTION. If you are in any doubt about the contents of this document and/or the action you should take, you should
immediately consult your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other independent financial adviser duly
authorised under the FSMA if you are in the United Kingdom or, if not, you should immediately consult another
appropriately authorised independent professional adviser.

If you sell or transfer or have sold or otherwise transferred all of your Ordinary Shares in the Company, please send this document
immediately to the purchaser or transferee or to the stockbroker, bank manager or other agent through whom the sale or transfer
was effected for onward transmission to the purchaser or transferee except that such documents should not be distributed,
forwarded to or transmitted in or into the United States or any jurisdiction where to do so might constitute a violation of local
securities laws or regulations, including, but not limited to, any Excluded Territories. If you have sold or transferred only part of your
holding of Ordinary Shares you should immediately consult the stockbroker, bank manager or other agent through whom the sale or
transfer was effected.

This document, which comprises an AIM admission document, has been drawn up in accordance with the AIM Rules and has been
issued in connection with the proposed Admission. This document does not comprise a prospectus within the meaning of section 85
of the FSMA and does not constitute an offer of transferable securities to the public in the United Kingdom, within the meaning of
section 102B of the FSMA, and has not been approved or examined by and will not be filed with the Financial Conduct Authority,
London Stock Exchange or the UKLA. It has been drawn up in accordance with the AIM Rules and has been issued in connection
with the proposed Admission.

To the extent that information has been sourced from a third party, such information has been accurately reproduced and, as far as
the Directors are aware, no facts have been omitted which may render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading. In
connection with this document, no person is authorised to give any information or make any representation other than as set out in
this document.

Application will be made for all of the Ordinary Shares to be admitted to trading on AIM. It is expected that admission to AIM will
become effective, and that dealings in the Ordinary Shares will commence on 13 December 2017. Following Admission, the
Ordinary Shares will remain admitted to listing and trading on the ASX.

AIM is a market designed primarily for emerging or smaller companies to which a higher investment risk tends to be
attached than to larger or more established companies. AIM securities are not admitted to the official list of the United
Kingdom Listing Authority. A prospective investor should be aware of the risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after careful consideration and, if appropriate, consultation with an independent
financial adviser. Each AIM company is required pursuant to the AIM Rules for Companies to have a nominated adviser.
The nominated adviser is required to make a declaration to the London Stock Exchange on Admission in the form set out
in Schedule Two to the AIM Rules for Nominated Advisers. The London Stock Exchange has not itself examined or
approved the contents of this document.

The Directors, whose names are set out on page 5 of this document, and the Company accept responsibility for the information
contained in this document and for compliance with the AIM Rules. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors and the
Company (each of whom has taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this document
is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

Range Resources Limited

(Incorporated and registered in Australia with Australian Business Number 88 002 522 009)

RANGE

Admission to trading on AIM

NOMINATED ADVISER AND BROKER

CANTOR

CANTOR FITZGERALD EUROPE

Cantor Fitzgerald, which is authorised in the United Kingdom by the FCA, and is acting as nominated adviser and broker for the
purposes of the AIM Rules exclusively for the Company and no one else in connection with the matters described herein and will
not be responsible to any other person for providing the protections afforded to customers of Cantor Fitzgerald, or for advising any
other person on the contents of this document or any matter referred to herein. The responsibilities of Cantor Fitzgerald, as
nominated adviser, are owed solely to the London Stock Exchange and are not owed to the Company or to any Director or any
other person and accordingly no duty of care is accepted in relation to them. No representation or warranty, express or implied, is
made by Cantor Fitzgerald as to, and no liability whatsoever is accepted by Cantor Fitzgerald in respect of, any of the contents of
this document (without limiting the statutory rights of any person to whom this document is issued).

You should read the whole of this document and any documents incorporated by reference prior to making any
investment decision. Your attention is drawn, in particular, to Part | “Information relating to the Company” and Part I
“Risk Factors” for a more complete discussion of the factors that could affect the Company’s future performance and the
industry in which it will operate.

This document does not constitute an offer to issue or sell, or the solicitation of any offer to subscribe for or buy, any of the
Ordinary Shares in any jurisdiction where it may be unlawful to make such offer or solicitation. The distribution of this document in
certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law and therefore persons into whose possession this document comes should inform
themselves about and observe such restrictions. Any such distribution could result in a violation of the laws of such jurisdictions. In
particular, this document is not for distribution into the United States, Canada, Japan or the Republic of South Africa and is not for
distribution directly or indirectly to any US Person (within the meaning of Regulation S of the US Securities Act). The Ordinary
Shares have not been and will not be registered under the US Securities Act, or under the securities legislation of, or with any



securities regulatory authority of, any state or other jurisdiction of the United States or under the applicable securities laws of any
province or territory of Canada or under the securities laws of Japan or the Republic of South Africa.

Copies of this document will be available free of charge during normal business hours on any day (except Saturdays, Sundays and
public holidays) from the registered office of the Company and at the offices of Cantor Fitzgerald at One Churchill Place, Canary
Wharf, London, E14 5RB from the date of this document and for a period of at least one month from Admission.

Nothing in this document is intended, or is to be construed, as a profit forecast or to be interpreted to mean that earnings per
Ordinary Share for the current or future financial years will necessarily match or exceed the historical published earnings per
Ordinary Share.

Forward looking statements

Certain statements in this document are “forward looking statements” including without limitation, statements containing the words
“believes”, “anticipates”, “expects”, “target”’, “estimate”, “will”, “may”, “should”, “would”, “intend” and similar expressions. These
forward looking statements are not based on historical facts but rather on the Directors’ expectations regarding the Company’s future
growth, results of operations, performance, future capital and other expenditures (including the amount, nature and sources of
funding thereof), planned expansion and business prospects and opportunities. Such forward looking statements reflect the Directors’
current beliefs and assumptions and are based on information currently available to the Directors. Forward looking statements
involve significant known and unknown risks and uncertainties. A number of factors could cause actual results to differ materially
from the results discussed in the forward looking statements, including risks associated with vulnerability to general economic market
and business conditions, competition, environmental and other regulatory changes or actions by governmental authorities, the
availability of capital, reliance on key personnel, uninsured and underinsured losses and other factors, many of which are beyond
control of the Company. Although the forward looking statements contained in this document are based upon what the Directors
believe to be reasonable assumptions, the Company cannot assure investors that actual results will be consistent with these forward
looking statements.

Market and financial information

The data, statistics and information and other statements in this document regarding the markets in which the Company operates, or
its market position therein, is based on the Company’s records or are taken or derived from statistical data and information derived
from the sources described in this document.

In relation to these sources, such information has been accurately reproduced from the published information, and, so far as the
Directors are aware and are able to ascertain from the information provided by the suppliers of these sources, no facts have been
omitted which would render such information inaccurate or misleading.

Unless otherwise indicated, financial information in this document, including any extracts from the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company (and separately RRDSL) for the years ended 30 June 2015, 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2017, which
are publically available on the Company’s website www.rangeresources.co.uk, and the notes to those financial statements, have
been prepared in accordance with IFRS. Various figures and percentages in tables in this document have been rounded and
accordingly may not total.

Certain financial data has also been rounded. As a result of this rounding, the totals of data presented in this document may vary
slightly from the actual arithmetical totals of such data.

All times referred to in this document are, unless otherwise stated, references to London time.

United States securities law

The Ordinary Shares have not been and will not be registered under the US Securities Act or securities laws of any US state or
other jurisdiction and will not be offered or sold within the United States except pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction
not subject to, the registration requirements of the US Securities Act and such other applicable laws.

The Ordinary Shares are generally only being offered and sold outside the United States to persons who are not US Persons (within
the meaning of Regulation S of the US Securities Act) in transactions complying with Regulation S of the US Securities Act, which
provides an exemption from the requirement to register the offer and sale under the US Securities Act.

The Ordinary Shares have not been approved or disapproved by the US Securities and Exchange Commission or by any US state
securities commission or authority, nor has any such US authority passed on the accuracy or adequacy of this document. Any
representation to the contrary is a criminal offence.

An investment in the Company carries risk. Prospective investors should read the whole of this document and should
carefully consider whether an investment in Ordinary Shares is suitable for them in light of their circumstances and
financial resources. Your attention is particularly drawn to Part Il of this document which sets out certain risk factors
relating to any investment in the Company. All statements regarding the Company’s business, financial position and
prospects should be viewed in the light of the risk factors set out in Part Il of this document. The contents of the
Company’s Website, including any websites available from hyperlinks on the Company’s Website, do not form part of this
document.

Rounding

Certain figures included in this document have been subjected to rounding adjustments. Accordingly, figures for the same category
presented in different tables may vary slightly and figures shown as totals in certain tables may not be an arithmetic aggregation of
the figures that precede them.

All times referred to in this document are, unless otherwise stated, references to London time.

THE LONDON STOCK EXCHANGE HAS NOT EXAMINED OR APPROVED THIS DOCUMENT. THIS DOCUMENT HAS NOT
BEEN APPROVED BY AUTHORITIES IN THE UNITED KINGDOM, AUSTRALIA OR ANY OTHER JURISDICTION.

This document is dated 7 December 2017.
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Shares on AIM

Notes:
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be notified to the Shareholders by an announcement on a Regulatory Information Service. References to all times are to London
time.

ADMISSION STATISTICS

Number of Ordinary Shares in issue 7,595,830,782
Percentage of Ordinary Shares not in public hands at Admission 42%
AlM ticker RRL
ISIN for the Ordinary Shares AUO00000RRS3
SEDOL for the Ordinary Shares B28QX48
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DEFINITIONS

The following words and expressions shall have the following meanings in this document unless

the context otherwise requires:
“A$” or “Australian Dollars”

“Admission”

EiAIM’!
“AIM Rules”

“AIM Rules for Companies”

“AIM Rules for Nominated
Advisers”

“Annual General Meeting”

“ASIC”

“ASX”

“ASX Official List”
“ASX Group”

“ASX Listing Rules”

“ASX Settlement”

“ASX Settlement Operating
Rules”

“ASX Settlement Transfer”’

“Audit and Risk Committee”
“Australia”

“Australian Corporations Act”

“BIR”

“Board”

“C$”

“Cantor Fitzgerald”

“certificated” or ‘“certificated
form”

“the Company’ or ‘“Range”

“Company’s Website”
“Constitution”

Australian dollars, the legal currency of Australia

the admission of the issued Ordinary Shares to trading on AIM
becoming effective in accordance with Rule 6 of the AIM Rules for
Companies

the market of that name operated by the London Stock Exchange

the AIM Rules for Companies and the AIM Rules for Nominated
Advisers, as applicable

the AIM Rules for Companies published by the London Stock
Exchange, as amended from time to time

the AIM Rules for Nominated Advisers published by the London
Stock Exchange, as amended from time to time

the general meeting of the Company held at RSM Corporate
Australia Pty Ltd, Level 13, 60 Castlereagh Street, Sydney, NSW
2000 at 10:00 a.m (AEDT) on 30 November 2017 for the purpose
of considering the Resolutions

Australian Securities and Investments Commission
the Australian securities exchange operated by the ASX Group
the Official List of the ASX

ASX Limited (Australian Business Number 008 624 691) and its
subsidiaries

the Listing rules of the ASX and any other rules of the ASX which
are applicable while the Company is admitted to the ASX Official
List

ASX Settlement Pty Ltd (Australian Business Number
008504532)

the operating rules of ASX Settlement

a transfer of quoted securities or quoted rights effected: (i) in
accordance with the ASX Settlement Operating Rules; or (ii)
substantially in accordance with the ASX Settlement Operating
Rules and determined by ASX Settlement to be an effective
transfer

the audit and risk committee of the Board

the Commonwealth of Australia

the Corporations Act 2001 of the Commonwealth of Australia
the Board of Inland Revenue of Trinidad and Tobago

the board of Directors

Canadian dollars, the legal currency of Canada

Cantor Fitzgerald Europe, nominated adviser and broker to the
Company

is the description of a share or other security which is not in
uncertificated form (that is not in CREST)

Range Resources Limited, a company incorporated in Australia
with Australian Business Number 88 002 522 009

WWWw.rangeresources.co.uk

the constitution of the Company
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“Convertible Note Agreement”

“Convertible Notes”

“CREST”

“Deep PSC”
“Depositary Deed”

“Depositary Interests”

“DI Holders”
“Directors”

“EU” or “European Union”

“Euroclear UK & Ireland”

“Excluded Territories”

“Financial Conduct Authority”
or “FCA”

“FSMA”

“Group”

“Heads of Agreement”
“Hengtai”

“Hengtai Acquisition”
“Hengtai Put Option”
“Hengtai SHA”
“Hengtai SPA”

“HMRC”

the convertible note deed between the Company and LandOcean
dated 28 October 2016 (as amended and restated by a deed of
amendment and restatement dated 15 November 2016)

the US$20,000,000 unlisted unsecured convertible notes issued
to LandOcean on 28 November 2016 under the terms of the
Convertible Note Agreement having an 8% per annum interest
rate and a face value of US$1.00 each

the relevant system in respect of which Euroclear UK & Ireland is
the operator (as defined in the Uncertificated Securities
Regulations) in accordance with which securities may be held
or transferred in uncertificated form

the production sharing contract dated 7 July 2009 relating to the
Guayaguayare Deep block

the deed made by the UK Depositary in favour of the DI Holders
dated 14 September 2007

the depositary interests representing Ordinary Shares which will
be electronically listed for trading on AIM on Admission and
issued by the Company’s UK Depositary which holds legal title to
the underlying Ordinary Shares

holders of Depositary Interests

the directors of the Company whose names are set out on page 5
of this document

has the meaning given to it in Article 299(1) of the Establishing
the European Economic Community Treaty as amended by,
among others, the Treaty on European Unity (the Maastricht
Treaty), the Treaty of Amsterdam and the Treaty of Lisbon

Euroclear UK & lIreland Limited, a company incorporated in
England and Wales

any territory or jurisdiction where local laws or regulations may
result in significant risk of civil, regulatory or criminal exposure if
information concerning the Admission is sent or made available to
Shareholders in that territory or jurisdiction

the Financial Conduct Authority of the United Kingdom, the
statutory regulator under FSMA responsible for the regulation of
the United Kingdom financial services industry

the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 of the UK as
amended from time to time

the Company and its subsidiaries

the heads of agreement entered into by SOCA Petroleum and
LandOcean Petroleum on 11 March 2017 in relation to the
Acquisition

PT Hengtai Weiye Oil and Gas, a company incorporated in
Indonesia

the acquisition of 60% of the issued share capital of Hengtai by
Range HK which completed on 30 October 2017

the put option agreement dated 7 August 2017 between Jiang
Jinrong and Range HK

the shareholders’ agreement dated 7 August 2017 between Jiang
Jinrong, Ms Selvia, Mr Wang Yuguo, Range HK and Hengtai

the share sale and purchase agreement dated 7 August 2017
between Range HK and Jiang Jinrong

Her Majesty’s Revenue & Customs

8



“IFRS”

“IMSA”

“IMSA Amendment Agreement”

“IMSA Deed of Novation and
Indemnity”’

“IMSA First Letter Agreement”

“IMSA Second Letter
Agreements”

“IMSA Third Letter Agreement”

“IMSA Supplementary
Agreement”’

“IMSA Waiver Deed”

“Indonesia”’
“Indonesian CPR”’

“Indonesian Rupiah” or “IDR”
“Issued Share Capital”

“LandOcean’

“LandOcean Group”
“LandOcean Petroleum”

“LandOcean RRDSL Loan
Agreement”

“LEAP”

“London Stock Exchange”
“Lukar”

International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted for use in
the European Union

the integrated master services agreement dated 29 May 2014
between the Company and LandOcean, as amended by the IMSA
Amendment Agreement and IMSA Supplementary Agreement

an amendment agreement dated 9 December 2014 between the
Company and LandOcean in relation to the IMSA

the deed of novation and indemnity dated 31 July 2017 among the
Company, LandOcean, RRDSL, Range Trinidad, Chengdu
Western UnionPetro Engineering Technology, PST Services
Corp. and Range Shallow relating to the IMSA Supplementary
Agreement and certain purchase orders under the IMSA

the letter agreement dated 27 April 2017 in relation to the IMSA
among the Company, LandOcean, RRDSL, Range Trinidad,
Chengdu Western UnionPetro Engineering Technology, PST
Services Corp. and Range Shallow as amended by a letter
agreement among the Company, LandOcean, RRDSL, Range
Trinidad, Chengdu Western UnionPetro Engineering Technology,
PST Services Corp. and Range Shallow dated 19 July 2017

together the (i) letter agreement dated 21 and 23 August 2017
between the Company and LandOcean; and (i) a letter
agreement dated 24 August 2017 between the Company and
LandOcean, in each case relating to the IMSA

a letter agreement dated 3 September 2017 between the
Company and LandOcean in relation to the IMSA

a supplementary agreement dated 17 June 2016 between the
Company and LandOcean in relation to the IMSA and certain
related purchase orders

a letter agreement dated 28 October 2016 among the Company,
LandOcean, RRDSL, Range Trinidad and Range Shallow under
which an outstanding amount of US$20,000,000 due by the
Group under, inter alia, the IMSA was waived in consideration for
the issue of the Convertible Notes to LandOcean

the Republic of Indonesia

the competent person’s report and covering letter addressed to
the Company and Cantor Fitzgerald produced in accordance with
the AIM Rules by LEAP in respect of the Perlak field in Indonesia
and published by the Company on 29 November 2017, a copy of
which is contained in Part VI of this document

Indonesian rupiah, the legal currency of Indonesia

the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
document and as at Admission, comprising the Ordinary Shares

LandOcean Energy Services Co. Ltd, a company incorporated in
the People’s Republic of China

LandOcean and its subsidiaries

LandOcean Petroleum Corp. Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of LandOcean, incorporated in Hong Kong

the loan agreement dated 30 November 2017 between RRDSL
and LandOcean

LEAP Energy Partners Sdn. Bhd, a company incorporated in
Malaysia

London Stock Exchange plc
PT Lubuk Kawai Raya, a company incorporated in Indonesia

9



“Market Abuse Regulation”
E‘MEEI,!

“Notice of Annual General
Meeting”

“Official List”

“Options”

“Ordinary Shares”
“Petroleum Act”
“Petroleum Regulations”
“Petrotrin”

“Range Deep”

“Range HK”

“Range Shallow”
“Range Trinidad”
“Regulatory Information

Service”

“Remuneration and Nomination
Committee™

‘““Reserves Committee”

‘““Resolutions”

“Rockflow”

“RRDSL”

“RRDSL Acquisition”

“RRDSL Acquisition
Agreement”’

“RRDSL Chengdu Loan
Agreement”

“RRDSL EPT Loan Agreement”

“RRDSL GPN Loan Agreement”

“RRDSL LandOcean Petroleum
Loan Agreement”

the Market Abuse Regulation (EU) No 596/2014
Ministry of Energy and Energy Industries in Trinidad and Tobago

the notice convening the Annual General

26 October 2017
the Official List of the UK Listing Authority

Meeting dated

the existing options over Ordinary Shares granted to certain
persons under individual agreements

ordinary shares of no par value each in the capital of the
Company

the Petroleum Act of the Laws of the Republic of Trinidad and
Tobago, an act to consolidate certain enactments about
petroleum, offshore installations and submarine pipelines

the regulations made under the Petroleum Act

Petroleum Company of Trinidad and Tobago Limited, a state
owned oil company in Trinidad and Tobago

Range Resources GY Deep Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, incorporated in Trinidad and Tobago

means Range Resources HK Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, incorporated in Hong Kong

Range Resources GY Shallow Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, incorporated in Trinidad and Tobago

Range Resources Trinidad Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, incorporated in Trinidad and Tobago

any channel recognized as a channel for the dissemination of
information as defined in the glossary of terms in the AIM Rules

the remuneration and nomination committee of the Board

the reserves committee of the Board

the resolutions set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting,
including inter alia, in respect of approval of the RRDSL
Acquisition

Rockflow Resources Limited, a company incorporated in England

Range Resources Drilling Services Limited,
incorporated in Trinidad and Tobago

a company

the acquisition of RRDSL by SOCA Petroleum which completed
on 30 November 2017

the sale and purchase agreement dated 27 April 2017 between
SOCA Petroleum and LandOcean Petroleum in relation to
RRDSL

the loan agreement dated 30 November 2017 between Chengdu
Western Union Petro Engineering Technology Co Ltd and
RRDSL

the loan agreement dated 30 November 2017 between Energy
Prospecting Technology USA Inc and RRDSL

the loan agreement dated 30 November 2017 between GPN
Petroleum Technology (Beijing) Limited and RRDSL

the loan agreement dated 30 November 2017 between
LandOcean Petroleum and RRDSL
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“RRDSL Loan Agreements”

“Sincep RRDSL Loan
Agreement”’

“Shallow PSC”

“Shareholders”’

“SOCA Petroleum”
“SOGL”
E‘SPC!!

“State”

“Trinidad”

“Trinidad and Tobago”
“Trinidadian CPR”

“Trinidad Minister of Energy”

“TT$” or “Trinidad and Tobago
Dollars”

“UK Companies Act”

“UK Corporate Governance
Code”

“UK Depositary”

“UK Listing Authority” or
“UKLA”

“uncertificated’” or “in
uncertificated form”

“Uncertificated Securities
Regulations”

“United Kingdom” or “UK”
“United States” or “US”

“US$” or “US Dollars”
“US Securities Act”

“VAT”
“g£” or “British Pound Sterling”

together the RRDSL Chengdu Loan Agreement, RRDSL EPT
Loan Agreement, RRDSL GPN Loan Agreement, LandOcean
RRDSL Loan Agreement, RRDSL LandOcean Petroleum Loan
Agreement and Sincep RRDSL Loan Agreement

the loan agreement dated 30 November 2017 between RRDSL
and Sincep Special Equipment Co Limited

the production sharing contract dated 7 July 2009 relating to the
Guayaguayare Shallow block

holders of Ordinary Shares (including DI Holders)

SOCA Petroleum Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
incorporated in Barbados

Strait Oil and Gas Limited, a company incorporated under the
laws of Gibraltar

PT Aceh Timur Kawai Energi, a company incorporated in
Indonesia

the Republic of Trinidad and Tobago
one of the islands making up Trinidad and Tobago
the Republic of Trinidad and Tobago

competent persons report dated 10 November 2017 and covering
letter addressed to the Company and Cantor Fitzgerald, a copy of
which is contained in Part V of this document

the Minister of Energy and Energy Industries of Trinidad and
Tobago

Trinidad and Tobago dollars, the legal currency of Trinidad and
Tobago

the Companies Act 2006 of the UK, as amended from time to time

the UK Corporate Governance Code as published by the
Financial Reporting Counsel, as the same may be varied or
amended

Computershare Investor Services plc, a company incorporated in
England and Wales

the United Kingdom Listing Authority of the FCA, acting in its
capacity as the competent authority for the purposes of Part VI of
the FSMA

a share or shares recorded on the register of members of the
Company as being held in uncertificated form in CREST,
entitlement to which, by virtue of the Uncertificated Securities
Regulations, may be transferred by means of CREST

the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001 (S1/2001/3755) of
the United Kingdom

the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland

the United States of America, its territories and possessions, any
state in the United States, the District of Columbia and other
areas subiject to its jurisdiction

United States dollars, the legal currency of the United States

the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended from time
to time

value added tax

British pound sterling, the legal currency of the United Kingdom
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EXCHANGE RATES

All references to US$ are to US Dollars, TT$ to Trinidad and Tobago Dollars, A$ to Australian
Dollars, C$ to Canadian Dollars and IDR is to Indonesian Rupiah. Unless otherwise stated, the
rates of exchange of US$1.00 = TT$6.74, US$1.00 = A$1.32, US$1.00 = £0.74, US$1.00 = C$1.26
and US$1.00 = IDR13,546 have been used for the purpose of this document.
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TECHNICAL ABBREVIATIONS AND CONVENTIONS

In this document, the crude oil and natural gas abbreviations set forth below have the following

meanings:
“q10”
“oE”
Yol
“q1p”
“op?

E‘3P!!
“2D seismic”’

“3D seismic”’

“appraisal”

“appraisal well”

“block”

“boe”

“boepd”

“bopd”

“bopm”

“Bscf”

“bwpd’

““‘commercial discovery”

“Contingent Resources”

“decommission” or
“decommissioning”

“discovery”

“drilling campaign”
“dry well”

“exploration”

denotes a Low estimate scenario of Contingent Resources
denotes a Mid or Best estimate scenario of Contingent Resources
denotes a High estimate scenario of Contingent Resources
Proved Reserves. Denotes a Low estimate scenario of Reserves

Proved plus Probable Reserves. Denotes a Mid or Best estimate
scenario of Reserves

Proved plus Probable plus Possible Reserves. Denotes a High
estimate scenario of Reserves

seismic data acquired in a single traverse or series of traverses.
2D seismic data provides single cross sections.

seismic data acquired as multiple, closely spaced traverses. 3D
seismic data typically provides a more detailed and accurate
image of the subsurface than 2D seismic

the phase of petroleum operations immediately following a
successful discovery. Appraisal is carried out to determine size,
production rate and the most efficient development of a field

a well drilled as part of an appraisal of a field

term commonly used to describe areas over which there is a
petroleum or production licence

barrels of oil equivalent. Converting gas volumes to oil equivalent
is customarily done on the basis of the nominal heating content or
calorific value of the fuel. Before aggregating, the gas volumes
must be converted to the same temperature and pressure.
Common industry gas conversion factors usually range between
1 barrel of oil equivalent = 5,600 scf of gas to 6,000 scf of gas

barrels of oil equivalent per day
barrels of oil per day

barrels of oil per month

billions of standard cubic feet
barrels of water per day

discovery of oil and gas which the Company determines to be
commercially viable for appraisal and development

those quantities of petroleum estimated, as of a given date, to be
potentially recoverable from known accumulations by application
of development projects, but which are not currently considered to
be commercially recoverable due to one or more contingencies

the process or the procure by which the facilities and the
infrastructure related to the production of hydrocarbon from an oil
field are demobilsed and abandoned

an exploration well that has encountered oil and gas for the first
time in a structure

a period of time in which drilling activities are performed

a well which does not encounter hydrocarbons in economically
producible quantities

the phase of operations which covers the search for oil or gas by
carrying out detailed geological and geophysical surveys followed
up where appropriate by exploratory drilling
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“exploration well”

“farmout”

“geophysical”

“hydrocarbon

“licence”

“licence area”
“mmbbls”’
“MMstb”’
“natural gas”

“olp”

“offshore”
“onshore”
‘“operator”’

“petroleum”

‘““Reserves”’

““Resources’”
i‘scf!!

a well in an unproven area or prospect, may also be known as a
“wildcat well”

a term used to describe when a company sells a portion of the
acreage in a block to another company, usually in return for
consideration and for the buying company taking on a portion of
the selling company’s work committments

geophysical exploration is concerned with measuring the earth’s
physical properties to delineate structure, rock type and fluid
content — these measurements include electrical, seismic, gravity
and magnetics

a compound containing only the elements hydrogen and carbon.
May exist as a solid, a liquid or a gas. The term describes any
combination of oil, gas and/or condensate

an exclusive right to explore for petroleum, usually granted by a
national governing body

the area covered by a licence
million barrels
million stock-tank barrels of oil

gas, predominantly methane, occurring naturally, and often found
in association with crude petroleum

oil in place
the geographical area that lies seaward of the coastline
the geographical area that lies landward of the coastline

the company that has legal authority to drill wells and undertake
production of oil and gas. The operator is often part of a
consortium and acts on behalf of this consortium

a generic name for oil and gas, including crude oil, natural gas
liquids, natural gas and their products

those quantities of petroleum which are anticipated to be
commercially recoverable by application of development
projects to known accumulations from a given date forward
under defined conditions, reference should be made to the full
PRMS definitions for the complete definitions and guidelines

Contingent resources, unless otherwise specified

standard cubic feet measured at 14.7 pounds per square inch and
60° F
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PART |

INFORMATION RELATING TO THE COMPANY

1. INTRODUCTION

Range is an oil and gas company listed on the ASX. The Company, through its subsidiary
companies, is active in Trinidad and Tobago where it has oil and gas exploration, development and
production operations. The Company, through its subsidiary SOCA Petroleum, recently acquired an
oil services business, RRDSL, which has its assets in Trinidad. The Company, through its
subsidiary Range HK, also holds an indirect interest in the Perlak field in Indonesia, and believes
that it holds further interests in non-core oil and gas projects in Georgia and Guatemala.

2. COMPANY STRUCTURE AND HISTORY

The Company is incorporated in Australia and its Australian Business Number is 88 002 522 009.
The Company was formed and operates under the Australian Corporations Act. The Company is
the holding company of the Group. Further details of the Group are set out in paragraph 3 of
Part X of this document.

The Company was initially registered as Nubola Pty Ltd in New South Wales, Australia as an
Australian proprietary company on 17 September 1982 and subsequently changed its name to
Range Resources Ltd and its status to an Australian public limited company on 8 March 1984.

The Company has been listed on the ASX since 24 January 1985. The Company was listed on
AIM in the period 23 October 2007 to 14 September 2017. On 2 May 2017, Range announced that
it had signed the RRDSL Acquisition Agreement for the RRDSL Acquisition, an oilfield services
business based in Trinidad. As completion of the acquisition would have constituted a reverse
takeover of the Company under Rule 14 of the AIM Rules for Companies, the Ordinary Shares
were suspended from trading on AIM on 13 March 2017 pending the publication of an admission
document on the enlarged group. On the same date, the Company also requested a voluntary
suspension of trading in its Ordinary Shares on the ASX. As the Company was not in a position to
publish an admission document within the suspension period, on 14 September 2017, trading in
the Company’s Ordinary Shares on AIM was cancelled pursuant to Rule 41 of the AIM Rules for
Companies. On 15 September 2017 the Company resumed trading in its Ordinary Shares on ASX.

The RRDSL Acquisition completed on 30 November 2017. Further details of the terms and
conditions of the RRDSL Acquisition Agreement are set out in paragraph 10.1.4 of Part X of this
document.

On 8 August 2017, Range HK announced that it had signed the Hengtai SPA in relation to the
Hengtai Acquisition and on 30 October 2017 the Company announced that the Hengtai Acquisition
completed on that day. The Group holds a 60% interest in the issued share capital of Hengtai and,
through this holding, the Group indirectly holds a 23% interest (which will increase to 42% upon
completion of the minimum work programme) in the Perlak field in Indonesia. Further details on the
terms of the acquisition documents and key terms thereof are set out in paragraphs 10.1.10 to
10.1.12 of Part X below.

The Company is now seeking admission of its Ordinary Shares to trading on AIM.

15



3. OIL AND GAS INTERESTS

The oil and gas interests of the Group are set out in the table below:

Lease / Licence
Field' Location Working Interest Type Operator
Morne Diablo Trinidad 100% Farmout Agreement Range Trinidad
South Quarry Trinidad 100% Farmout Agreement Range Trinidad
Beach Marcelle? Trinidad 100% Incremental Range Trinidad
Production Services
Contract
St. Mary’s Trinidad 80% Exploration and Range Trinidad
Production Licence
Perlak Field® Indonesia 23% Cooperation SPC
Operations
Agreement

Notes:

1. The Group also held an 80% interest in the Deep PSC and a 65% interest in the Shallow PSC. Each of the Deep PSC and

Shallow PSC expired in 2015. Renewal is subject to final government approvals. Please refer to the section entitled “Trinidad
Exploration, Development and Production Operations” in paragraph 4.2 below for further details.
The Company also believes that the Group holds a 45% interest in Block VIA in Georgia. Please refer to the section entitled
“Georgia” in paragraph 6 below for further details. The Company also believes that the Group holds an interest in Block 1-2005
hydrocarbons exploration and exploitation contract in Guatemala. Please refer to the section entitled “Guatemala” in
paragraph 6 below for further details.

2. Range’s interest in the Beach Marcelle field is operated under the terms of an incremental production service contract entitling
Range to a defined portion of the future revenue stream of the Beach Marcelle field. No oil and gas reserves are owned by
Range. Further details are set out in paragraph 1 of Part IX of this document.

3. Range’s indirect interest in the Perlak field is held through its 60% shareholding in Hengtai, which holds a 78% interest in Lukar
which in turn holds a 49% interests in SPC. Further details of the cooperation operations agreement relating to the Perlak field
to which SPC is party are set out in paragraph 5 of Part IX of this document.

4. TRINIDAD OPERATIONS

4.1 Geological Overview

The Company’s assets in Trinidad are all located in the Southern Basin geological province.
Trinidad lies on the South American tectonic plate and falls within the Orinoco Fold Belt which is a
prolific oil producer in adjacent Venezuela.

The Morne Diablo, South Quarry and Beach Marcelle licences are all within a complex thrust belt
in the Southern Basin with a surface expression known as the Southern Range.

This Southern Range, which contains numerous oil seeps, stretches from west to east forming the
south coast of the island. Fluvial-deltaic sediments, ranging to tidal and wave-dominated,
characterize the shallower producing zones in the Morne Diablo and South Quarry fields. Due to
growth faulting in the Beach Marcelle area, these sands are thicker and better developed there.
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Regional Stratigraphy
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The Pliocene-aged Cruse sands can be segmented into three members; the Lower, Middle and
Upper Cruse. The Lower Cruse is productive in this area of the Southern Basin but is largely
unexplored. Above the Lower Cruse, the Middle Cruse is widespread and is the main producer in
this area. The Upper Cruse consists of developed sands that offer the possibility of more localized
production.

The Pliocene-aged Forest sands represent the shallowest area and are comprised of two main oil
producing members. The Lower Forest ranges from 250 to 300 metres deep and the Shallow
Forest ranges from 100 to 150 metres deep. These sands are ubiquitous and are the shallowest,
most accessible targets. In the Beach Marcelle area, the Forest equivalent is called the Gros
Morne formation.

Structural Interpretation

In Trinidad, thousands of feet of deltaic sediments and pre-deltaic sediments from the Orinoco
River were deposited and subsequently folded and faulted into oil traps, as the Caribbean and
South American plates collided obliquely and moved past each other in the Miocene and Pliocene.

Most of the fields are simple four-way dip structural rollover anticlines often associated with thrust
and wrench faults. Within these significant structural closures multiple stacked oil bearing horizons
have been created and in some areas, anticlines are overturned, thereby creating repeated
reservoir intervals.
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Figure: Trinidad — Depositional Setting
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Sedimentation in southern Trinidad has been punctuated by repeated phases of crustal shortening,
associated with the general strike slip motion of the Caribbean Plate to the east in relation to
South America. This has occurred particularly in and after the middle Miocene when the Caribbean
Plate impinged on the Trinidadian area of the South American continental margin. Compressive
stress to the southeast led to major thin skinned thrusting throughout the Southern Basin with
notable structures and hydrocarbon fields in the core areas where the Company has its licences.

4.2 Trinidad Exploration, Development and Production Operations

The Company, via its subsidiary Range Trinidad, holds 100% interests in three onshore production
licences in Trinidad — Morne Diablo, South Quarry and Beach Marcelle. The Group’s oil and gas
production in Trinidad for the quarter ending 30 September 2017 was 53,120 barrels (an average
of 577 bopd). All three fields have been producing for over 75 years and contain over 600 wells, of
which around 180 are currently producing from zones ranging in depth from 400 feet to 4,000 feet.
Beach Marcelle and Morne Diablo have ongoing waterflood projects. The Company also holds an
80% interest in the exploration and production licence relating to the St Mary’s block in Trinidad.

The Company, via its subsidiary companies, also held an 80% interest in the Deep PSC and a
65% interest in Shallow PSC, both of which expired in July 2015. The Company has requested
extensions to (or renewals of) the Deep PSC and Shallow PSC on revised terms. Following
ongoing discussions with the MEEI, the Company believes that an extension/renewal will be
granted if the first shallow commitment well in the Shallow PSC (being the Canari North well) has
been drilled and completed. The Company has no immediate plans to drill the Canari North well.
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Trinidad Licence Interests

A summary of the Group’s licence interests in oil and gas fields in Trinidad is given in the table
below.

Group’s Licence Licence
Asset Operator Interest Status Expiry Area Comment
Beach Marcelle Range Trinidad | 100% Development 31/01/2020 1,586.16 Renewal and extension will
hectares be sought during 2018/
2019
Morne Diablo Range Trinidad | 100% Development 31/12/2021 3,508.5 Further 5 year renewal
hectares possible
South Quarry Range Trinidad | 100% Development 31/12/2021 1,444.9 Further 5 year renewal
hectares possible
St. Mary’s Range Trinidad | 80% Exploration 31/10/2020 15,281 Minimum work programme
hectares not fully met —
amendments proposed

Source: Trinidadian CPR contained in Part V of this document

Further information on the key terms of the Group’s licences (including a summary of the minimum
work obligations) and farm-out agreements in Trinidad are set out in Part IX of this document.

Location Map of the Trinidad Licences
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4.2.1 Waterflood Activity

The principal operational focus of the Group in Trinidad has recently been on implementing a
secondary recovery waterflood programme at its Beach Marcelle and Morne Diablo fields.
LandOcean Group has been providing Range Trinidad with various services on the waterflood
programme under the IMSA and certain purchase orders since 2014. The Company believes that
full implementation of the waterflood projects, which account for the majority of the reserves of the
Group, are important to its production growth in Trinidad. The Company estimates that
approximately 18% of the original OIIP on three waterflood projects (Beach Marcelle South East
area, Morne Diablo and South Quarry) has been recovered by primary depletion. The waterflooding
projects are expected by the Company to add another 11% to this primary depletion recovery.

Beach Marcelle Waterflood

During the three month period from 30 June 2017 to 30 September 2017, production from the
waterflood programme at the South East area of the Beach Marcelle field continued at an average
rate of 90 bopd, with a water injection rate of approximately 900 bwpd. In order to increase the
water injection rate, the Company signed agreements with Petrotrin on 16 March 2017 to use
produced water from their operations, which will increase the water injection rate by a further 700
bwpd. The Company has completed the construction of a pipeline to connect to Petrotrin’s water
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supply and the first transfer of water occurred on 13 November 2017. Transfer of Petrotrin’s water
has been temporarily suspended, pending installation of a new pump.

Morne Diablo Waterflood

During the three month period from 30 June 2017 to 30 September 2017, production from the
waterflood programme at the Morne Diablo field continued at an average rate of approximately
30 bopd with a water injection rate of 180 bwpd. The Company has completed injectivity tests on
parts of the block and continues to analyse the results. Once this analysis has been completed,
the Company intends to commence work to increase water supply, including construction of a new
water pipeline, and gathering and transfer stations.

Other Waterflood Projects

The Company has been undertaking initial preparatory work (including injectivity testing) on other
parts of its acreage, and is planning to expand its waterflood programme to other areas of the
Beach Marcelle, South Quarry and Morne Diablo fields, with initial work expected to commence
towards the end of 2018 and into 2019.

4.2.2 Development Drilling Activity

The Company has undertaken a limited development drilling programme during 2017 with the first
of these wells having been drilled during September 2017 on the Morne Diablo field. The well
(QUN 161) was drilled to a depth of 2,300 feet. Production testing on the well has been
completed. Since perforation, the well has been flowing at an average rate of 21 bopd.

A second development well from 2017 drilling programme, GY 684 well located at the Beach
Marcelle field was successfully drilled to a total depth of 4,300 feet during November. Wireline
logging of the well has been subsequently completed, with results showing that three target zones
were penetrated. The Company is in the process of submitting relevant government approvals to
undertake perforation and production testing of the well.

The Company has a significant inventory of 117 identified development well locations which it
expects to drill over the next five years.

4.2.3 Exploration Activity

The Company continues its discussions with MEEI with regards to seeking extension or, if
appropriate, a renewal of each of the Deep PSC and Shallow PSC. The Company believes that an
extension/renewal will be granted if the first shallow commitment well in the Shallow PSC (being
the Canari North well) has been drilled and completed. The Company has no immediate plans to
drill the Canari North well.

On the St. Mary’s onshore block, the Company has completed integrated geology and well
placement studies on part of the block, which borders the Morne Diablo field.

4.2.4 Reserves and Contingent Resources

A summary of the oil reserves and contingent resources, both gross and attributable to the Group’s
interests in its oil properties in Trinidad is given in the tables below:

SUMMARY OF DETERMINISTIC GROSS AND NET OIL RESERVES AS AT 30" June 2017’

Oil Reserves Gross (MMstb) Net Attributable Range (MMstb)
Asset Operator Low (1P) Mid (2P) High (3P) Low (1P) Mid (2P) High (3P)
Beach Marcelle Range Resources 5.867 9.524 13.275 5.867 9.524 13.275
Trinidad Limited
Morne Diablo Range Resources 3.261 5.014 7.419 3.261 5.014 7.419
Trinidad Limited
South Quarry Range Resources 0.854 1.500 2.208 0.854 1.500 2.208
Trinidad Limited
Total 9.982 16.038 22.901 9.982 16.038 22.901

Source: Trinidadian CPR contained in Part V of this document
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SUMMARY OF DETERMINISTIC GROSS AND NET OIL CONTINGENT RESOURCES
AS AT 30" June 2017

Contingent Oil Gross Net Attributable Range Project
Resources? (MMstb) (MMstb) Maturity®
Asset Operator Low Mid High Low Mid High
(1) (2C) (3C) (1C) (2C) (3C)
Beach Range Resources Trinidad 3.121 5.716 8.130 3.121 5.716 8.130 Development
Marcelle Limited pending*
Beach Range Resources Trinidad 0.273 0.273 0.273 0.273 0.273 0.273 Development
Marcelle Limited on hold®
Morne Diablo Range Resources Trinidad 1.099 1.710 6.509 1.099 1.710 6.509 Development
Limited on hold
South Quarry Range Resources Trinidad 0.065 0.319 0.528 0.065 0.319 0.528 Development
Limited on hold
Total 3.121 5.716 8.130 3.121 5.716 8.130
(Pending)
Total (On 1.437 2.302 7.310 1.437 2.302 7.310
Hold)

Source: Trinidadian CPR contained in Part V of this document
1 To year end 2031

2 Rockflow has not estimated any ‘Chance of Development’ or ‘Risk Factor’; these depend largely on non-technical matters,
such as reaching agreement with other parties; Rockflow does not have all the information that would be required to make a
quantitive estimate and therefore considers it would be inappropriate to do so.

Moreover the volumes reported here are ‘unrisked, in the sense that no adjustment has been made for the risk that the project
may not go ahead in the form envisaged, or may not go ahead at all.

3 SPE - Petroleum Resources Management System, page 9 section 2.1.3.1. ‘Thus Projects on Known Accumulations that are
actively being studied, undergoing feasibility review and with planned near-term operations (e.g., drilling) are placed in
Contingent Resources Development Pending while those that do not meet this test are placed into either Contingent
Resources On Hold, Unclarified, or Not Viable

4 Development pending — currently within 5 year plan
5 Development on hold — currently outside of 5 year plan

A net present value of the Reserves of the Company is given in the Trinidadian CPR in Part V of
this document. Further information on the reserves and resources of the Group in Trinidad is
contained in the Trinidadian CPR which is included in Part V of this document. A summary of the
Group’s key licences and agreements is contained in Part IX of this document.

4.3 Oil Services Operations

On 13 March 2017, the Company announced that it had signed Heads of Agreement with
LandOcean Petroleum in relation to the acquisition of 100% of the issued share capital of RRDSL
for US$5,500,000 in cash. The signing of the RRDSL Acquisition Agreement was announced on
2 May 2017. RRSDL is an oilfield services business based in Trinidad with a fleet of 13 rigs. The
RRDSL Acquisition completed on 30 November 2017. Further details of the terms and conditions
of the RRDSL Acquisition Agreement are set out in paragraph 10.1.4 of Part X of this document.

RRDSL was incorporated in Trinidad and Tobago on 1 May 2003 and provides oilfield services.
RRDSL, which was previously owned by Range, was sold to LandOcean Petroleum in May 2015 to
allow Range to focus on its upstream operations at a time of depressed oil prices. RRDSL has
continued to provide oilfield services to Range Trinidad since that time under the IMSA and related
purchase orders. A summary of the IMSA and related purchase orders under which RRDSL has
derived its revenues since the acquisition by LandOcean Petroleum is set out in paragraph 10.1.1
of Part X of this document. RRDSL operates from Range Trinidad’s office premises for which
RRDSL pays a monthly fee.

Since the date of acquisition, LandOcean Group has injected significant capital of over
US$25,000,000 into RRDSL, including for the purchase of four new drilling rigs, cementing
equipment, and for implementing production rig upgrades. A major streamlining of the overhead
structure of RRDSL has been completed over the last two years. RRDSL currently employs 194
staff (which includes 19 staff on secondment from Range Trinidad and 6 contractors).

RRDSL has assets which are capable of supporting a wide variety of oilfield operations. The
assets include:

° Six onshore drilling rigs ranging in drilling capacities between 200 meters and 4,000 meters;

° Seven workover and swabbing rigs; and
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° Cementing equipment, tracked carriers, tanker trucks, storage tanks, a full workshop and pipe
yard, and other related facilities and equipment.

The four newer drilling rigs were used to complete Range Trinidad’'s five-well drilling campaign
during 2016 (16,678 feet drilled) with drilling operations completed efficiently and safely. RRDSL'’s
production rigs are currently used in Range Trinidad’s waterflood and workover operations and by
other third parties in Trinidad.

A summary of the rigs owned by RRDSL is given in the table below:

Summary information on the RRDSL rigs

Capacity Period of most
Category Rig number Model (meters) recent use Current status
1 SR-60 200 February 2015 Down for repairs
8 IDECO 433 2000 March 2015 Down for repairs
16 Qz225/6-K 4000 July 2016 Repairs underway
Drilling Rig to power
17 ZJ-20 2000 December 2016 Operational
18 ZJ-15 1500 Currently in use Operational
19 XJ100 — 10X8 F 1000 Currently in use Operational
carrier (for workover
operations)
Period of most
Category Rig number Model recent use Current status
2 Cooper 250 Currently in use Operational
3 MST 800 Currently in use Operational
Workover Rig 4 MST 1500 August 2016 Down for repairs
6 DIR-308 Currently in use Operational
9 Mack Carrier Currently in use Operational
11 Ford VZ110378 Currently in use Operational
Swabbing Rigs 12 Mack VG6M 112 Currently in use Operational

Financial Information on RRDSL

Since the acquisition by LandOcean Petroleum, Range Trinidad has substantially been RRDSL'’s
only customer. The revenues of RRDSL since the acquisition therefore essentially reflect its
financial relationship with Range through the IMSA and related purchase orders. Historic financial
information on RRDSL is contained in Section B of Part Ill of this document.

5. INDONESIAN OPERATIONS
5.1 Perlak Field

On 8 August 2017, Range HK announced that it had signed the Hengtai SPA in relation to the
Hengtai Acquisition and on 30 October 2017, the Company announced that the Hengtai Acquisition
completed on that day. The consideration payable for the Hengtai Acquisition was US$3,200,000.
The Group holds a 60% interest in the issued share capital of Hengtai and, through this holding,
the Group indirectly holds a 23% interest (which will increase to 42% upon completion of the
minimum work programme) in the Perlak field in Indonesia.

Further details on the terms of the acquisition documents and key terms thereof are set out in
paragraphs 10.1.10 to 10.1.12 of Part X below.

5.1.1 Overview

The Perlak field is located in the established hydrocarbon province of Aceh in the Northeast
Sumatran basin and covers an area of around 10 km? It lies on-trend with many producing
hydrocarbon fields, including the Arun field.

The Perlak field was produced primarily in the period up to the early 1940s from the crestal part of
the structure. Over 300 wells have been drilled to date, with 249 of those put into production. The
Perlak field produced approximately 47 mmbbls from 1899 to 1942 from very shallow depths of
less than 1,000 meters (3,300 feet). The average recovery factor of the Perlak field to date is
estimated at 17.5%.
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The Perlak field was shut-in during World War Il and there has been limited activity carried out
since that time, mainly by smaller local operators. Thirteen wells had been drilled on the field since
the 1970s. Two of the more recent wells were drilled and put into production in May 2011. The
wells produced at initial rates of 140 bopd and 110 bopd. The wells have since been shut-in and
there is no current production from the field.

The mature operating environment offers low cost development opportunities with potentially short
lead times to production. In addition, the Company believes that substantial potential exists in the
areas of the Perlak field that have not yet been developed.

The Perlak field benefits from 2D and 3D seismic which has been obtained by previous operators
and will be evaluated as part of the upcoming work programme.

Location map of the Perlak field

F
®

Source: Figure 2-1 of the Indonesian CPR contained in Part VI of this document

5.1.2 Work Programme

The agreed minimum work programme covers a 3-year period from 27 September 2017 to
27 September 2020, and involves geological and geophysical studies, workovers of existing wells,
and the drilling of one well. The Company has identified four low-cost workover opportunities of
existing wells. The Company will be evaluating the potential to expand its workover programme
beyond these four wells to expedite its work programme.

The overall objective of the work programme is to firm up a field development plan, in order to
produce additional reserves across the Perlak field and fully exploit the potential resources.

Range’s share of the cost of the minimum work programme is US$2,280,000. The Perlak field will
be operated by a local company, SPC.

5.2 Contingent Resources

The Contingent Resources attributable to Range’s indirect interest in the Perlak field are shown in
the table below:

Current Net Remaining recoverable resources Operator

Low (1C) Mid (2C) High (3C)
Associated Gas (Bscf) 1.7 10.9 411 SPC
Oil (MMstb) 0.9 3.1 18.4 SPC

Source: Indonesian CPR contained in Part VI of this document

Note: Range’s indirect interest in the Perlak field is held through its 60% shareholding in Hengtai, which holds a 78% interest in
Lukar which in turn holds a 49% interest in SPC. Further details of the cooperation operations agreement relating to the Perlak field
to which SPC is party are set out in paragraph 5 of Part IX of this document.
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Further information on the Perlak field is contained in the Indonesian CPR which is included in
Part VI of this document.

6. NON CORE ASSETS

Georgia

Range believes that it holds an indirect interest in the production sharing contract dated 29 March
2007 over Block VIA (the “Georgia PSC”) in Georgia through its 45% shareholding in SOGL. On
3 April 2017, the Government of Georgia represented by the LEPL State Agency of Oil and Gas of
the Ministry of Energy of Georgia (the “Agency”), announced an open international tender on
Block VIA in Georgia. Range believes that the Georgia PSC remains valid and in good standing
and that the purported relicensing of the block by the Agency would be a breach of the Georgia
PSC. Further background is set out in paragraph 1.17 of Part Il of this document below.

Guatemala

Range believes that it holds an indirect interest in the hydrocarbons exploration and exploitation
contract relating to Block 1-2005 covering the Atzam and Tortugas fields in Guatemala, through its
shareholding of between 10-20% in Latin American Resources Ltd (“LAR”). Despite the contractual
arrangements in place, Range has not been able to validly confirm its equity ownership in LAR and
does not hold any share certificates or other evidence of a shareholding in LAR. During 2017,
Range has continued to engage with LAR with an intention to agree a mutually beneficial
arrangement to restructure Range’s interest in LAR and to accelerate production growth. Range
has not yet been able to reach an agreement with LAR. Range will continue to seek an acceptable
resolution to this investment.

7. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Historical financial information on: (i) the Group (excluding RRDSL) is set out in Section A of Part IlI
of this document; (ii) RRDSL is set out in Section B of Part Il of this document; and (iii) the Group
(excluding RRDSL) is set out in Section C of Part Il of this document.

8. STRENGTHS OF THE GROUP
The Directors believe that the strengths of the Group are its:

° scope to exploit the potential growth opportunities in the Trinidad oil services market and to
expand its oil services business internationally;

e  scope to use RRDSL to lower the operating costs for its oil and gas exploration, development
and production operations in Trinidad;

° scope for production growth through the implementation of the waterflood programme at
Beach Marcelle and Morne Diablo;

° balanced portfolio of exploration, development and production assets; and

° balance sheet flexibility, with US$17,254,360 of cash on the balance sheet as at 30 June
2017 and no requirement to repay amounts outstanding to LandOcean until 28 November
2019 (being the Maturity Date of the Convertible Notes).

9. STRATEGY OF THE GROUP
The strategy of the Group is to:

° establish RRDSL as a profitable oilfield services company, providing onshore operations both
to Range and to other counterparties in Trinidad and internationally. Range will aim to take
further steps to reduce costs, improve drilling efficiency, secure contracts and diversify the
customer base of RRDSL;

° optimise the Trinidad assets by continuing to focus on the waterflood projects, development
drilling and low cost workover operations to achieve production and reserves growth;

o implement the minimum work programme commitment in Indonesia to increase reserves and
production;

° build an asset base demonstrating significant production, reserves and cashflows, whilst
maintaining further growth potential through selective exploration;

° continue to evolve through strong technical strategic partnerships;
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° pursue growth opportunities through the acquisition of new oil and gas assets; and
° maintain financial strength, flexibility and stringent cost control.

10. CURRENT TRADING AND PROSPECTS FOR THE GROUP

The Company announced its annual results for the twelve month period ending 30 June 2017 on
2 October 2017. These annual results are contained in Section A of Part Ill of this document.

The Company announced its quarterly activities report for the three month period ending
30 September 2017 as published on 31 October 2017 (of which Appendix 5B is contained in
Section C of Part Ill of this document).

The Group completed the Hengtai Acquisition on 30 October 2017, and completed the RRDSL
Acquisition on 30 November 2017.

The Group intends to fund ongoing expenditure on the waterflood projects and other operations
from existing cash resources, revenues generated from operations and other sources of financing
as required. The Group expects to generate revenues from both its oil and gas production
operations and from the activities of its oil services business.

Following completion of the RRDSL Acquisition on 30 November 2017, the Group will no longer
benefit from the existing credit terms from LandOcean Group with respect to its oilfield activities in
Trinidad under the IMSA. The IMSA will remain in place and the Group has negotiated new credit
terms with LandOcean pursuant to the IMSA First Letter Agreement in terms of which:

e the payment due date for all approved invoices (and any accrued interest) issued under the
IMSA and certain related purchase orders which are outstanding at the date of the IMSA First
Letter Agreement will be the third anniversary of the effective date of the IMSA First Letter
Agreement;

° the payment due date for all invoices (and any accrued interest) issued under the IMSA or
certain related purchase orders after the effective date of the IMSA First Letter Agreement will
be the third anniversary of the date of approval of such invoice; and

° the interest rate for all outstanding approved invoices issued under each of the IMSA and
certain related purchase orders is 6% per annum.

On 31 July 2017, the parties to the IMSA First Letter Agreement entered into the IMSA Deed of
Novation and Indemnity. Under the IMSA Deed of Novation and Indemnity, the rights, benefits,
obligations and liabilities of each entitiy within the Group under purchase orders no. 2-8 (inclusive)
and the IMSA Supplementary Agreement were transferred to the Company and the rights, benefits,
obligations and liabilities of each LandOcean Group entity under purchase orders no. 2-8
(inclusive) and the IMSA Supplementary Agreement were transferred to LandOcean. Accordingly,
all amounts payable by members of the Group to members of the LandOcean Group under these
arrangements are now payable directly by the Company to LandOcean.

Pursuant to the IMSA Third Letter Agreement, the Company and LandOcean agreed that (i) the
Company is continuing to progress with the waterflood and other oilfield projects in Trinidad; (ii)
SOCA Petroleum has agreed to acquire RRDSL from LandOcean Petroleum; (iii) the IMSA remains
effective between Range and LandOcean and that a new purchase order could be established
under which LandOcean would provide services (including services as a project manager) for the
Company for its oilfield operations in Trinidad; and (iv) the payment terms for services provided
under a new purchase order would be no less than 720 days for any invoices issued.

As at 6 December 2017 (being the last practicable date prior to the publication of this document),
the total amount outstanding by the Company to LandOcean under the IMSA and related purchase
orders was US$40,215,637.

Further details on the IMSA, the IMSA First Letter Agreement, IMSA Second Letter Agreements
and IMSA Third Letter Agreement are set out in paragraph 10.1.2 of Part X of this document.

11. CONVERTIBLE NOTE AGREEMENT WITH LANDOCEAN

As announced on 31 October 2016, Range entered into the Convertible Note Agreement with
LandOcean on 28 October 2016 for the issuance of a US$20,000,000 convertible note by Range.
Under the Convertible Note Agreement, LandOcean subscribed for US$20,000,000 of unlisted
unsecured Convertible Notes with an annual interest rate of 8% which have a face value of
US$1.00 each. The Convertible Notes are redeemable by LandOcean after three years of issue
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(the “Maturity Date”) or earlier if a redemption event occurs (such as non-payment of annual
interest payments). Subject to converting at least US$10,000,000 of Convertible Notes (the
“Minimum Conversion Amount”), LandOcean may elect to convert the Convertible Notes into
Ordinary Shares at a conversion price of £0.0088 per Ordinary Share (the “Conversion Price”) at
any time prior to the Maturity Date. Range also has the option of redeeming the Convertible Notes
for cash at any time prior to the Maturity Date. Range must also pay yearly interest instalments, on
each anniversary of the issue date of the Convertible Notes, in cash. The first annual interest
instalment was due on 28 November 2017 but at the request of LandOcean it has not yet been
paid. Range anticipates that this instalment will be paid during December 2017.

The Convertible Notes were issued on 28 November 2016 conditional on shareholder approval,
which was obtained on 7 February 2017. Pursuant to the IMSA Waiver Deed executed by, inter
alia, the Company and LandOcean, LandOcean agreed to waive its entitlement to US$20,000,000
of the accrued fees in exchange for the issue of the Convertible Notes. The proceeds from the
Convertible Notes were utilised solely to replace a portion of the outstanding payable balance due
to LandOcean Group under the terms of the IMSA and the IMSA Waiver Deed.

Further information on the Convertible Note Agreement is set out in paragraph 10.1.3 of Part X of
this document.

12. OVERVIEW OF TRINIDAD

The islands of Trinidad and Tobago are the southernmost islands in the Caribbean and are located
between the Atlantic Ocean and the Caribbean Sea, northeast of Venezuela. The southern tip of
the island lies 11 kilometers from the Venezuelan mainland, while the island of Tobago lies
approximately 30 kilometers northeast of Trinidad.

Trinidad is the Caribbean’s largest producer of oil and natural gas and has a long history of oil
production with cumulative production over the last 100 years totaling over 3 billion barrels of oil.
According to the June 2017 BP Statistical Energy Survey, Trinidad had proved oil reserves of
0.2 billion barrels, and proved gas reserves of 0.3 trillion cubic meters as at 31 December 2016
and produced an average of 96,000 barrels of crude oil per day in 2016. Gas production in 2016
was 34.5 billion cubic meters. The country has developed significant infrastructure in support of the
energy industry and currently is the world’s sixth largest liquid natural gas exporter and the largest
liquid natural gas exporter to the United States. In addition to the state-owned Pointe-a-Pierre oil
refinery, which has over 165,000 barrels per day of distillation capacity, the country has one of the
largest natural gas processing facilities in the Western Hemisphere (with a processing capacity of
almost two billion cubic feet per day and an output capacity of 70,000 barrels per day of natural
gas liquids). In addition to Pointe-a-Pierre providing an export terminal for oil, Trinidad also has a
methanol export facility at Point Lisas and a liquefied natural gas and natural gas liquids export
facility at Point Fortin. The petroleum and petrochemical industries accounted for approximately
37% of Trinidad and Tobago’s gross domestic product in 2015. Major energy companies such as
BP, Repsol and Shell operate in the country, as do smaller companies such as Touchstone
Exploration Inc, Columbus Energy Resources plc and Trinity Exploration and Production plc.

An overview of the oil and gas legal and regulatory framework in Trinidad and Tobago is included
in Part VII of this document.

13. OVERVIEW OF INDONESIA

Indonesia is an archipelago comprising approximately 17,508 islands covering some 1.9 million
km?, located in Southeast Asia and Oceania. It comprises 34 provinces and shares land borders
with Papua New Guinea, East Timor, and Malaysia. Other neighbouring countries include Australia,
Singapore, Philippines, Palau, and the Indian territory of the Andaman and Nicobar Islands. The
capital city is Jakarta, located on the western end of the island of Java.

Indonesia is a democratic republic with an elected legislature and president and is a founding
member of Association of Southeast Asian Nations. The country is a polyglot nation with an
estimated population of over 260 million people and is the world’s fourth most populous country. It
is the most populated country in Southeast Asia.

Indonesia is a member of the G-20 group of major economies and ranked as the world’s 16th
largest economy with an estimated Gross Domestic Product (“GDP”) of US$930 billion in 2016.
The country has seen a resurgence since the Asian financial crisis in 1997, averaging GDP growth
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of 5.4% per annum from 2011 to 2016. The country is now seen as an emerging and vibrant
democracy, with a growing economy, and as a growing regional power.

Indonesia’s oil and gas industry is a vital part of the economy making a material contribution to
total state income tax revenues. At the end of 2016, Indonesia had proved oil reserves of 3.3 billion
barrels, and proved gas reserves of 2.9 trillion cubic metres. In 2016, oil production was 881,000
bopd, and gas production was 69.7 billion cubic metres. Many of the largest oil and gas companies
such as BP plc, Chevron Corporation, Exxon Mobil Corporation and Total S.A. operate in
Indonesia.

An overview of the oil and gas legal and regulatory framework in Indonesia is included in Part VIII
of this document.

14. INFORMATION ON THE DIRECTORS, AND SENIOR MANAGERS
Directors
Zhiwei Gu (aged 35) — Non-Executive Chairman

Zhiwei Gu is an experienced corporate lawyer, who has worked with numerous companies seeking
listings on various international stock markets, including the Toronto Stock Exchange and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. He is currently a partner of Dentons, one of the largest global law firms.
Mr Gu has participated in several venture capital and private equity investment cases by various
funds such as London Asia Fund, Warburg Pincus, Korea Development Bank, China Venture
Investment Co., and China Cinda AMC. During his time with China National Gold Group Corp.,
Mr Gu was in charge of mineral resource merger and acquisition activities. Mr Gu holds a LL.B.
from the Jilin University in China; a LL.M. from the Northeast University in China; and a Master of
Applied Finance from the Macquarie University in Australia. Mr Gu is a qualified lawyer and
securities practitioner in China.

Yan Liu (aged 44) — Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Yan Liu has over 20 years of accounting and corporate advisory experience in China and Australia.
Until December 2014, Mr Liu was the chief financial officer of China Rerun Chemical Group
Limited, a China-based lubricant oil company. Previously, Mr Liu was also a partner of Agile
Partners, the financial advisory company based in China and the Financial Controller at Legalwise
Seminars Pty in Australia. He also spent 8 years at Chinatex Corporation where he worked in
project management positions. Mr Liu holds a Bachelor degree in Economics from the Central
University of Finance and Economics, China, and a Masters degree in Commerce from the
University of New South Wales, Australia.

Lubing Liu (aged 45) — Non-Executive Director

Lubing Liu has over 20 years of global experience in petroleum exploration, development,
production, joint venture operations and new ventures. He is currently an independent consultant to
Melbana Energy Limited (formerly MEO Australia Limited, an ASX-listed company). Prior to that, he
held various subsurface leader roles, including Chief Reservoir Engineer with Melbana Energy
Limited, Vice President of Exploration and Petroleum Technology with Sinopec East Puffin Pty Ltd,
and other international exploration and production and energy service companies including
ConocoPhillips, CNOOC, Woodside, RPS and Senergy. Mr Liu has extensive waterflooding
experience having worked at the Penglai oilfield in China, the Chinguetti oilfield in Mauritania and
Block 95 in Peru. Mr Liu holds a BSc in Petroleum Engineering from the Southwest Petroleum
University, China. He is a Member of the Society of Petroleum Engineers.

Dr Yi Zeng (aged 62) — Non-Executive Director

Dr Yi Zeng has over 30 years of experience in the oil and gas and mining industries. Dr Zeng has
held various technical and research positions with global companies including BHP Billiton and
Santos Asia Pacific. Dr Zeng holds a PhD in Geophysics from the Victoria University of Wellington,
New Zealand, an MSc in Applied Geophysics and a BSc in Geophysical Exploration from the
Chengdu University of Technology, China.

Juan Wang (aged 35) — Non-Executive Director

Juan Wang was previously the President of Energy Prospecting Technology USA, Inc. and
LandOcean Energy Canada Ltd. where she was responsible for overall management work for the
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subsidiary companies of LandOcean in Houston and Calgary. Previously, she was also an
investment manager and director at Anterra Energy Inc. responsible for Chinese investor liaisons
and a manager of corporate mergers and acquisitions at LandOcean. Ms Wang has a commercial
banking background having previously worked for Deutsche Bank and Bank of East Asia.

Senior Managers

Nicholas Beattie (aged 44) — Chief Financial Officer and Joint Company Secretary

Nick Beattie has over 20 years of experience in finance working with a range of international
banks. Most recently he was a Managing Director in the BNP Paribas Upstream Oil and Gas team
in London where he was responsible for leading the bank relationships with UK-focused
independent exploration and production companies. Nick has approximately ten years of experience
specifically financing the exploration and production sector and whilst at BNP Paribas, he
structured and led numerous reserve based loans, development financings and other debt facilities.
Prior to working with BNP Paribas, Nick worked as a director within the oil and gas finance team
at Fortis Bank covering Europe, Middle East and Africa and in a variety of roles with National
Australia Bank Group. Nick is an Associate Member of the Association of Corporate Treasurers, a
Member of the Chartered Institute for Securities and Investment and a Fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Bankers in Scotland.

Sara Kelly (aged 35) — Joint Company Secretary

Sara Kelly is an experienced company secretary and corporate lawyer with over 13 years’
experience. Sara has comprehensive knowledge of and experience in administering regulatory
frameworks and processes in a listed company environment and practiced as a corporate lawyer
specialising in acquisitions, takeovers and capital raisings and listing of companies on ASX and
AIM. Sara has acted as the company secretary of a number of ASX-listed companies. Sara is a
partner at Edwards Mac Scovell Legal, a boutique Western Australian legal practice based in
Perth.

Dr Douglas Field (aged 65) — Chief Petroleum Engineer

Dr Douglas Field is a petroleum and reservoir engineer with over 30 years of international
exploration and production experience. Since 2003, he has held a number of engineering and
business development posts at Tullow Oil plc, and from 2003-2007 was Group Engineering
Manager where he was responsible for Tullow’s petroleum, reservoir, well services, production and
facilities engineers, and from 2007-2012 Business Unit Manager for Tullow’s activities in North and
North West Africa. Prior to this, he worked in technical leadership positions for LASMO Grand
Maghreb Ltd, Monument Oil and Gas plc, Centrica plc and BHP Petroleum Ltd. His experience
includes running field and production operations in onshore Libya, Iran, Algeria, Angola and the
North Sea. Dr Field holds a PhD in Organic Chemistry from the University of Leeds. He is a
Member of the Society of Petroleum Engineers.

Lijun Xiu (aged 53) — Vice President of Operations and Production

Lijun Xiu has a long and distinguished geological career of over 30 years working for the Research
Institute of Petroleum Exploration & Development (a division of China National Petroleum
Corporation) where most recently he was a Deputy Chief Geologist for one of the largest oilfields
in Songliao Basin in China. Mr Xiu has extensive experience in oilfield exploration and
development planning, drilling design, research on geological conditions for oil and gas
accumulations and target selection, evaluation of the oil reservoir properties, evaluation of well
logging, and assessment of hydrocarbon reserves. Mr Xiu holds a Bachelor degree in Geological
Prospecting from the Northeast Petroleum University in China. He also holds a number of
professional titles including Reserves Evaluation Specialist from the Ministry of Land and
Resources of the People’s Republic of China. Mr Xiu has published more than 20 research papers
in domestic and international academic journals. Mr Xiu is a Member of the Society of Petroleum
Engineers.

15. EMPLOYEES

The Board considers that the capacity to recruit, retain, develop and integrate staff into the Group
is fundamental to executing its strategy. As at the date of this document, excluding the Non-
Executive Directors, the Group has 210 employees.
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16. COMPETENT PERSON’S REPORTS

Your attention is drawn to the full text of the Trinidadian CPR which is set out in Part V of this
document and the Indonesian CPR which is set out in Part VI of this document.

17. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board recognises the importance of sound corporate governance commensurate with the size
and nature of the Company and the interests of its Shareholders. The Company has adopted a
corporate governance framework which it considers to be suitable given the size, history and
strategy of the Group and consistent with the Principles of Good Corporate Governance and Best
Practice Recommendations (Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations 3rd Edition)
issued by the ASX Corporate Governance Council.

As an AlM-listed company, the Company will not be required to comply with the UK Corporate
Governance Code and at this time, given the current nature and scope of the Company’s
operations, it does not comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code. However, the Board is
committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance.

The Board comprises five Directors, one of whom is an executive Director and four of whom are
non-executive Directors. The Board schedules Board meetings approximately four times per year
plus such other ad hoc meetings as are deemed necessary by the Board to deal with urgent
business matters. All the necessary information is supplied to the Directors on a timely basis to
enable them to discharge their duties effectively. At Board meetings, there is a formal schedule of
matters reserved for consideration by the Board and other matters are delegated to Board
committees. The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the Company and in particular for
formulating, reviewing and approving the Company’s strategy, budget, major items of capital
expenditure, acquisitions and senior personnel appointments. The Board has established
subcommittees of the Board, comprising an Audit and Risk Committee, a Remuneration and
Nomination Committee and a Reserves Committee. The Chief Financial Officer attends all Board
meetings in his capacity as joint company secretary.

The Company will comply with Rule 21 of the AIM Rules for Companies relating to dealings in the
Ordinary Shares of the Company and has adopted a share dealing policy for the Directors and
other persons discharging management responsibilities in compliance with Rule 21 of the AIM
Rules for Companies and the Market Abuse Regulation. The share dealing policy requires the
Directors to undertake certain steps to ensure compliance by such persons with the terms of the
share dealing policy and the Market Abuse Regulation.

17.1 Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee meets at least twice per financial year and is responsible for
ensuring that the financial performance of the Group is properly monitored and reported on as well
as meeting the auditors and reviewing any reports from the auditors regarding accounts and
internal control systems. The members of the Audit and Risk Committee are Mr Yan Liu (who acts
as chairman of the committee), Mr Zhiwei Gu, Dr Yi Zeng, Ms Juan Wang and Mr Nicholas
Beattie.

17.2 Remuneration and Nomination Committee

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee meets at least once per year and has as its remit
the determination and review of, amongst other matters, the remuneration of the executive Director
and any share incentive plans adopted, or to be adopted, by the Company. The members of the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee are Mr Zhiwei Gu (who acts as chairman of the
committee) and Mr Lubing Liu.

17.3 Reserves Committee

The Reserves Committee meets at least once per year and has as its remit to support and advise
the Board in reviewing the Company’s procedures relating to the disclosure of information with
respect to oil and gas activities and meeting with management and the qualified reserves evaluator
or auditor to review the reserves data or report of the qualified reserves evaluator or auditor. The
members of the Reserves Committee are Mr Lubing Liu (who acts as chairman of the committee),
Dr Yi Zeng, Mr Yan Liu, Mr Lijun Xiu and Dr Douglas Field.

29



18. DIVIDEND POLICY

It is the current intention of the Directors to retain any earnings arising from the Group’s activities
to fund further investments by the Group in order to achieve further capital growth. Accordingly, the
Directors do not intend to pay dividends in the near future. The declaration and payment by the
Company of any future dividends and the amount will depend upon, among other things, the
Company’s financial condition, future prospects, investment priorities, profits legally available for
distribution and other factors deemed by the Board to be relevant at that time.

19. TAKEOVER CODE

The Company is incorporated in Australia. Accordingly, transactions in the Ordinary Shares will not
be subject to the provisions of the UK City Code on Takeovers and Mergers (the “City Code”).
There are, however, provisions under Australian law and regulation applicable to the Company,
particularly Chapter 6 of the Australian Corporations Act, that are, in part, similar or analogous to
the provisions of the City Code. These are briefly described below and further details of Australian
takeover laws that are applicable to the Company are set out in paragraph 17 of Part X of this
document.

The Australian Corporations Act prohibits a person from acquiring a relevant interest in issued
voting shares in a public company if, because of the transaction, either that person’s or someone
else’s voting power in that public company increases (i) from 20% or below to more than 20%; or
(i) from a starting point that is above 20% and below 90%, unless the acquisition is made under
one of the permitted exceptions.

Acquisitions of voting shares above the 20% limit are permitted under the Australian Corporations
Act in a number of circumstances, including:

e  acquisitions made under an off-market takeover bid, for either all or a fixed proportion of each
shareholder’s shares in the target company;

° acquisitions made under an unconditional on-market takeover bid for all of the shares in the
target company;

° acquisitions made with the prior approval of the target company’s shareholders in general
meeting;

° “creeping” acquisitions of up to 3% of the target company’s shares every six months;
° acquisitions made under a pro-rata rights issue;
° certain acquisitions by underwriters; and

e  certain downstream acquisitions which are deemed to result from upstream takeovers.

20. TAXATION

Information regarding certain taxation considerations for corporate, individual and trustee
shareholders in the United Kingdom and Australia with regard to Admission is set out in
paragraph 16 of Part X of this document.

21. REQUIREMENT TO DISCLOSE INTERESTS IN ORDINARY SHARES

Statutory disclosure of holdings of significant shareholders (as defined in the AIM Rules for
Companies) is different for Australian incorporated companies such as Range in that the
Company’s Constitution does not currently contain any provisions requiring a Shareholder to notify
the Company without delay of (i) in the event that the Shareholder acquires a direct or indirect
ownership interest in the Ordinary Shares of 3% or more of the issued and outstanding Ordinary
Shares, or (i) any changes to such Shareholder’s holding which increase or decrease such holding
through any single percentage. Such provisions are typically included in the constitutional
documents of companies trading on AIM to enable compliance by the Company with the disclosure
requirements of Rule 17 of the AIM Rules for Companies. Pursuant to the terms of the Admission
Agreement, the Company has undertaken to Cantor Fitzgerald to use all reasonable endeavours to
hold a general meeting of the Shareholders by 30 April 2018 at which a special resolution is put to
Shareholders amending the Constitution so as to oblige Shareholders to notify the Company in the
event it become a ‘significant shareholder (as defined in the AIM Rules for Companies) or if there
is an alteration by 1 per cent or more in a significant shareholder’s holding of Ordinary Shares.
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22, ADMISSION, SETTLEMENT AND CREST

The Ordinary Shares are listed and traded on the ASX and will remain admitted to listing and
trading on the ASX following Admission.

Application will be made to the London Stock Exchange for Ordinary Shares to be admitted to
trading on AIM. It is expected that Admission will become effective and that dealings in the
Ordinary Shares on AIM (through the Depositary Interests) will commence on 13 December 2017.

CREST is a computerised paperless share transfer and settlement system which allows shares and
other securities, including depositary receipts, to be held in electronic rather than paper form. To
enable investors in the Ordinary Shares to settle their transactions in CREST, the Company has
appointed the UK Depositary to hold the Ordinary Shares on trust for the Shareholders and issue
dematerialised Depositary Interests representing the underlying Ordinary Shares to the individual
Shareholders’ CREST accounts. The Depositary Interests are independent securities constituted
under English law and are held on a register maintained by the UK Depositary. CREST is a
voluntary system and holders of Ordinary Shares who wish to remain outside CREST may do so
and will have their details recorded on the Company’s share register in accordance with applicable
laws.

The UK Depositary issues Depositary Interests in respect of the underlying Ordinary Shares
pursuant to the terms of the Depositary Deed. Under the terms of the Depositary Deed, the UK
Depositary holds as bare trustee all of the rights pertaining to the relevant underlying securities for
the benefit of, and on behalf of, the relevant DI Holder. Any rights or entitlements to cash
distributions, to information to make choices and elections, and to attend and vote at meetings
shall be passed to the relevant DI Holder by the UK Depositary, to the extent possible. Under the
Depositary Deed, a DI Holder can cancel or transfer its Depositary Interests by giving instructions
to the UK Depositary.

Each Depositary Interest will be treated as one Ordinary Share for the purposes of, for example,
determining eligibility for dividend payments. Any payments received by the UK Depositary, as
holder of the underlying Ordinary Shares, will be passed on to each DI Holder noted on the
register of Depositary Interests maintained by the UK Depositary as the beneficial owner of the
relevant Ordinary Shares.

23. FURTHER INFORMATION

Your attention is drawn to the further information set out in Parts Il to X of this document,
including the risk factors set out in Part Il. You are advised to read the whole of this
document.
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PART Il
RISK FACTORS

In addition to all other information set out in this document, the following specific risk
factors should be considered carefully by potential investors in evaluating whether or not to
make an investment in the Company. Before making a final decision, investors who are in
any doubt are advised to consult their stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor or accountant
or other independent professional adviser authorised under the FSMA who specialises in
advising on the acquisition of shares and other securities in the United Kingdom.

You should carefully consider the risks described below and ensure that you have read this
document in its entirety before making a decision to invest in the Company.

Investing in Ordinary Shares involves a high degree of risk. Prospective investors should
carefully consider all the information in this document, including the risk factors set out in
this Part ll, before investing in Ordinary Shares. A number of factors affect the operating
results, financial condition and prospects of the Group. The risks and uncertainties
described below are not exhaustive and represent those known to the Directors as at the
date of this document which the Directors consider to be material. Additional risks and
uncertainties not presently known to the Company and the Directors (or that the Company
and the Directors currently consider to be immaterial) may also adversely affect the Group’s
business, operations and financial condition and prospects. In particular, the Company’s
performance may be affected by changes in market and/or economic conditions, political,
judicial, and administrative factors and in legal, accounting, regulatory and tax requirements
in the areas in which it operates and holds its major assets. There may be additional risks
and uncertainties that the Directors do not currently consider to be material or of which
they are currently unaware which may also have an adverse effect upon the Group.

If any events or circumstances giving rise to any of the following risks, together with
possible additional risks and uncertainties of which the Company and the Directors are
currently unaware or which the Company and the Directors consider not to be material in
relation to the Group’s business, actually occur, the Group’s business, financial condition
and prospects and results of future operations could be materially and adversely affected.
In such circumstances, the value of the Ordinary Shares could decline due to any of these
risks occurring and investors could lose part or all of their investment in the Company.

There can be no certainty that the Company will be able to implement successfully the
strategy set out in this document. No representation, whether express or implied, is or can
be made as to the future performance of the Group and there can be no assurance that the
Company will achieve its objectives.

The risks listed below do not necessarily comprise all those faced by the Group and are
not intended to be presented in any order of priority.

1. RISKS RELATING TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

1.1. Amounts owing to the LandOcean Group

Following completion of the RRDSL Acquisition on 30 November 2017, the Group is significantly
indebted to the LandOcean Group in respect of (i) payment of the cash consideration for the
RRDSL Acquisition (including accrued interest); (ii) amounts owing under the Convertible Note
Agreement (including repayment of the Convertible Notes and any accrued interest); (iii) amounts
owing under the IMSA and related purchase orders (including accrued interest); and (iv) the
existing indebtedness owed by RRDSL to the LandOcean Group pursuant to the RRDSL Loan
Agreements. The Group’s ability to make payments of principal and interest on, or to refinance, the
indebtedness to the LandOcean Group will depend on its ability to access capital markets, future
operating performance, and ability to generate cashflows, which are subject, inter alia, to prevailing
economic conditions, prevailing interest rate levels, and financial, competitive, business and other
factors, many of which may be beyond its control. No assurance can therefore be given that the
Group will be able to meet its indebtedness obligations as and when they fall due.

In addition, as announced on 3 August 2017, the Company has received notification from
LandOcean that LandOcean has entered into a short-term factoring arrangement with Huayuan
Commercial Factoring Ltd and Sichuan XW Bank Co Ltd (the “Factor’) in respect of the
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outstanding payable at that date of US$39,278,263 due by the Company to LandOcean under the
IMSA and related purchase orders. Range has consented to the factoring arrangement and has
provided a confirmation that if required, it will pay the invoices when due to the Factor, instead of
LandOcean. Under the credit terms agreed in the IMSA First Letter Agreement and the IMSA Deed
of Novation and Indemnity, this payable shall only be due on or after 30 April 2020. However, the
factoring arrangement entered into by LandOcean with the Factor has a maturity date of 30 April
2018, which results in a mismatch between the maturity date by when LandOcean requires to
repay the Factor and the due date for payment by Range of the amounts due pursuant to the
IMSA First Letter Agreement and IMSA Deed of Novation and Indemnity. There has been no
change to the contractual obligation of Range to repay the invoices before 30 April 2020 and
Range has no express obligation to repay the Factor prior to that date. However, Range
recognizes that there is a potential risk whereby, if LandOcean defaults on its repayment obligation
to the Factor, the Factor may attempt to demand payment of the invoices by Range at the maturity
date or otherwise before 30 April 2020. To provide Range with further comfort on this point,
LandOcean has provided Range with a guarantee that the relevant payables shall only be due and
payable on or after 30 April 2020 and has also agreed to indemnify Range against any claims,
loss and other liabilities that may be suffered by Range in the event any person (including the
Factor) makes any claim or demand upon Range to settle such payables before 30 April 2020.

1.2. Impact on the Group’s drilling business of the RRDSL Acquisition

Following completion of the RRDSL Acquisition, the Group no longer benefits from the previous
credit terms from LandOcean with respect to its oilfield activities in Trinidad under the IMSA.
However, the Group has negotiated new credit terms with LandOcean pursuant to the IMSA First
Letter Agreement in terms of which:

° the payment due date for all approved invoices (and any accrued interest) issued under the
IMSA and certain related purchase orders which are outstanding at the date on which the
IMSA First Letter Agreement will be the third anniversary of the effective date of the IMSA
First Letter Agreement;

° the payment due date for all invoices (and any accrued interest) issued under the IMSA or
certain related purchase orders after the effective date of the IMSA First Letter Agreement will
be the third anniversary of the date of approval of such invoice; and

° the interest rate for all outstanding approved invoices issued under each of the IMSA and
certain related purchase orders is 6% per annum.

On 31 July 2017, the parties to the IMSA First Letter Agreement entered into the IMSA Deed of
Novation and Indemnity. Under the IMSA Deed of Novation and Indemnity, the rights, benefits,
obligations and liabilities of each entitiy within the Group under purchase orders no. 2-8 (inclusive)
and the IMSA Supplementary Agreement were transferred to the Company and the rights, benefits,
obligations and liabilities of each LandOcean Group entity under purchase orders no. 2-8
(inclusive) and the IMSA Supplementary Agreement were transferred to LandOcean. Accordingly,
all amounts payable by members of the Group to members of the LandOcean Group under these
arrangements are now payable directly by the Company to LandOcean.

Pursuant to the IMSA Third Letter Agreement, the Company and LandOcean agreed that (i) the
Company is continuing to progress with the waterflood and other oilfield projects in Trinidad;
(i) SOCA Petroleum has agreed to acquire RRDSL from LandOcean Petroleum; (iii) the IMSA
remains effective between Range and LandOcean and that a new purchase order could be
established under which LandOcean would provide services (including services as a project
manager) for the Group for its oilfield operations in Trinidad; and (iv) the payment terms for
services provided under a new purchase order would be no less than 720 days for any invoices
issued.

As at 6 December 2017 (being the last practicable date prior to the publication of this document),
the total amount outstanding by the Company to LandOcean under the IMSA and related purchase
orders was US$40,215,637. LandOcean has provided Range with a guarantee that the relevant
payables shall only be due and payable on or after 30 April 2020.

There is no assurance that the Group will benefit from the credit terms set out above in respect of
any future purchase orders with LandOcean under the IMSA required in relation to drilling activities
or other services which LandOcean Group may provide to the Group. The terms of any such future
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purchase orders could impact on the Group’s ability to progress its development programme
(including the waterflood programme) and generate cashflows.

1.3. Realizing the benefits of the RRDSL Acquisition

There is no assurance that the Group will realize the potential benefits of the RRDSL Acquisition
including being able to generate revenues and cashflows from external customers. The Group’s oil
services business does not presently have any material agreements in place with external
customers. If the Group is unable to commence the operations of its oil services business
successfully, including generating revenues from external customers, then this could have a
significantly negative impact on its results of operations and/or its financial condition.

1.4. The Company may experience difficulties in integrating RRDSL’s business with the
Company’s existing business

The RRDSL Acquisition involves the integration of companies that have previously operated
independently. The difficulties of combining the companies’ operations include:

° the necessity of coordinating and consolidating organisations, systems and facilities;

° the task of integrating personnel of RRDSL, maintaining employee morale and retaining and
incentivising key employees; and

° given that Range Trinidad has substantially been RRDSL’s only customer, the historic
financial information presented in respect of RRDSL may not provide an accurate picture of
how the integration of RRDSL into the Group will impact the financial position of the Group
going forward.

The process of integrating operations could cause an interruption of, or loss of momentum in, the
activities of the Group’s business. The diversion of management’s attention and any delays or
difficulties encountered in connection with the RRDSL Acquisition and the integration of companies
could have an adverse effect on the business, results of operations, financial conditions or
prospects of the Group.

1.5. The due diligence process carried out by the Company may not have uncovered all
potential risks and liabilities in connection with the RRDSL Acquisition and the Hengtai
Acquisition

The Company has carried out commercial, technical, legal and financial due diligence in respect of

the Group’s assets. The Company believes that it has carried out sufficient investigations to

confirm that the Group has satisfactory title to its interests in its assets. However, due to the
limitations of the due diligence exercises, there is no assurance that all potential risks and liabilities
associated with the Group’s assets have been uncovered or quantified.

In respect of Hengtai Acquisition and consequently its indirect interest in the Perlak field, the due
diligence carried out by the Company identified a number of issues with missing corporate records
in respect of the ownership of Hengtai and the underlying interests in SPC (an entity in which
Hengtai’s subsidiary, Lukar, holds a 49% interest in its share capital) and the Perlak field. Further,
the due diligence carried out by the Company has identified that it appears that Hengtai has not
yet obtained a “permanent business licence” from the Indonesia Investment Coordinating Board
which (pursuant to the prevailing laws and regulations in Indonesia) is required to be obtained prior
to Hengtai commencing “commercial operations”. The Company understands that Hengtai does not
currently actually undertake (or intend to undertake) in its own name any commercial operations as
an oil and gas mining supporting services business. The Company has also not been able to
identify the licences held by SPC. If either Hengtai or SPC require a permanent business licence
and fail to obtain such a licence within the prescribed deadline, Hengtai or SPC (as applicable)
could be deemed to be in breach of its licence and would be at risk at having its foreign
investment approvals revoked.

The Company has sought to mitigate against any risks associated with missing historic information
through pre-completion conditions and warranties and representations in the Hengtai SPA.
However, it was not possible for the Company to ensure that all historic corporate records and
documentation in respect of Hengtai, SPC and the Perlak field were obtained at the time the
acquisition completed.

Furthermore, a number of documents which govern the relationships between the parties within the
Perlak ownership chain have been in place for some time and the Company considers that
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amendments are necessary in order to simplify and improve the legal framework which governs the
relationships. In particular, given Hengtai’s interest in the Perlak field is held indirectly via its 78%
interest in the share capital of Lukar which in turn holds 49% of the share capital of SPC, the
Company would like to revise the existing contractual matrix which governs the relationship
between those parties who have a direct and indirect interest in the Perlak field to provide
additional control mechanisms. At present there is no guarantee that the Company will be able to
secure such amendments.

1.6. The Group has not fulfilled all of its minimum work obligations in respect of all of its
licences

The ability of the Group to develop and exploit oil and gas reserves depends on the Group’s
compliance with its obligations under its licences. The licences granted by the Trinidad Minister of
Energy set out the term of the licence and the minimum work obligations and expenditure
obligations that need to be complied with by the licensee during such term. The Trinidad Minister
of Energy is entitled to revoke the licence and the licensee’s right to carry out petroleum
operations where there is a failure by the licensee to fulfil the minimum work obligations or to meet
its expenditure obligations. The Group has not fulfilled all of its minimum work obligations in
respect of all of its licences on an asset by asset basis. In particular, the Group is currently in
breach of the work obligations in respect of St. Mary’s onshore block in Trinidad which would
entitle the Trinidad Minister of Energy to terminate the exploration and production licence relating to
the St. Mary’s block in Trinidad. However, the Group has not received any notification from the
Trinidad Minister of Energy of any breach by any licensees within the Group of its licence
obligations. The revocation by the Trinidad Minister of Energy of the Group’s licences in these
circumstances could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, results of operations
and financial condition. However, Range is currently in discussions with the MEEI in relation to
agreeing amendments to its minimum work obligations in respect of the St. Mary’s onshore block
and, having taken legal advice from Trinidadian counsel, the Company understands that, where
such engagement is ongoing with MEEI in connection with extant breaches of the minimum work
obligations, termination of the licences by MEEI as a result of breach of the minimum work
obligations is unlikely.

1.7. Exploration, development and production risks

Oil and natural gas operations involve many risks that even a combination of experience,
knowledge and careful evaluation may not be able to overcome. The long-term commercial
success of the Group will depend, inter alia, on its ability to find, acquire, develop and
commercially produce oil and natural gas reserves. Without the continual addition of new reserves,
any existing reserves the Group may have at any particular time and the production therefrom will
decline over time as such existing reserves are exploited. A future increase in the Group’s
reserves will depend not only on its ability to explore and develop any properties it may have from
time to time but also on its ability to select and acquire suitable producing properties or prospects.
No assurance can be given that the Group will be able to continue to locate satisfactory properties
for acquisition or participation. Moreover, if such acquisitions or participations are identified, the
Group may determine that current markets, terms of acquisition and participation or pricing
conditions make such acquisitions or participations uneconomic. There is no assurance that further
commercial quantities of oil and natural gas will be discovered or acquired by the Group. In
particular the secondary recovery waterflood programme at the Group’s Beach Marcelle, South
Quarry and Morne Diablo fields may not achieve the production levels that the Group’s technical
work to date forecasts and this may have an impact on the financial position of the Group in the
event that the programme is not economically viable in the future.

Future oil and natural gas exploration may involve unprofitable efforts, not only from dry wells, but
from wells that are productive but do not produce sufficient net revenues to return a profit after
drilling, operating and other costs. Completion of a well does not assure a profit on the investment
or recovery of drilling, completion and operating costs. In addition, drilling hazards or environmental
damage could greatly increase the cost of operations and various field operating conditions may
adversely affect the production from successful wells. These conditions include delays in obtaining
governmental approvals or consents, shut-ins of connected wells resulting from extreme weather
conditions, insufficient storage or transportation capacity or other geological and mechanical
conditions. While diligent well supervision and effective maintenance operations can contribute to
maximizing production rates over time, production delays and declines from normal field operating
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conditions cannot be eliminated and can be expected to adversely affect revenue and cash flow
levels to varying degrees.

Oil and natural gas exploration, development and production operations are subject to all the risks
and hazards typically associated with such operations including hazards such as fire, explosion,
blowouts, cratering, sour gas releases and spills each of which could result in substantial damage
to oil and natural gas wells, production facilities, other property and the environment or personal
injury. Oil and natural gas production operations are also subject to all of the risks typically
associated with such operations, including encountering unexpected formations or pressures,
premature decline of reservoirs and the invasion of water into producing formations. Losses
resulting from the occurrence of any of these risks could have a material adverse effect on future
results of operations, the Group’s liquidity and financial condition.

1.8. Properties with no attributed reserves

The development of properties with no attributed reserves, for example the Perlak field can be
affected by a number of factors including, but not limited to, project economics, forecasted
commodity price assumptions, cost estimates, lack of availability of a development plan and access
to infrastructure. These and other factors could lead to the delay or the acceleration of projects
related to these properties.

1.9. Interruptions in availability of exploration, production or supply infrastructure

The Group in the future may be reliant upon government and third party owned pipelines and
processing facilities for the export of its oil and gas products to local and international markets.

1.10. Reliance on operators, joint venture shareholders, management and key personnel

Successfully exploring for, developing and commercializing oil and gas interests and generating
cashflows from oil services activities depends on a number of factors not least of which is the
technical skill of the personnel involved. The Group’s success will be, in part, dependent on the
performance of its key managers and consultants. Failure to retain the managers and consultants,
or to attract or retain additional key personnel, with the necessary skills and experience could have
a materially adverse impact upon the Company’s growth and profitability. Range does not carry key
person insurance. In addition, the Group may not be the operator of certain oil and gas properties
in which it acquires an interest. By way of example, the Group has recently acquired an indirect
non-operated interest in the Perlak field in Indonesia through the Hengtai Acquisition and is reliant
on its partners putting in place a robust operational and management structure which is not
currently in existence between the partners in order to develop this asset. Further the current
management of the Group has no material experience of operating in Indonesia and as such is
particularly reliant on others in country experience. As part of the Hengtai Acquisition, the Group
will get access to the existing small team of personnel within Hengtai which has experience of
operating oil and gas assets in Indonesia which will mitigate in part the existing lack of experience
within the Group.

Additionally, the Group holds interests in certain of its oil and gas assets indirectly through
intermediate companies which it does not control. This lack of control has historically on occasion
led to disputes between the Group and its partners further details of which are contained in
paragraph 1.17 below of this Part Il of this document. This lack of control can also result in Range
having limited oversight of the administrative and accounting functions of such intermediate
companies. By way of example, Range has a 45% shareholding in SOGL and is reliant on the
management of SOGL to prepare, finalise and file the annual accounts of SOGL. As part of its
diligence exercise in connection with Admission, Range has identified that SOGL has not filed its
accounts in Gibraltar since 2013 and is therefore not complying with its filing requirements.

To the extent the Group is not the operator of its oil and gas properties, it will be dependent on
such operators for the timing of activities related to such properties and will be unable to control
the activities of the operators.

1.11. Hedging

From time to time, the Group may enter into agreements to receive fixed prices on its oil and
natural gas production to offset the risk of revenue losses if commodity prices decline; however, if
commodity prices increase beyond the levels set in such agreements, the Group will not benefit
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from such increases and it may nevertheless be obligated to pay royalties on such higher prices,
even though not received by it, after giving effect to such agreements.

1.12. Third-party credit risk and delays

The Group may be exposed to third-party credit risk through its contractual arrangements with its
current or future marketers of its petroleum and natural gas production, the customers of its oil
services business, suppliers and other parties. In the event such entities fail to meet their
contractual obligations to the Group such failures could have a material adverse effect on the
Group and its business, operations and prospects.

In addition to the usual delays in payments by purchasers of oil and natural gas, or from future
customers of its oil services business, to the Group or to the operators, and the delays by
operators in remitting payment to the Group, payments between these parties may be delayed due
to restrictions imposed by lenders, accounting delays, delays in the sale of delivery of products,
delays in the connection of wells to a gathering system, adjustment for prior periods, or recovery
by the operator of expenses incurred in the operation of the properties. Any of these delays could
reduce the amount of cashflow available for the business of the Group in a given period and
expose the Group to additional third party credit risks.

1.13. Availability of equipment and qualified personnel and related costs

Oil and natural gas exploration, development and production activities, and oil services activities
are dependent on the availability of drilling and related equipment and qualified personnel in the
particular areas where such activities will be conducted. Notwithstanding the fact that the Company
has its own drilling business, demand for such limited equipment and qualified personnel may still
affect the availability of such equipment and qualified personnel to the Group and may delay the
Group’s exploration and development and its oil services activities. In addition, the costs of
qualified personnel and equipment in the areas where the Group’s assets are located may increase
due to the availability of, and demands for, such qualified personnel and equipment in such areas.

1.14. Management of growth

The Group may be subject to growth-related risks including capacity constraints and pressure on
its internal systems and controls. The ability of the Group to manage growth effectively will require
it to continue to implement and improve its operations and financial systems and to expand, train
and manage its employee base. The inability of Group to deal with this growth could have a
material adverse impact on its business, operations and prospects.

1.15. Potential conflicts of interest

Certain directors of the Group may become directors or officers of companies which are in
competition to its interests. No assurances can be given that opportunities identified by such Board
members will be provided to the Group.

1.16. Limitations of insurance

The Group’s involvement in the exploration for and development of oil and gas properties may
result in the Group becoming subject to liability for pollution, blowouts, property damage, personal
injury or other hazards. Although the Group has obtained insurance in accordance with industry
standards to address such risks, such insurance has limitations on liability that may not be
sufficient to cover the full extent of such liabilities. In addition, such risks may not, in all
circumstances be insurable or, in certain circumstances, the Group may elect not to obtain
insurance to deal with specific risks due to the high premiums associated with such insurance or
other reasons. The payment of such uninsured liabilities would reduce the funds available to the
Group. The occurrence of a significant event that the Group is not fully insured against, or the
insolvency of the insurer of such event, could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s
financial position, results of operations or prospects.

1.17. Litigation risks

In the normal course of the Group’s operations, it may become involved in, named as a party to,
or be the subject of, various legal proceedings, including regulatory proceedings, tax proceedings
and legal actions, relating to personal injuries, property damage, property taxes, the environment
and contract disputes. The outcome of outstanding, pending or future proceedings cannot be
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predicted with certainty and may be determined adversely to the Group and as a result, could have
a material adverse effect on the Group’s assets, liabilities, business, financial condition and results
of operations. Even if the Group prevails in any such legal proceedings, the proceedings could be
costly and time-consuming and may divert the attention of management and key personnel from
the Group’s business operations, which could adversely affect its financial condition.

Colombian Exploration Licences

As previously announced on 19 January 2016 and 1 September 2016, Range received a notice
from Agencia Nacional de Hidrocarburos (“ANH”) of Colombia revoking the licences over three
exploration blocks in Colombia (PUT-5, VMM-7 and VSM-1). The licences had been awarded to a
consortium of Optima Oil Corporation (“Optima”) and the Company in December 2012 (the
“Consortium”). ANH alleged that its action was a result of the exploration work commitments not
being fulfilled and presentation of invalid letters of credit to ANH by Optima to support the
minimum work obligations. There are three joint operating agreements (“JOASs”) in place amongst
the Consortium partners and Petro Caribbean Resources Ltd in relation to each of the PUT-5,
VMM-7 and VSM-1 exploration blocks. Under the terms of the JOAs it was agreed between the
Consortium that it was the sole responsibility of Optima to complete the minimum work obligations
and to provide all necessary funding including the provision of valid letters of credit in favour of
ANH. Under the JOAs, Range has an indemnity to recover from Optima any payment incurred by
Range for any contractual obligations under the licences which were not paid by Optima. As
announced on 1 September 2016, Range received a demand notice from ANH addressed to the
Consortium seeking payment of the full amount of the outstanding obligations due to ANH totalling
up to approximately US$53,000,000. The deadline for making the payment, or otherwise
responding to ANH with a defence against the action was 7 September 2016. In conjunction with
its legal advisers in Colombia, Range reviewed the demand notice and, as announced on
15 September 2016, a comprehensive response was submitted to ANH by the Consortium on
7 September 2016. This response addressed the numerous areas in which the Consortium
objected to the demand which was received from ANH. Range has no material assets located in
Colombia. In addition to the ongoing work with legal advisers in Colombia, Range has sought
advice from its Australian advisers regarding the ability of ANH to try and enforce a claim against
Range in Australia (where Range is incorporated). The Company’s legal advisers have confirmed
that there is no provision in Australian law to enable either judgments of Colombian courts or
administrative orders of ANH to be recognised in Australia. If ANH did seek to make any claim in
Australia it would be required to commence court proceedings in the Australian courts and to prove
its entitlement to such claim. Range would have the right to defend such claim. Range has not as
at the date of this document received any claim from ANH in Australia. The Company continues to
work with Optima and its legal advisers to defend its position to the maximum extent possible and
is considering what further action can be taken to challenge the actions taken by ANH. At this time
Range cannot provide any indication of the likely timeline for any resolution to this matter.

Georgia Licence

Range believes that it holds an interest in the Georgia PSC (as defined in paragraph 6 of Part | of
this document) through its 45% shareholding in SOGL. On 3 April 2017, the Government of
Georgia represented by the Agency (as defined in paragraph 6 of Part | of this document),
announced an open international tender on Block VIA in Georgia (the “Tender Announcement”).
Range has been involved in the project since 2009 and has invested substantial capital since that
time with funds used to complete the minimum work programme stipulated by the Georgia PSC.
The Agency has previously confirmed to SOGL that this minimum work programme has been
satisfactorily completed. Range believes that the Georgia PSC over Block VIA remains valid and in
good standing and that the purported relicensing of the block by the Agency pursuant to the
Tender Announcement would be a breach of the Georgia PSC. Range and SOGL have contacted
the Agency to seek an amicable resolution to this issue and has engaged legal advisers to explore
relevant routes to preserve the value of its investment in Georgia. As at 30 June 2017, Range has
fully written down the value of its investment in SOGL and has nil value attributed to its interests in
the project on Range’s balance sheet. There can be no guarantee that Range will be able to
preserve the value of this investment or that it will be successful in its attempts to secure the
Georgia PSC.
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Geeta Maharaj

Range and Range Trinidad have received an invoice from Geeta Maharaj (“Ms Maharaj”), a
Trinidad-based attorney seeking payment for legal services in the amount of TT$12,019,573. The
invoice purports to relate to legal work undertaken during mid-2014 including the preparation of
inter-company loan agreements. Range and Range Trinidad strongly refute the amount of this
purported invoice and consider it to be vastly excessive and therefore not payable. A claim has
been filed by Ms Maharaj seeking the sum of TT$12,019,573 plus interest and costs. Range and
Range Trinidad filed a notice of application to strike out this claim on 14 July 2017. An initial
hearing on this application was held on 29 September 2017 at which the parties were ordered to
file and exchange written submissions by 20 October 2017 with replies, if any, to be filed by
30 October 2017. Both parties filed and exchange written submissions and responses by the
requested dates and a further hearing was scheduled for 1 December 2017. This hearing was
rescheduled by the court and the Company is awaiting notification of a rescheduled date, which is
likely to be in early 2018.

Separately, Range and Range Trinidad have received further correspondence from Ms Maharaj on
a related matter claiming damages of TT$6,000,000 on the basis of a conspiracy designed to
damage Ms Mabharaj's reputation. Again, Range and Range Trinidad firmly refute the allegation and
in conjunction with its legal counsel in Trinidad have responded to this demand. A claim has been
filed by Ms Maharaj seeking damages of TT$6,000,000 plus interest and costs. The Company, in
conjunction with its legal counsel, has filed a defence in respect of this claim and a preliminary
hearing was scheduled for 1 December 2017. This hearing was rescheduled by the court and the
Company is awaiting notification of a rescheduled date, which is likely to be in early 2018.

While the Company, having taken legal advice, considers the probability of Ms Maharaj succeeding
in either of her claims to be remote, there can be no guarantee that there will be a favourable
outcome for the Group.

Trinidad and Tobago Tax Appeals
The Group is currently involved in a number of tax appeals in Trinidad and Tobago.

On 9 February 2017, Range Trinidad (as successor to Los Bajos QOil Limited) filed appeals in
respect of the BIR’s assessment that Los Bajos Oil Limited (a former subsidiary of Range which
amalgamated with Range Trinidad) owed additional petroleum profit taxes in the sum of
TT$1,218,720.34 and additional unemployment levy of TT$121,872.03 for the financial year 2008.
Los Bajos Oil Limited duly filed a petroleum profits tax return for the financial year 2008 and
subsequently sought to amend the return to claim a deduction of supplemental petroleum tax
liabilities for the respective financial years 2008, 2009 and 2010. Following an audit examination,
the BIR assessed Los Bajos Oil Limited to owe further petroleum profits tax and consequently
adjusted its unemployment levy liability. The total amount of additional petroleum profit taxes in
dispute is TT$1,218,720.34 additional unemployment levy liability in dispute is TT$121,872.03.

On 9 February 2017, Range Trinidad filed appeals in respect of the BIR’s assessment that Range
Trinidad owed additional petroleum profit taxes in the sum of TT$4,325,000.00 and additional
unemployment levy of TT$432,500.00 for the financial year of income 2008. Range Trinidad duly
filed a petroleum profits tax return for the financial year of income 2008 and subsequently sought
to amend the return to claim a deduction of supplemental petroleum tax liabilities for the respective
income financial years 2008, 2009 and 2010. Following an audit examination, BIR assessed Range
Trinidad to further petroleum profits tax and consequently adjusted its unemployment levy liability.
The total amount of additional petroleum profit taxes in dispute is TT$4,325,000.00 and additional
unemployment levy liability in dispute is TT$432,500.00.

The above appeals are currently at the stage of discussions with the BIR but the Group is in
discussions with BIR with a view to resolving the dispute amicably. The next scheduled date for
review at the Tax Appeal Board in Trinidad is 27 February 2018 for Range Trinidad and also for
historic claims relating to Los Bajos Oil Limited.

Range Trinidad is also in negotiation with BIR on a separate matter with respect to a waiver of
interest on an historic tax liability. In the years prior to 2012 (and prior to its acquisition by the
Group), Range Trinidad was late with payment of certain taxation liabilities to BIR. The taxes due
were paid in full by Range Trinidad in 2013 (following its acquisition by the Group) however the
late payment attracted interest of approximately TT$22,800,000. Range Trinidad engaged tax
advisers to assist with this matter and based upon advice received and verbal responses from BIR,
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Range Trinidad anticipates that it will receive a waiver of 75% of the assessed interest amount.
Range Trinidad and its advisers are currently in negotiations with the BIR to finalise this matter
and the amount payable by Range Trinidad. The Group has recognised an accrual of TT$11 million
in respect of this potential liability.

1.18. Reliance on joint venture partners

There is a risk that other parties with interests in the Group’s assets in the future may elect not to
participate in certain activities relating to those assets and which require that party’s consent. In
these circumstances, it may not be possible for such activities to be undertaken by the Group
alone or in conjunction with other participants at the desired time or at all.

Other participants may default on their obligations to fund capital or other funding obligations in
relation to the Group’s assets. In such circumstances, the Group may be required under the terms
of the relevant operating agreement to contribute all or part of any such funding shortfall itself.

In addition, the Group may choose to farm-in to non-operated assets in the future. Accordingly,
whilst in these circumstances the relevant operating agreement would typically provide for a right of
consultation or consent in relation to significant matters, the Group may have limited control over
the day-to-day management or operations of those assets and would therefore be dependent upon
the activities of the operator of those assets. Any mismanagement of an asset by the operator
could result in delays or increased costs to non-operated exploration, development or production
activities that the Group may be involved with in the future.

The terms of any relevant operating agreement generally impose standards and requirements in
relation to the operator's activities. Whilst the Group would purposely only acquire interests in
assets that are operated by parties that it believes to be reputable, competent and sufficiently
funded, there can be no assurance that an operator would observe such standards or
requirements.

1.19. Failure to realize anticipated benefits of acquisitions and disposals

The Group will make acquisitions and disposals of businesses and assets in the ordinary course of
business. Achieving the benefits of acquisitions (including the RRDSL Acquisition and the Hengtai
Acquisition) depends in part on successfully consolidating functions and integrating operations and
procedures in a timely and efficient manner as well as the Group’s ability to realize the anticipated
growth opportunities and synergies from combining the acquired businesses and operations with its
existing operations. The integration of acquired businesses, including that of RRDSL, may require
substantial management effort, time and resources and may divert management’s focus from other
strategic opportunities and operational matters. Management continually assesses the value and
contribution of services provided and assets required to provide such services. In this regard, non-
core assets are periodically disposed of so that the Group can focus its efforts and resources more
efficiently. Depending on the state of the market for such non-core assets, certain non-core assets
of the Group, if disposed of, might realize less than their carrying value on the financial statements
of the Group.

In particular, there are certain rigs owned by RRDSL (which were included in the RRDSL
Acquisition) that have been unutilised for long periods of time and whilst the Group has impaired
the value of these assets, it is possible that if they were to remain unutilised, there may be a
further write-down of the value of these rigs in the future.

1.20. Current and future financing

The Group’s business will involve significant capital expenditure and it may, after twelve months
from the date of Admission, need to obtain further external financing for its existing operations, be
it equity or debt. Furthermore, as a result of a change in its operations, the Group may require
further equity or debt financing during the twelve month period from the date of Admission. There
is no assurance that such additional funding, if required, will be available on terms acceptable to
the Group at the relevant time. Furthermore, any incremental debt financing may involve restrictive
covenants, which may limit the Group’s operating flexibility. If additional funds are raised through
the issuance of equity or equity-linked instruments, the Group’s Shareholders may experience a
reduction in their percentage shareholdings. An inability to obtain sufficient funding for its
operations, exploration or development plans, may adversely affect the Group’s business, results of
operations and cash flows.
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1.21. The Group holds interests in an exploration licence or in licences which are in their initial
terms

The Group holds, and may in the future hold, interests in exploration licences or in other licences
which are in their initial terms. The early stages of an exploration period of a licence are commonly
the most risky. These phases of the term of a licence may require high levels of relatively
speculative capital expenditure without a commensurate degree of certainty of a return on that
investment.

1.22. The Guayaguayare production sharing contracts have expired

The Company, via its subsidiary companies Range Shallow and Range Deep, held an 80% interest
in the Deep PSC and a 65% interest in the Shallow PSC, both of which expired in July 2015. The
Company has applied for an extension to (or renewal of) each of the Deep PSC and Shallow PSC
on revised terms. Following ongoing discussions with the MEEI, the Company believes that the
extension/renewal will be granted if the first shallow commitment well in the Shallow PSC (being
the Canari North well) has been drilled and completed. The Company has no immediate plans to
drill the Canari North well. The Group has continued to operate the Guayaguayare block with the
knowledge and consent of the MEEI. There can however be no guarantee that the extensions or
renewals will be granted.

1.23. Petrotrin currently purchases all of the Group’s crude oil in Trinidad

Petrotrin currently purchases all of the Group’s crude oil. Accordingly, and notwithstanding
completion of the Hengtai Acquisition, the Group’s revenue will continue to be heavily dependent
on Petrotrin. The price Petrotrin will pay the Group for its crude oil is not fixed and maintenance of
the current pricing is not guaranteed. Accordingly, there will be limited transparency as to the
ultimate pricing the Group will receive for its oil. Any long term disruption to Petrotrin’s refinery
operations could impact the Group’s ability to sell to Petrotrin and consequently would affect the
results of operations of the Group.

1.24. The Group cannot accurately predict its future decommissioning liabilities

The Group, through its licence interests, has assumed certain obligations in respect of the
decommissioning of its fields and related infrastructure and is expected to assume additional
decommissioning liabilities in respect of its future operations. These liabilities are derived from
legislative and regulatory requirements concerning the decommissioning of wells and production
facilities and require the Group to make provision for and/or underwrite the liabilities relating to
such decommissioning. Any significant increase in the actual or estimated decommissioning costs
that the Group incurs may adversely affect its financial condition.

1.25. The Group is subject to the risk of labour disputes and adverse employee relations

The Group and the Group’s partners, contractors or service providers may be limited in their
flexibility in dealing with their staff due to the presence of trade unions among their staff. RRDSL
recognised a trade union in February 2017. If there is a material disagreement between the Group
or its partners, contractors or service providers and any of their staff who belong to trade unions,
the Group’s operations could suffer an interruption or shutdown that could have a material adverse
effect on its business, results of operations or financial condition.

2. BRISKS RELATING TO THE INDUSTRY OR COUNTRIES IN WHICH THE COMPANY
OPERATES

2.1. Political, economic, legal, regulatory and social risk

The Group’s operations will be exposed to the political, economic, legal, regulatory and social risks
of countries in which it operates (or intends to operate), including Trinidad and Indonesia. These
risks potentially include expropriation (including “creeping” expropriation) and nationalisation of
property; instability in political, economic or financial systems; uncertainty arising from undeveloped
legal and regulatory systems; bribery and corruption (particularly in Indonesia); civil strife or labour
unrest; acts of war, armed conflict, terrorism; outbreaks of infectious diseases; prohibitions,
limitations or price controls on hydrocarbon exports and limitations or the imposition or duties on
imports or certain goods.

Some of the countries in which the Group may operate may have transportation,
telecommunications and financial services infrastructures that may present logistical challenges not
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associated with doing business in more developed countries. Furthermore, the Group may have
difficulty ascertaining its legal obligations and enforcing any rights it may have. Certain
governments in other countries have in the past expropriated or nationalised the property of
hydrocarbon production companies operating within their jurisdictions. Sovereign or regional
governments could require the Group to grant to them larger shares of hydrocarbons or revenues
than those previously agreed. Positive engagement with local communities, partners, advisers and
other stakeholders in each of these countries will be important to ensure that the Group’s interests
are maintained. Additionally, implementation by the Group of effective internal procedures and
processes will assist with mitigating certain of these potential risks.

Once the Group has established hydrocarbon exploration and/or production operations in a
particular country, it may be expensive and logistically burdensome to discontinue such operations
should economic, political, physical, or other conditions subsequently deteriorate. All of these
factors could materially adversely affect the Group’s business, results of operations, financial
condition or prospects.

As an exploration and production company, some of Range’s activities may be located in countries
where corruption may exist (particularly Indonesia). The Group will seek to comply fully with
applicable bribery legislation such as and has put in place internal control policies. However, there
can be no assurance that such procedures and established internal controls will adequately protect
them against fraudulent and/or corrupt activity and such activity could have an adverse effect on
the Group’s business, reputation, results of operations, financial condition and/or prospects.

As Range expands its operations into further territories (including Indonesia) it is considering
updating its existing anti-bribery and corruption policies to ensure it has suitable policies and
procedures in place to mitigate any risks identified in any new territories.

2.2. Governmental involvement in the oil and gas industry

The governments of Trinidad and Tobago and Indonesia have exercised and will continue to
exercise significant influence over many aspects of their respective economies, including the oil
and gas industry. Any government action concerning the economy, including the oil and gas
industry (such as a change in oil or gas pricing policy or taxation rules or practice, or renegotiation
or nullification of existing concession contracts, or the withholding of payments to international oil
companies), could have a material adverse effect on the Group.

Further, there is no assurance that the governments of the countries in which the Group operates,
or will operate, will not postpone or review projects or will not make any changes to laws, rules,
regulations or policies, or delay the renewal of licences in each case, which could adversely affect
the Group’s financial position, results of operations or prospects.

2.3. Licencing and other regulatory requirements

The Group’s activities in the countries in which it operates or intends to operate are subject to
licences, regulations and approvals of governmental authorities including those relating to the
exploration, development, operation, production, marketing, pricing, transportation and storage of oil
and gas, the generation of electricity, taxation, environmental and health and safety matters.

The Group has limited control over whether or not necessary approvals or licences (or renewals
thereof) are granted, the timing of obtaining (or renewing) such licences or approvals, the terms on
which they are granted or the tax regime to which it or assets in which it has interests will be
subject. As a result, the Group may have limited control over the nature and timing of development
and exploration of oil and gas fields in which it has or seeks interests.

The Group may incur substantial costs in order to maintain compliance with existing laws and
regulations and additional costs if these laws are revised or if new laws affecting the Group’s
operations are passed. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that the Group will be able to
obtain all necessary licences and permits that may be required to carry out exploration,
development and production operations on its properties.

Upon the expiry of licences, contractors are generally required, under the terms of relevant
licences or local law, to dismantle and remove equipment, cap or seal wells and generally make
good production sites. The Group’s accounts make reasonable provision for decommissioning.
There can be no assurance that such provision will be sufficient to meet the eventual
decommissioning liabilities of the Group.
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2.4. The Group’s success depends on its ability to appraise, find, acquire, develop and produce
oil and gas reserves that are economically recoverable

The Group’s long-term commercial success depends on its ability to appraise, find, acquire,
develop and commercially produce oil and gas reserves. Factors such as adverse weather
conditions, natural disasters, equipment or services shortages, procurement delays or difficulties
arising from the political, environmental and other conditions in the areas where the reserves are
located or through which the Group’s products are transported may increase costs and make it
uneconomical to develop potential reserves. Moreover, the Group may become dependent on the
competence and judgement of third-party operators in relation to the development of reserves
where it is not itself the operator. There is no assurance that the Group will discover, acquire or
develop further commercial quantities of oil and gas.

2.5. The Group’s Reserves and Resources information represents estimates that may turn out
to be incorrect or inaccurate

The process of estimating oil and gas Reserves and Resources and the cash flows that may be
derived from them is very complex. The Reserves and Resources information relating to the Group
set out in this document represent estimates only. In general, estimates of the quantity and value
of economically recoverable oil and gas Reserves and the possible future net cash flows are based
upon a number of variable factors and assumptions, such as historic production rates, ultimate
Reserves recovery, interpretation of geological and geophysical data, timing and amount of capital
expenditures, marketability of oil and gas, royalty rates, continuity of current fiscal policies and
regulatory regimes, future oil and gas prices, operating costs, development and production costs
and workover and remedial costs, all of which may vary from actual results. Estimates are also to
some degree speculative, and classifications of Reserves are only attempts to define the degree of
speculation involved. In addition, there are uncertainties inherent in estimating the quantity of
Resources and in projecting future rates of production including factors beyond the Group’s control.
Estimating the amount of hydrocarbon Resources is a subjective process and, in addition, results
of drilling, testing and production subsequent to the date of an estimate may result in material
revisions to original estimates. For these reasons, estimates of the economically recoverable oil
and gas Reserves attributable to a particular asset of the Group, the classification of such
Reserves based on risk of recovery and estimates of expected future net revenues prepared by
different engineers, or by the same engineers at different times, may vary. As a result, the
estimates of the Group’s Reserves may require substantial upward or downward revisions if
subsequent drilling, testing and production reveal differences. Any downward adjustment could
indicate lower future production and thus adversely affect the Group’s financial condition, future
prospects and market value. Furthermore, a decline in the Group’s Reserves or an inability to
increase the amount of the Group’s Reserves may affect its ability to raise or access sufficient
capital for its future operations.

Estimates of Proved, Probable and Possible Reserves that may be developed and produced in the
future are often not based on actual production history but on volumetric calculations and analogies
to similar types of Reserves. Estimates based on these methods are generally less reliable than
those based on actual production history. Subsequent evaluation of the same Reserves based on
production history and production practices may result in variations in the estimated Reserves and
these variations could be material.

The Resources data contained in this document, and specifically in the Trinidadian CPR and in the
Indonesian CPR are estimates only and should not be construed as representing exact quantities.
The nature of Reserve quantification studies means that there can be no guarantee that estimates
of quantities and quality of oil and gas disclosed will be available for extraction or for it to be
commercially viable at the relevant time to extract such resources particularly where such assets
are more mature being the case for the Perlak field.

No chance of development risk factor has been applied to the Contingent Resources volumes
contained in this document.

2.6. Exploration projects do not necessarily result in a profit on the investment or the recovery
of costs

Exploration activities are capital intensive and inherently uncertain in their outcome. The Group’s

future oil and gas exploration projects may involve unprofitable efforts, either from dry wells or from

wells that are productive but do not produce sufficient net revenues to return a profit after
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development, operating and other costs. Completion of a well does not guarantee a profit on the
investment or recovery of the costs associated with that well. In addition, drilling hazards or
environmental damage could greatly increase the cost of operations, and various field operating
conditions may adversely affect the production from successful wells. These conditions include
delays in obtaining governmental approvals or consents, shut-ins of connected wells resulting from
extreme weather conditions, insufficient storage or transportation capacity or adverse geological
conditions. While diligent well supervision and effective maintenance operations can contribute to
maximising production rates over time, production delays and declines from normal field operating
conditions cannot be eliminated and may adversely affect the Group’s revenues and cashflows.

2.7. Exploration, development and production activities are dependent on the availability of
equipment and services or supply infrastructure

The Group’s oil and gas exploration and development activities are dependent on the availability of
drilling and other equipment and onshore and offshore services and delivery infrastructure in
Trinidad and Indonesia. Further, exploration and production activities relating to the Perlak field
may present further operational challenges given the Perlak field’s remote location which could
require additional expenditure to deliver the work programme. Shortages or the high cost of drilling
rigs, equipment, supplies, personnel or oilfield services could delay or adversely affect the Group’s
development, exploration and production operations, which could have a material adverse effect on
its business, financial condition or results of operations. In addition, oil and natural gas exploration
and development activities are dependent on the availability of delivery infrastructure, including, but
not limited to, access to production facilities that have the capacity to process crude oil and natural
gas in the particular areas where those activities will be conducted.

These facilities are not owned or operated by the Company. As such, the Group’s oil and gas
production levels may be adversely affected by events relating to such infrastructure, including
obtaining governmental approvals or consents, repairs and maintenance, planned and unplanned
shut-downs, civil conflict and terrorism, regulatory changes, competition from other suppliers and
other operational matters which are unrelated to the performance of the Group’s oil and gas fields
and beyond its control.

Such interruptions or delays may have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial
condition, prospects, results and/or future operations.

2.8. Geopolitical risks

The marketability and price of oil and natural gas that may be acquired or discovered by the Group
is and will continue to be affected by political events throughout the world that cause disruptions in
the supply of oil. Conflicts, or conversely peaceful developments, arising in the Middle East, Africa
and other areas of the world have a significant impact on the price of oil and natural gas. Any
particular event could result in a material decline in prices and therefore result in a reduction of the
Group’s net production revenue.

2.9. Global financial markets

Recent market events and conditions, including disruptions in the international credit markets and
other financial systems, the American and European sovereign debt levels and global commodity
supply and demand balances have caused significant volatility in commodity prices. These events
and conditions have caused a decrease in confidence in the global credit and financial markets
and have created a climate of greater volatility, less liquidity, widening of credit spreads, lack of
price transparency, increased credit losses and tighter credit conditions. Notwithstanding various
actions by governments, concerns about the general condition of the capital markets, financial
instruments, banks, investment banks, insurers and other financial institutions has in the past
caused the broader credit markets to further deteriorate and stock markets to decline substantially.
A prolonged period of adverse market conditions may impede the Group’s ability to finance
planned capital expenditures which would adversely affect its ability to maintain and grow its
reserves and fully exploit its properties for the benefit of its Shareholders. While there have been
signs of economic recovery, these factors have negatively impacted company valuations and are
likely to continue to impact the performance of the global economy going forward. Petroleum prices
are expected to remain volatile for the near future as a result of market uncertainties over the
supply and demand of these commodities due to the current state of the world economies, actions
taken by Organization of the Petroleum Exporting Companies and the ongoing global credit and
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liquidity concerns. This volatility may in the future affect the Group’s ability to obtain equity or debt
financing on acceptable terms.

2.10. Prices, markets and marketing

The Group will be exposed to the influence and effects of oil and gas prices. The marketability and
price of oil and natural gas that may be acquired or discovered by the Group will continue to be
affected by numerous factors beyond its control. The Group’s ability to market its oil and natural
gas may depend upon its ability to secure capacity on pipelines that deliver oil and natural gas to
commercial markets. The Group may also be affected by deliverability uncertainties related to the
proximity of its reserves to pipelines and processing and storage facilities and operational problems
affecting such pipelines and facilities as well as extensive government regulation relating to price,
taxes, royalties, land tenure, allowable production, the export of oil and natural gas and many other
aspects of the oil and natural gas business.

The prices of oil and natural gas may be volatile and subject to fluctuation. Any material decline in
prices could result in a reduction in the Group’s net production revenue. The economics of
producing from some wells may change as a result of lower prices which could result in reduced
production of oil or gas and a reduction in the volumes of the Group’s reserves. The Group might
also elect not to produce from certain wells at lower prices. All of these factors could result in a
material decrease in the Group’s expected net production revenue and a reduction in its oil and
gas acquisition, development and exploration activities. Prices for oil and gas are subject to large
fluctuations in response to relatively minor changes in the supply of and demand for oil and gas,
market uncertainty and a variety of additional factors beyond the control of the Group. These
factors include economic conditions in the United States, Canada and Europe, the actions of
Organization of the Petroleum Exporting Companies, governmental regulation, political stability in
the Middle East, Africa and elsewhere, the foreign supply of oil and gas, risks of supply disruption,
the price of foreign imports and the availability of alternative fuel sources. In the latter half of 2014
and throughout 2015 world oil prices declined significantly. Any substantial and extended decline in
the price of oil and gas would have an adverse effect on the Group’s carrying value of its
reserves, borrowing capacity, revenues, profitability and cash flows from operations and may have
a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects.

Petroleum prices are expected to remain volatile for the near future as a result of market
uncertainties over the supply and the demand of these commaodities due to the current state of the
world economies, the Organization of the Petroleum Exporting Companies actions and the ongoing
credit and liquidity concerns. Volatile oil and gas prices make it difficult to estimate the value of
producing properties for acquisition and often cause disruption in the market for oil and gas
producing properties as buyers and sellers have difficulty agreeing on such value. Price volatility
also makes it difficult to budget for and project the return on acquisitions and development and
exploitation projects.

Fluctuations in oil and gas prices could also have a negative impact on the demand for oilfield and
related services which could negatively affect the business and financial condition of the Group.

2.11. Variations in foreign exchange rates and interest rates

The reporting and functional currency of the Group is in US Dollars. Substantially all of the Group’s
operations are in Trinidad and Indonesia (and for the time being this may also be the case with
the Group) while substantially all of its revenue is invoiced in US Dollars. Costs incurred by the
Group may be incurred in foreign currencies including Australian Dollars, Trinidad and Tobago
Dollars, British Pounds Sterling, US Dollars and Indonesian Rupiah. In addition, certain costs
incurred by the Group are generally paid in Trinidad and Tobago Dollars, British Pounds Sterling
and Indonesian Rupiah. As a result, the Group will be exposed to foreign currency exchange rate
risk on some of its activities primarily on exchange fluctuations between the US Dollar, the Trinidad
and Tobago Dollar, the Australian Dollar, the British Pound Sterling and Indonesian Rupiah.
However, the majority of capital expenditures will be incurred in US Dollars, Trinidad and Tobago
Dollars and Indonesian Rupiah while oil revenues will be received in US Dollars and Trinidad and
Tobago Dollars. Future exchange rates between US Dollars, Trinidad and Tobago Dollars,
Australian Dollars, British Pounds Sterling and Indonesian Rupiah could impact the future value of
the Group Reserves as determined by independent evaluators.
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To the extent that the Group engages in risk management activities related to foreign exchange
rates, there is a credit risk associated with counterparties with which the Group may contract.

An increase in interest rates could result in a significant increase in the amount the Group pays to
service debt which could negatively impact the Group’s cashflows.

2.12. Competition

There is strong competition relating to all aspects of the oil and natural gas industry whether in the
exploration, development and production sector or in the oil services sector. The Group will actively
compete for capital, skilled personnel, access to rigs and other equipment, access to customers for
its oil and gas production and its oil services business, access to processing facilities and pipeline
and refining capacity and in all other aspects of its operations with a substantial number of other
organizations many of which will have greater technical and financial resources (or access to such
resources) than that of the Group. For example, some of the oil majors such as BP plc, Royal
Dutch Shell plc and Repsol S.A operate in Trinidad and BP plc, Chevron Corporation, Exxon Mobil
Corporation and Total S.A. operate in Indonesia.

2.13. Environmental concerns

The Group’s operations that are conducted in Trinidad and Indonesia are subject to environmental
regulations promulgated by the Trinidad government and Indonesia government (respectively).
Should the Group initiate operations in other countries such operations will be subject to
environmental legislation in such jurisdictions. Current environmental legislation in Trinidad and
Indonesia provides for restrictions and prohibitions on spills, releases or emissions of various
substances produced in association with oil, condensate and natural gas operations. In addition,
certain types of operations may require the submission and approval of environmental impact
assessments and, particularly in Indonesia, an environmental licence. The Group’s existing
operations are subject to such environmental policies and legislation. Environmental legislation and
policy is periodically amended. Such amendments may result in stricter standards and enforcement
and in more stringent fines and penalties for non-compliance. Environmental assessments of
existing and proposed projects carry a heightened degree of responsibility for companies and their
directors, officers and employees.

The costs of compliance associated with changes in environmental regulations could require
significant expenditures and breaches of such regulations may result in the imposition of material
fines and penalties. In extreme cases, such regulations may result in the temporary or permanent
suspension of production operations. There can be no assurance that these environmental costs or
effects will not have a materially adverse effect on the Group’s future financial condition or results
of operations.

Environmental legislation is evolving in a manner expected to result in stricter standards and
enforcement, larger fines and liability and potentially increased capital expenditures and operating
costs. The discharge of oil, natural gas or other pollutants into the air, soil or water may give rise
to liabilities to governments and third parties and may require the Group to incur costs to remedy
such discharge. No assurance can be given that the application of environmental laws to the
business and operations of the Group will not result in a curtailment of production or a material
increase in the costs of production, development or exploration activities or otherwise adversely
affect the Group’s financial condition, results of operations or prospects.

2.14. Alternatives to, and changing demand for, petroleum products

Fuel conservation measures, alternative fuel requirements, increasing consumer demand for
alternatives to oil and natural gas and technological advances in fuel economy and energy
generation devices could reduce the demand for crude oil and other liquid hydrocarbons and for
the services of oil drilling companies such as RRDSL.

The Group cannot predict the impact of changing demand for both its oil and natural gas products
and its oil drilling services and any major changes may have a material adverse effect on the
Group’s business, financial condition, results of operations and cashflows.
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3. RISKS RELATING TO THE ORDINARY SHARES

3.1. It may be difficult to realize an investment on AIM

The Ordinary Shares of the Group will be admitted to trading on AIM. The AIM Rules are less
demanding than those of the Official List and an investment in a security that is traded on AIM
may carry a higher risk than an investment in securities listed on the Official List. The price of
publicly traded securities can be highly volatile.

It may be more difficult for an investor to realize his or her investment in the Company than to
realise an investment in a company whose shares or other securities are listed on the Official List
or other similar stock exchange. Shares held on AIM are perceived to involve higher risks. AIM is
a market designed for small and growing companies but its future success and liquidity as a
market for Ordinary Shares cannot be guaranteed.

3.2. Market price of Ordinary Shares

The price at which Ordinary Shares are traded and the price at which investors may realise their
investment are influenced by a large number of factors, some specific to the Group and its
operations and some which may affect growth companies or quoted companies generally.
Admission to AIM or the ASX does not imply that there will be a liquid market for Ordinary Shares.
Consequently, the price of Ordinary Shares may be subject to fluctuation on small volumes, and
Ordinary Shares may be difficult to sell at a particular price.

In addition, the market price of the Ordinary Shares may fluctuate significantly as a result of
factors beyond the Group’s control including the results of exploration, appraisal and development
programmes and production operations; changes in securities analysts’ recommendations or
estimates of earnings or financial performance of the Group, its competitors or the industry, or the
failure to meet expectations of securities analysts; fluctuations in the prices of oil, gas and other
petroleum products, fluctuations in stock market prices and volumes; general market volatility;
changes in laws, rules, regulations and taxes, applicable to the Group, its operations and the
operations in which the Group has interests; loss of key personnel and involvement in litigation.

3.3. Investment returns

The Company has not paid dividends nor made a distribution on any of its securities. Further, the
Group may never achieve a level of profitability that would permit payment of dividends or making
other forms of distributions to security holders. In any event, given the stage of the Company’s
development, it will likely be a long period of time before the Group could be in a position to make
dividends or distributions to its investors. The payment of any future dividends by the Group will be
at the sole discretion of the Board. In this regard, the Group currently intends to retain earnings to
finance the expansion of its business and does not anticipate paying dividends in the foreseeable
future.

3.4. Access to further capital

The Directors are of the opinion (having made due and careful enquiry) that the working capital of
the Group will be sufficient for its present requirements, that is, for at least the period of twelve
months from the date of Admission.

The Group may require additional funds to respond to business challenges or to enhance existing
operations. Accordingly, the Group may need to engage in equity or debt financings to secure
additional funds. If the Group raises additional funds through further issues of equity or convertible
debt securities, existing Shareholders could suffer significant dilution and any new equity securities
could have rights, preferences and privileges superior to those of current Shareholders. Any debt
financing secured by the Group in the future could involve restrictive covenants relating to its
capital raising activities and other financial and operational matters which may make it more difficult
for the Group to obtain additional capital and to pursue business opportunities including potential
acquisitions. In addition, the Group may not be able to obtain additional financing on terms
favourable to it if at all. If the Group is unable to obtain adequate financing or financing on terms
satisfactory to it and when the Group requires it, the Group’s ability to continue to support its
business growth and to respond to business challenges could be significantly limited or could affect
its financial viability.
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3.5. Issuance of additional Ordinary Shares

An additional issue of Ordinary Shares by the Company, or the public perception that an issue
may occur, could have an adverse effect on the market price of Ordinary Shares and could dilute
the proportionate ownership interest, and hence the proportionate voting interest, of Shareholders.
This will particularly be the case if, and to the extent that, such an issue of Ordinary Shares is not
affected on a pre-emptive basis or Shareholders do not take up their rights to subscribe for further
Ordinary Shares structured as a pre-emptive offer.

3.6. Taxation

The Group will be subject to, inter alia, tax in Trinidad and Tobago, Indonesia, Australia, Hong
Kong, Barbados and the UK. The application of taxes to the Company may change over time due
to changes in laws, regulations or interpretations by the tax authorities, tribunals and courts. Any
changes in taxes may have a material adverse effect on the Group’s financial condition and the
results of its operations.

3.7. Forward looking information may prove inaccurate

Certain statements within this document constitute forward looking statements. Investors are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward looking information. By its nature, forward looking
information involves numerous assumptions, known and unknown risks and uncertainties, of both a
general and specific nature, that could cause actual results to differ materially from those
suggested by the forward looking information or contribute to the possibility that predictions,
forecasts or projections will prove to be materially inaccurate.

Additional information on the risks, assumptions and uncertainties are found in this document under
the heading “Forward looking statements”.
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PART il

HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

SECTION A: HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP
(EXCLUDING RRDSL)
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Range Resources Ltd and Controlled Entities
Audited financial statements for the 12 months ended June 30, 2015
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED)

This report details the nature and amount of remuneration for each director of Range Resources Limited.

(@)

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of Range Resources Limited has been designed to align director and executive
objectives with shareholder and business objectives by providing a fixed remuneration component and offering
specific long-term incentives based on key performance areas affecting the Group’s financial results. The Board
of Range Resources Limited believes the remuneration policy to be appropriate and effective in its ability to
attract and retain the best executives and directors to run and manage the Group, as well as create alignment of
goals between directors, executives and shareholders.

The Board’s policy for determining the nature and amount of remuneration for Board members and senior
executives of the Company is as follows:

The remuneration policy, setting the terms and conditions for the executive directors and other senior
executives, was developed and approved by the Board.

Non-executive directors, executive directors and senior executives receive a base salary (which is based on
factors such as length of service and experience), which is calculated on a total cost basis and includes any
FBT charges related to employee benefits including motor vehicles, as well as employer contributions to
superannuation funds.

Executive directors can be employed by the Company on a consultancy basis, on Board approval, with
remuneration and terms stipulated in individual consultancy agreements.

The Board exercises its discretion in determining remuneration performance of executives. Given the size and
nature of the entity, the Board does not deem it to be realistic to measure performance against defined criteria.
As such remuneration and performance have historically not been linked.

All remuneration paid to directors and executives is valued at the cost to the Company and expensed. Shares
given to directors and executives are valued as the difference between the market price of those shares and the
amount paid by the director or executive. Unlisted options are valued using the Black-Scholes methodology.

The Board policy is to remunerate non-executive directors at market rates for comparable companies taking into
consideration time, commitment and level of responsibility. As approved by shareholders in 30 November 2011,
the aggregate non-executive remuneration per annum is currently A$350,000 (US$291,472). The
Remuneration and Nomination Committee determines payments to the non-executive directors and reviews
their remuneration annually. Independent external advice is sought when required. Fees for non-executive
directors are not linked to the performance of the Group. The directors are not required to hold any shares in
the Company under the Constitution of the Company; however, to align Directors’ interests with shareholder
interests, the directors are encouraged to hold shares in the Company.

Options may be issued to directors and executives as part of remuneration. Options issued to directors have
historically not been based on performance criteria. However, the options issued to the current directors on 27
March 2015 principally vest upon satisfaction of set company performance criteria detailed in Note 32.

Under the Company’s share trading policy, all employees and directors of the Company and its related
companies are prohibited from trading in the Company’s shares or other securities if they are in possession of
inside information.

The Board believes that it has implemented suitable practices and procedures that are appropriate for an
organisation of this size and maturity.

() Remuneration Committee
During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group did not have a separately established nomination or

remuneration committee. Considering the number of directors, the Board was of the view that these functions
could be efficiently
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(b)

REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED) (continued)

performed with full Board participation. In line with the enhanced corporate governance processes
implemented, a Remuneration Committee was established in the year.

(ii) Company Performance, Shareholder Wealth and Directors and Executives Remuneration

No relationship exists between shareholder wealth, director and executive remuneration and Company
performance.

(iii) Use of remuneration consultants

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Group contracted the service of a remuneration consultant, The
Curzon partnership, to provide market comparison for executive and non-executive remuneration. The fee for
this service was GB£480.

(iv) Voting and comments made at the company’s 2014 Annual General Meeting

Range Resources Limited received 77% of “yes” votes on its remuneration report for the 2014 financial year.
During the year the company received feedback from certain shareholders that the level of Director
remuneration was excessive for a company of Range’s current scale and financial position. This was evidenced
by the vote at the AGM regarding an increase in the Non-Executive Director fee pool where 83% of votes cast
were against the resolution. In response to shareholder feedback the company has reviewed its remuneration
practices and the remuneration for the current board has been set at a significantly lower level than in previous
years.

Key Management Personnel

NAME POSITION HELD APPOINTMENT/RESIGNATION DATE
Directors

Mr David Yu Chen Non-Executive Chairman appointed 30 November 2014

Ms Juan Wang Non-Executive Director appointed 30 November 2014

Mr Yan Liu Executive Director appointed 11 December 2014

Mr Zhiwei Gu Non-Executive Director appointed 11 December 2014

Sir Samuel Jonah Non-Executive Chairman resigned 28 November 2014

Mr Rory Scott Russell Executive Director appointed 3 Feb 2014, not re-elected 28

Mr Marcus Edwards-Jones
Dr Christian Bukovics

Mr Graham Lyon

Mr lan Macliver

Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

November 2014

not re-elected 28 November 2014
appointed 3 Feb 2014, not re-elected 28
November 2014

appointed 3 Feb 2014, not re-elected 28
November 2014

resigned 13 Aug 2014

Mr lan Olson Non-Executive Director appointed 18 Aug 2014, resigned 11
December 2014

Officers

Mr Nick Beattie CFO & Company Secretary appointed 23 May 2014 (as CFO) and 30
March 2015 (as Company Secretary)

Ms Sara Kelly Company Secretary resigned 21 Jul 2014, re-appointed 7
January 2015

Ms Rebecca Sandford Company Secretary resigned 30 March 2015

Ms Amy Just Company Secretary appointed 21 Jul 2014, resigned 11
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED) (continued)
(c)  Details of Remuneration

The remuneration for the Key Management Personnel of the Group during the year was as follows:

Post Share-
Short-Term Employee Benefits Employment based
Benefits Payments
— Super-
Cash Salary Cash Termination . .
2015 ) annuation/ Options Total
and Fees Bonus Benefits Pensions

us$ us$ us$ Us$ uss$ Us$
Directors & officers
Sir Sam Jonah 37,609 - - - - 37,609
Mr Scott Russell 103,137 - 150,253 - - 253,390
Mr Beattie 228,342 - - 28,152 - 256,494
Mr Edwards-Jones 37,609 - - - - 37,609
Mr Macliver 5,584 - - - - 5,584
Mr Lyon (i) 50,093 - - - - 50,093
Dr Bukovics 37,889 - - - - 37,889
Mr Riekie (ii) 45,836 - - - - 45,836
Mr Olson 21,265 - - - - 21,265
Mr Chen 88,710 - - - 34,186 122,896
Mr Liu 86,418 - - - 34,186 120,604
Ms Wang 19,152 - - - 8,546 27,698
Mr Gu 16,694 - - - 8,546 25,240

778,338 - 150,253 28,152 85,464 1,042,207

(i) Fees paid to Mr Lyon comprised US$37,299 received in his capacity as a non-executive director and US$12,794 received for
additional consulting work.

(i)  Fees paid to Mr Rieke comprised US$31,416 received in his capacity as a non-executive director and US$14,420 received for
additional consulting work.

Short-Term Employee Post Share-based
Benefits Employment Payments
Benefits
Cash
Cash Super- .

2014 ar?jlgzes Bonus annuation Options Total
us$ us$ uss$ Us$ us$

Directors & officers
Sir Sam Jonah 91,473 - - - 91,473
Mr Scott Russell (iii) 116,064 84,042 - 35414 235,520
Mr Beattie (iii) 30,593 33,235 - 11,069 74,897
Mr Edwards-Jones 91,473 - - - 91,473
Mr Lyon 105,536 - - - 105,536
Dr Bukovics 43,024 - - 1,816 44,840
Mr Macliver - - - - -
Mr Riekie - - - - -
Mr Landau® 329,268 - - - 329,268
Mr Eastman 223,151 - - - 223,151
Ms Flegg @ - - - - -
1,030,582 117,277 - 48,299 1,196,158

(i) Fees paid to Mr Landau comprised US$289,268 received in his capacity as an executive director and US$40,000 received in his
capacity as a non-executive director

(i) Ms Flegg was an employee of OKAP ventures Pty Ltd (a Related Party) and was paid a salary through Okap’s consulting
agreement with Range Resources Limited. This consulting agreement was terminated in the 2015 financial year.

(iiy  Cash bonuses paid to Mr Scott Russell and Mr Beattie were in respect of sign on bonuses in accordance with their respective
employment contracts and were not linked to Company or Group performance.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED) (continued)
(d) Equity instrument disclosures relating to Key Management Personnel
()  Share-based Payments

On 27 March 2015, the following options were issued to key management personnel:

Name Number of options
Mr Yan Liu 30,000,000

Mr David Chen 30,000,000

Mr Zhiwei Gu 7,500,000

Ms Juan Wang 7,500,000

Al options expire on 30 March 2020 with an exercise price of £0.01 per share.
The vesting conditions of these options are as follows:

(a) 25% will become exercisable on the date that is one year from the issue date

(b) 25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 1,500 barrels of oil per day for a continuous
15 day period in Trinidad

(c) 25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 2,500 barrels of oil per day for a continuous
15 day period in Trinidad

(d) 25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 4,000 barrels of oil per day for a continuous
15 day period in Trinidad

The value per option at the grant date was 0.51 cents, determined using the Black Scholes option price model using
the following key inputs:

Volatility: 100% Grant date: 27 March 2015
Risk free rate: 1.92% Exercise price: £0.01
USD/GBP exchange rate: 0.7752 Share price on grant date £0.054

In 2014, no options were issued to Directors or employees.
(i) Shares provided on exercise of remuneration options

No options issued in prior years affects remuneration in the current or future financial years.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED) (continued)

(i)

Fully paid share holdings

The numbers of shares in the company held during the financial year or at time of resignation by Key
Management Personnel of the Company, including their personally related parties, are set out below.

Shareholdings
2015 Balance at Granted as Other Balance at Balance
the start of  compensation changes the end of held
the year the year indirectly

Sir Sam Jonah (i)/(ii) 21,597,833 - - 21,597,833 -
Mr Scott Russell (i) - - - - -
Mr Beattie - - - - -
Mr Edwards-Jones (i)/(ii) 3,531,522 - - 3,531,522 -
Mr Macliver - - - -
Dr Bukovics (i)/(ii) 280,000 - - 280,000 -
Mr Lyon (i) - - - - -
Mr Riekie (iii) - - - -
Mr Olson (iii) - - - - -
Mr Chen(iv) 4,288,070 - 6,000,000 10,288,070 -
Mr Liu - - - - -
Ms Wang - - - -
Mr Gu - - - -
Total 29,697,425 - 6,000,000 35,697,425 -

(i) Not re-elected 28 November 2014

(i) Balance at date of non re-election

(iii) Resigned 11 December 2014

(iv) Balance at appointment date

Partly paid shareholdings (Note 26c¢)

The numbers of shares in the company held during the financial year or at time of resignation by Key
Management Personnel of the Company, including their personally related parties, are set out below.

Partly paid shareholdings
2015 Balance at Granted Cancelled Balance at  Balance held
the start of as in year the end of indirectly
the year compensation the year
Mr Edwards-Jones 750,000 (750,000) -
Total 750,000 (750,000) -
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED) (continued)

vi) Options held by key management personnel

The numbers of options in the company held during the financial year or at time of resignation by Key
Management Personnel of the Company, including their personally related parties, are set out below:

Options

2015 Balance at the Granted as Other Balance at the

start of the compensation Changes* end of the year
year

Mr Chen - 30,000,000 42,742,654 72,742,654

Mr Liu - 30,000,000 - 30,000,000

Ms Wang - 7,500,000 - 7,500,000

Mr Gu - 7,500,000 - 7,500,000

Total - 75,000,000 42,742,654 117,742,654

*lssued prior to appointment as director.

(e) Loans to Key Management Personnel

There were no loans made to directors of Range Resources Limited and other Key Management Personnel of the
Group, including their personally related parties during the 2014 or 2015 financial years.

) Transactions with Key Management Personnel

The following transactions occurred during the year with Key Management Personnel or their related parties:

2015 2014
Us$ Us$
Consulting fees paid or payable to OKAP Ventures Pty Ltd., a company in which Mr Landau is a
Director, for the provision of corporate advisory, capita raising, company secretarial,
investor/public relations and associated services including provision of all financial and
administrative staff and office space in west Perth and London (iii) - 780,718
Balances at year end due to former key management personnel:
Sir Sam Jonah (i) 191,440 219,661
Marcus Edwards-Jones (i) 33,566 33,419
Soncer Limited (i) 18,442 -
Anthony Eastman (iii) 169,280 221,063
OKAP Ventures Pty Ltd payable (iii) 64,579 79,585
Doull Holdings Pty Ltd payable (in respect of Peter Landau Director fees) (iii) 165,403 181,612
(i) These were related parties throughout the financial year until 28 November 2014.
(i) David Riekie was a related party throughout the financial year until 11 December 2014,
(ii) Related party until 13 June 2014
Annual report 2015 Range Resources Limited and Controlled Entities
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED) (continued)

(9

Employment Contracts of Directors and Other Key Management Personnel

On appointment, Executive Directors and Other Key Management Personnel enter into an employment contract
with the Company (or another company within the Group). This contract sets out their duties, remuneration and
other terms of employment. These contracts may be terminated by either the Company or the employee as
detailed below.

All non-executive directors are eligible to receive consulting fees for services provided to the Company over and
above the services expected from a non-executive director.

Sir Sam Jonah as Non-Executive Chairman (resigned 28 November 2014)

Contract term — 3 years from 1 July 2012

Base payment - AU$100,000 per annum

Superannuation — no superannuation entitlement

Notice period — 6 months

Termination benefits — payment for the balance of the term of the contract for termination without cause

Mr Rory Scott Russell as Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director (not re-elected 28 November
2014, CEO position terminated 4 December 2014)

Contract start date — 3 February 2014

Base payment - GB£150,000 per annum, reviewed annually

Pension — 10% of base

Bonus - eligible to receive bonuses are at the discretion of the Board

Notice period - first 12 months — 3 months, thereafter 6 months

Termination benefits — payment in lieu of notice at Company option for termination without cause

Mr Nick Beattie as Chief Financial Officer

Contract start date — 23 May 2014

Base payment - GB£135,000 per annum, reviewed annually
Pension — 10% of base

Bonus - eligible to receive bonuses at the discretion of the Board
Notice period — 3-6 months

Termination benefits — 6 months’ salary

Mr Marcus Edwards-Jones as Non-Executive Director (not re-elected 28 November 2014)

Contract term — 3 years from 15 August 2012

Base payment - AU$100,000 per annum

Superannuation — no superannuation entitlement

Notice period — 6 months

Termination benefits — payment for the balance of the term of the contract for termination without cause

Mr Graham Lyon as Non-Executive Director (not re-elected 28 November 2014)

Contract term — 3 years from 1 February 2014

Base payment - GB£55,000 per annum

Notice period — 3 months

Termination benefits — payment for the balance of the term of the contract

Consulting services — Mr Lyon may provide additional consulting services over and above services rendered to
the Company as a non-executive director from time to time as required at a rate of GB£2,000 per day.

Dr Christian Bukovics as Non-Executive Director (not re-elected 28 November 2014)

Contract term — 3 years from 3 February 2014

Base payment - GB£55,000 per annum

Notice period — 3 months

Termination benefits — payment for the balance of the term of the contract for termination without cause
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED) (continued)

Mr David Riekie as Non-Executive Director (resigned 11 December 2014)

Contract start date — 27 June 2014

Base payment - AU$72,000 per annum

Superannuation — no superannuation entitlement

Termination benefits — none

Consulting services — Mr Riekie may provide additional consulting services over and above services rendered to
the Company as a non-executive director from time to time as required at a rate of AU$1,400 per day.

Mr lan Olson as Non-Executive Director (resigned 11 December 2014)
Appointment date —18 August 2014

Base payment - AU$72,000 per annum

Superannuation — no superannuation entitlement

Termination benefits — none

Mr lan Macliver as Non-Executive Director (resigned 13 August 2014)
Contract start date 27 June 2014

Base payment - AU$72,000 per annum

Superannuation — no superannuation entitlement

Termination benefits — none

Mr David Chen as Non-Executive Chairman (appointed 30 November 2014)

Contract start date —11 December 2014

Total compensation including management services - US$155,000 per annum

Superannuation — no superannuation entitlement

Notice period — 3 months

Termination benefits — payment in lieu of notice at Company option for termination without cause

Mr Yan Liu as Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director (appointed 11 December 2014)
Contract start date —11 December 2014

Base payment - US$155,000 per annum

Superannuation — no superannuation entitlement

Notice period — 3 months

Termination benefits — payment in lieu of notice at Company option for termination without cause

Ms Juan (Kiki) Wang as Non-Executive Director (appointed 30 November 2014)
Contract start date —19 January 2015

Base payment - US$30,000 per annum

Superannuation — no superannuation entitlement

Termination benefits — none

Mr Zhiwei (Kerry) Gu as Non-Executive Director (appointed 11 December 2014)
Contract start date —19 January 2015

Base payment - US$30,000 per annum

Superannuation — no superannuation entitlement

Termination benefits — none

End of Audited Remuneration Report
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MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

During the financial year 11 meetings of the board of directors were held. Attendances by each director during the year
were as follows:

Board Meetings
Director Attended Attended

David Chen (appointed 30 Nov 2014)
Juan Wang (appointed 30 Nov 2014)

Yan Liu (appointed 11 Dec 2014)

Zhiwei Gu (appointed 11 Dec 2014)
Samuel Jonah (resigned 28 Nov 2014)
Marcus Edwards-Jones (not re-elected 28
Nov 2014)

Rory Scott Russell (not re-elected 28 Nov 5 5
2014)

Graham Lyon (not re-elected 28 Nov 2014) 5 5
Christian Bukovics (not re-elected 28 Nov 5 5
2014)

lan Macliver (resigned 13 Aug 2014)

David Riekie (resigned 11 Dec 2014)

lan Olson (appointed 18 Aug 2014, resigned
11 Dec 2014)

AR NONAO
AR NONBAO

o 00 —
oo

INDEMNIFYING OFFICERS OR AUDITOR

In accordance with the constitution, except where prohibited by the Corporations Act 2001, every director, principal
executive officer and secretary of the Company shall be indemnified out of the property of the Company against any
liability incurred by him/her in his/her capacity as director, principal executive officer or secretary of the Company or any
related corporation in respect of any act or omission whatsoever and howsoever occurring or in defending any
proceedings whether civil or criminal.

During the financial year, the Company has paid premiums to insure the Directors and Officers against certain liabilities
arising out of the conduct of acting as an officer of the Company. Under the terms and conditions of the insurance
contract, the nature of liabilities insured against and the premium paid cannot be disclosed.

PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF THE COMPANY

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or to intervene in any
proceedings to which the Company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company for all or
any part of those proceedings.

The Company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.
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OPTIONS

At the date of this report, the unissued ordinary shares of Range Resources Limited under option are as follows:

Date of Expiry Exercise Price Number Under Option

31 January 2016 $0.05 80,508,341 listed
30 April 2016 £0.17 7,058,824 unlisted
31 January 2017 £0.075 5,180,000 unlisted
19 October 2015 £0.0615 15,708,801 unlisted
30 November 2015 £0.05075 32,275,862 unlisted
31 January 2016 A$0.10 5,000,000 unlisted
10 February 2016 A$0.06 5,000,000 unlisted
30 April 2016 £0.04 146,533,850 unlisted
11 July 2016 £0.037 5,000,000 unlisted
25 July 2016 £0.021 476,190 unlisted
29 July 2016 £0.021 952,381 unlisted
31 August 2016 £0.021 6,714,284 unlisted
31 August 2016 £0.020 9,000,000 unlisted
30 September 2016 £0.019 3,947,369 unlisted
30 September 2016 £0.018 8,666,670 unlisted
31 October 2016 £0.018 694,445 unlisted
31 October 2016 £0.017 2,205,885 unlisted
31 October 2016 £0.016 1,250,000 unlisted
31 October 2016 £0.015 17,333,336 unlisted
30 November 2016 £0.015 3,000,001 unlisted
30 November 2016 £0.013 5,153,846 unlisted
11 December 2016 $0.0321 2,000,000 unlisted
31 December 2016 £0.012 2,000,000 unlisted
31 December 2016 £0.011 5,000,000 unlisted
31 January 2017 £0.011 23,636,364 unlisted
9 September 2017 £0.03 7,500,000 unlisted
14 July 2018 £0.01 161,472,247 unlisted
14 July 2018 £0.02 118,729,593 unlisted
31 January 2018 $0.05 1,000,000 unlisted
15 October 2017 £0.01203 31,000,000 unlisted
30 March 2020 £0.01 75,000,000 unlisted

788,998,289

During the year ended 30 June 2015, 49,051,468 ordinary shares of Range Resources Limited were issued on the
exercise of options (2014: 70,833,334). The holders of these options do not have any rights under the options to
participate in any share issues of the company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In recognising the need for the highest standards of corporate behaviour and accountability, the directors of Range
Resources Limited support and have adhered to the principles of Corporate Governance.

NON-AUDIT SERVICES

The total value of non-audit services provided by a related practice of BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd in respect to the
Company’s tax compliance is US$63,217 (2014: US$47,998).

The board of directors has considered the position and is satisfied that the provision of the non-audit services is
compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The
directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services by the auditor did not compromise the auditor
independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 for the following reasons:

e all non-audit services have been reviewed by the Board to ensure they do not impact the impartiality and
objectivity of the auditor; and
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e none of the services undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set out in APES
110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants.

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

The auditor's independence declaration, as required under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, for the year
ended 30 June 2015 has been received and can be found on the following page.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

S

David Chen
Chairman
30 September 2015
Annual report 2015 Range Resources Limited and Controlled Entities
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Tel: +61 8 6382 4600 38 Station Street
B D Fax: +61 8 6382 4601 Subiaco, WA 6008
www.bdo.com.au PO Box 700 West Perth WA 6872

A— -
Australia

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY JARRAD PRUE TO THE DIRECTORS OF RANGE RESOURCES
LIMITED

As lead auditor of Range Resources Limited for the year ended 30 June 2015, | declare that, to the best
of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

1. No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

2. No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Range Resources Limited and the entities it controlled during the
period.

1772

Jarrad Prue

Director

BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd
Perth, 30 September 2015

BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd ABN 79 112 284 787 is a member of a national association of independent entities which are all members of BDO Australia Ltd ABN
77 050 110 275, an Australian company limited by guarantee. BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd and BDO Australia Ltd are members of BDO International Ltd, a UK
company limited by guarantee, and form part of the international BDO network of independent member firms. Liability limited by a scheme approved under
Professional Standards Legislation, other than for the acts or omissions of financial services licensees.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Note Consolidated

2015 2014

us$ Us$
Revenue from continuing operations 3 13,152,954 21,185,745
Operating expenses (6,440,734) (9,549,610)
Royalties (4,654,241) (7,353,237)
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation (4,917,053) (7,909,945)
Cost of sales 4a (16,012,028) (24,812,792)
Gross loss (2,859,074) (3,627,047)
Other income and expenses from continuing operations
Other income 3 428,588 1,221,108
Finance costs 4b (4,347,575) (21,797,779)
General and administration expenses 4b (9,948,494) (14,485,854)
Assets written-off 4c (692,929) (24,267,968)
Exploration expenditure and land fees 4d (2,202,748) (1,163,920)
Loss on disposal of subsidiary 4e (1,491,857) -
Share of net loss of investments in associates 19 - (659,400)
Loss before income tax expense from continuing operations (21,114,089) (64,780,860)
Income tax expense 6 (1,467,806) (906,620)
Loss after income tax from continuing operations (22,581,895) (65,687,480)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax 5a (7,697,159) (36,854,510)
Loss for the year attributable to equity holders of Range
Resources Limited (30,279,054) (102,541,990)
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Revaluation of available for sale financial assets 27d - 325,263
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 27c 455,307 (411,110)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax 455,307 (85,847)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to equity holders of
Range Resources Limited (29,823,747) (102,627,837)
Loss per share from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company:
Basic loss per share (cents per share) 8a (0.44) (1.85)
Diluted loss per share (cents per share) 8b n/a n/a
Loss per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company:
Basic loss per share (cents per share) 8a (0.59) (2.89)
Diluted loss per share (cents per share) 8b n/a n/a

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with
the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other current assets

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Deferred tax asset

Available for sale financial assets
Goodwill

Property, plant and equipment
Exploration & evaluation expenditure
Producing assets

Investments in associates

Other non-current assets

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables
Current tax liabilities

Borrowings

Option liability

Provisions

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities

Employee service benefits

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
EQUITY

Contributed equity
Reserves

Accumulated losses

TOTAL EQUITY

AS AT 30 JUNE 2015

Note

10
1

12

13
15
16
17
18
19
20

21

22a
22b
23

24
25a

26
27

Consolidated

2015 2014

us$ us$
10,530,104 2,977,410
5,148,978 5,338,769
783,385 728,544
16,462,467 9,044,723
6,000,000 11,000,000
22,462,467 20,044,723
286,693 462,325
446,000 876,347
46,198,974 46,198,974
1,502,442 11,254,269
668,951 523,605
90,350,492 82,517,820
- 2,779,476
1,500,000
139,453,552 146,112,816
161,916,019 166,157,539
13,654,195 8,705,005
296,894 310,335
7,518,077 -
808,083 2,189,913
734,858 696,244
23,012,107 11,901,497
43,359,199 44,376,033
521,257 584,746
43 880,456 44,960,779
66,892,563 56,862,276
95,023,456 109,295,263
363,205,277 352,599,569
29,748,880 27,862,006
(297,930,701) (271,166,312)
95,023,456 109,295,263

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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FOR YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers and employees

Payments for exploration and evaluation expenditure
Income taxes paid

Interest received

Interest & other finance costs

Net cash outflow from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment for property, plant & equipment

Proceeds from sale of available for sale financial assets
Payment for producing assets

Payment to investments in associates

Payments for exploration and evaluation assets

Proceeds from sale of assets held-for-sale

Receipts from loan repayments/(Loans to external parties)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of equity

Payment of equity issue costs

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Net cash inflow from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Net foreign exchange differences

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Note Consolidated
2015 2014
US$ USs$
13,313,284 21,786,510
(19,472,258) (19,638,193)
(392,219) (1,163,920)
(208,536) (2,236,840)
3,390 10,293
(198,925) (4,979,631)
31 (6,955,264) (6,221,781)
(1,576,298) (857,934)
450,643 -
(3,992,670) (3,146,149)
- (2,715,517)
(145,346) (683,887)
5,202,379 -
500,000 (700,000)
438,708 (8,103,487)
8,890,800 16,002,037
- (720,000)
5,250,000 16,407,790
- (16,119,380)
14,140,800 15,570,447
7,624,244 1,245,179
(71,550) -
2,977,410 1,732,231
9 10,530,104 2,977,410

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board and the Corporations Act 2001. Range Resources Limited is a for-profit entity for the purpose of preparing
the financial statements.

The financial statements cover the Group consisting of Range Resources Limited and its controlled entities. Separate financial
statements of Range Resources Limited are no longer presented as a result of a change to the Corporations Act 2001.
Financial information for Range Resources Limited as an individual entity is disclosed in Note 34. Range Resources Limited is
a listed public company, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by the Group in the preparation of the financial
statements. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation
Reporting Basis and Conventions

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs modified by the
revaluation of selected non-current assets, and financial assets and financial liabilities for which the fair value basis of
accounting has been applied.

Compliance with IFRS

The financial statements of Range Resources Limited also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). The financial statements were approved by the Board of
Directors on 29 September 2015.

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the “Functional Currency’). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in United States Dollars (USD), which is Range Resources Limited’s functional and presentation currency.

Going Concern

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis, which contemplates continuity of normal
business activities and the realisation of assets and discharge of liabilities in the normal course of business.

As disclosed in the financial statements, the Group incurred losses of US$30,279,054 for the year ending 30 June 2015. The
Group also had net cash outflows from operating and investing activities for the year totalling US$6,516,556, and a net current
liability position (excluding assets held for sale) of US$6,549,639.

As announced on 3 September 2015, post year end, the Group received Tranche 2 subscription proceeds of US$22.1 million
in cash from Sibo financing. This was the final cash receipt following the issue of 1,822,620,912 new ordinary shares to Beijing
Sibo Investment Management LP. In addition to this, on 11 December 2014 Range announced a proposed US$50m trade
financing with Sinosure. These funding arrangements are more than sufficient to cover Range’s cash requirements for the 12
months from date of sign-off.

The Company will seek to rationalise the portfolio of non-core assets and redeploy capital to maximise current production from
its core assets in Trinidad and pursue growth opportunities that enhance cash generation and returns to shareholders.

The financial report does not include any adjustments relating to the amounts or classification of recorded assets or liabilities
that might be necessary if the Group does not continue as a going concern.

Adoption of new and revised accounting standards

In the current year, the Group has adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current annual reporting period.
The group has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing
1 July 2014:
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Note 1:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 — Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

AASB 2013-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

Interpretation 21 Accounting for Levies

AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards

The adoption of these standards did not have any significant impact on the current period or any prior period and is not likely to
affect future periods.

The impact of standards and interpretations that have been published but are not mandatory for 30 June 2015 reporting
periods and have not been early adopted are disclosed within note 39. There were no standards that were early adopted as of
30 June 2015.

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated financial
statements, and have been applied consistently by the Group.

(a)

(b)

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Range Resources
Limited (“Parent Entity” or “Company”) as at 30 June 2015 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended.
Range Resources Limited and its subsidiaries together are referred to as the “Group”.

Subsidiaries are all those entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its investment with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.

Where controlled entities have entered or left the Group during the year, their operating results have been
included/excluded from the date control was obtained or until the date control ceased. A list of controlled entities is
contained in Note 14 to the financial statements. All controlled entities have a June financial year-end.

All inter-company balances and transactions between entities in the Group, including any unrealised profits or
losses, have been eliminated on consolidation. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistencies with those policies applied by the Company.

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20-50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at
cost.

Income tax

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any non-assessable or
disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or are substantively enacted by the reporting
date within each jurisdiction.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be
recognised from the initial recognition of an asset or liability, excluding a business combination, where there is no
effect on accounting or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in profit or loss except where it relates to items that may be credited directly
to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Note 1:

(c)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the assumption that no
adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation that the Group will derive sufficient future
assessable income to enable the benefit to be realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the
law.

Property, plant and equipment
Owned assets
Plant and equipment are measured on the historical cost basis less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of fixed assets constructed within the Group includes the cost of materials, direct labour, borrowing costs and
an appropriate proportion of fixed and variable overheads.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Oil and gas assets

These properties represents the accumulation of all exploration, evaluation and development expenditure, pre-
production development costs and ongoing costs of continuing the develop reserves for production incurred by or on
behalf of the entity in relation to areas of interests.

Where further development expenditure is incurred in respect of a property after the commencement of production,
such expenditure is carried forward as part of the cost of that property only when expected future economic benefits
are to be received, otherwise such expenditure is classified as part of the cost of production.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including capitalised lease assets is depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their useful lives to the Group commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold
improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives
of the improvements.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are:
Class of Fixed Asset Depreciation Rate
Plant & equipment 11.25% - 33%
Production equipment 10 - 20%
Motor vehicles, furniture & fixtures 25-33%
Leasehold improvements 10 - 12.50%
The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by directors to ensure it is not in excess of the
recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash
flows which will be received from the asset’s employment and subsequent disposal. The expected net cash flows have
been discounted to their present values in determining recoverable amounts.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.
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Note 1:

(d)

(e)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains or
losses are included in profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, amounts included in the revaluation reserve
relating to that asset are transferred to accumulated losses.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure and the recognition of assets

Generally, exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred is accumulated in respect of each identifiable area of
interest. These costs are only carried forward to the extent that they are expected to be recouped through the
successful development of the area or where activities in the area have not yet reached a stage that permits
reasonable assessment of the existence of economically recoverable reserves.

Accumulated costs in relation to an abandoned area are written off in full against profit in the year in which the
decision to abandon the area is made.

A regular review is undertaken of each area of interest to determine the appropriateness of continuing to carry
forward costs in relation to that area of interest.

The recoverability of the carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation assets is dependent on the successful
development and commercial exploitation, or alternatively, sale of the respective areas of interest.

The carrying values of expenditures carried forward are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date when the
facts, events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Accumulated expenditures are written off to profit or loss to the extent to which they are considered to be impaired.

Range Resources Limited is applying AASB 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources which is
equivalent to IFRS 6. The carrying value of exploration and evaluation expenditure is historical cost less impairment.

It's the Group’s policy to capitalise exploration expenditure for all areas of interest apart from those in Somalia and
Colombia. Exploration costs incurred in respect of the Group’s Somalian and Colombian interests are expensed as
incurred.

Producing assets

Upon the commencement of commercial production from each identifiable area of interest, the exploration and
evaluation expenditure incurred up to that point is impairment tested and then reclassified to producing assets.

When production commences, the accumulated costs for the relevant area of interest are amortised on a units of
production method based on the ratio of actual production to remaining proved reserves (P1) as estimated by
independent petroleum engineers over the life of the area according to the rate of depletion of the economically
recoverable reserves.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit and loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

The carrying amount of producing assets is reviewed annually by directors to ensure it is not in excess of the
recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and its value in use. In assessing value in use, an asset’s estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a post-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent from other
assets or groups of assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs. For producing assets, the estimated future cash flows for the value-in-use calculation are based on
estimates, the most significant of which are 2P hydrocarbon reserves, future production profiles, commodity prices,
operating costs and any future development costs necessary to produce the reserves. Under a fair value less costs to
sell calculation, future cash flows are based on estimates of 2P hydrocarbon reserves. Estimates of future commodity
prices are based on the Group’s best estimate of future market prices with reference to external market analysts’
forecasts, current spot prices and forward curves. Future commodity prices are reviewed at least annually.
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Note 1:

(f)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains or
losses are included in profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, amounts included in the revaluation reserve
relating to that asset are transferred to accumulated losses.

The Group records the present value of the estimated cost of legal and constructive obligations to restore operating
locations in the period in which the obligation arises. The nature of restoration activities includes the removal of
facilities, abandonment of wells and restoration of affected areas. A restoration provision is recognised and updated at
different stages of the development and construction of a facility and then reviewed on an annual basis. When the
liability is initially recorded, the estimated cost is capitalised by increasing the carrying amount of the related
exploration and evaluation/development assets.

Over time, the liability is increased for the change in the present value based on a post-tax discount rate appropriate
to the risk inherent in the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recorded as an accretion charge within finance
costs. The carrying amount capitalised in oil and gas properties is depreciated over the useful life of the related
asset.

Costs incurred that relate to an existing condition caused by past operation and do not have a future economic
benefit are expensed.

Financial instruments

The Group’s financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets.

Recognition

Financial instruments are initially measured at cost on trade date, which includes transaction costs, when the related
contractual rights or obligations exist. Subsequent to initial recognition, these instruments are measured as set out
below.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans and receivables and available-for-sale
investments. The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market and are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include non-derivative financial assets designated in this category not included in
any of the other categories. Available-for-sale financial assets are reflected at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value are taken directly to the available for sale investment revaluation reserve in equity.
Investments are designated as available-for-sale if they do not have fixed maturities and fixed determinable payments
and management intends to hold them for the medium to long term.

Fair value

Fair value is determined based on current bid prices for all quoted investments. Valuation techniques are applied to
determine the fair value for all unlisted securities held at cost less impairment, including recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to similar instruments and option pricing models.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale
are analysed between franslation differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security. The translation differences related to changes in the amortised cost
are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in the available for sale
investment revaluation reserve in equity. Changes in the fair value of other monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in equity.
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(9)

(h)

(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Note 1:  Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of a security below its cost is considered an indicator that the securities are impaired. If any
such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
profit or loss — is removed from equity and included in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are not reversed
through profit or loss.

Recognition and de-recognition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date — the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. Financial assets
are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and reward of ownership.

When the securities classified as available-for-sale are sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in
equity are included in profit or loss as gains and losses for investment securities.

Foreign currency transactions and balances
Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each entity within the Group is determined using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which that entity operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in United States
dollars which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transaction and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the year-end exchange rate. Non-monetary
items measured at historical cost continue to be carried at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value are reported at the exchange rate at the date when fair values were
determined.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items are recognised directly in equity to the extent
that the gain or loss is directly recognised in equity; otherwise the exchange difference is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make good obligations are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects the current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of financial position.
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Note 1:
)]

(k)

(1)

(m)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Trade receivables are generally due for settlement within 30
days.

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are
written off by reducing the carrying amount directly. An allowance account (provision for impairment of trade
receivables) is used when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due,
according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days
overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of impairment allowance is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the original effective interest rate. Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted if the effect of
discounting is immaterial.

The amount of impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss within other expenses. When a trade receivable, for
which an impairment allowance had been recognised, becomes uncollectible in a subsequent period, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against other
expenses in profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are
net of returns, trade allowances, rebates and amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue is recognised
when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
Group.

Revenue from the sale of oil and gas and related products is recognised when the Group has transferred to the buyer
the significant risks and rewards of ownership and the amounts can be measured reliably. In the case of oil, this
usually occurs at the time of lifting.

Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the interest rates applicable to the
financial assets.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred
is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense. Receivables and payables in the statement of financial
position are shown inclusive of GST.

Cash flows are presented in the consolidated statement of cash flows on a gross basis, except for the GST
component of investing and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows.

Comparative figures

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in
presentation for the current financial year.
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Note 1:
(n)

(0)

(p)

(a)

(r)

(s)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement for
disclosure purposes.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and
available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions
that are based on market conditions existing at each reporting date.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair
values due to their short-term nature. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash follows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group for
similar financial instruments.

Investments in associates

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting in the consolidated financial
statements.

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate is carried in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise any additional
impairment loss with respect to the Group’s net investment in the associate.

The Group's share of the associate post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group's share of losses in the associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any unsecured long-term receivables and loans, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The reporting dates of the associate and the Group are identical and the associate’s accounting policies conform to
those used by the Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Prepayments for investments
Prepayments for acquisitions of financial assets are recorded at the fair value of consideration to acquire the assets.

On satisfaction of all terms of the acquisition contract have been satisfied the prepayment is transferred and accounted
for as an investment.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the financial year but not distributed at reporting date.

Contributed equity

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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Note 1:
(t)

(u)

(v)

(w)

(x)

(y)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity holders of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the year.

(ii) - Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting to the chief operating decision
maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the managing director.

Impairment of assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which they are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Intangible assets (goodwill)

Goodwill is measured as described in note 1(v). Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible
assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those
cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in
which the goodwill arose, identified according to operating segments (note 30).

Share-based payments

The fair value of options granted is recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted, which includes any market
performance conditions and the impact of any non-vesting conditions but excludes the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions.

Employee benefits

Wages and salaries and annual leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits are recognised in current liabilities in respect of
employees’ services up to the reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled.

Long service leave

The liability for long service leave is recognised in current and non-current liabilities, depending on the unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. The liability is measured as the
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the
reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary
levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service.
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Note 1:
(2)

(aa)

(bb)

(cc)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset
or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

A distinction is made between finance leases, which effectively transfer from the lessor to the lessee substantially all
the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of leased assets, and operating leases, under which the lessor
effectively retains substantially all such risks and benefits.

Finance leases are capitalised. A lease asset and liability are established at the fair value of the leased assets, or if
lower, the present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are allocated between the principal
component of the lease liability and the finance costs, so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability.

Leased assets acquired under a finance lease are depreciated over the asset’s useful life or over the shorter of the
asset's useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that the company will obtain ownership at the
end of the lease term.

Operating lease payments, net of any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.

Borrowings

Loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, net of transaction costs.
They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Where there is an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date,
the loans or borrowings are classified as non-current.

Compound Financial Instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group comprise convertible notes that can be converted to ordinary
shares at the option of the holder, when the number of shares to be issued is fixed.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is recognised initially at the fair value of a similar liability
that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity component is recognised initially at the difference between
the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component. Any
directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to their initial
carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The equity component of a compound financial instrument is not remeasured
subsequent to initial recognition.

Interest related to the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss. On conversion the financial liability is reclassified
to equity and no gain or loss is recognised.

Convertible notes that can be converted to share capital at the option of the holder and where the number of shares is
variable, contains an embedded derivative liability. The embedded derivative liability is calculated (at fair value) first
and the residual value is assigned to the debt host contract. The embedded derivative is subsequently measured at
fair values and movements are reflected in the profit and loss.

Certain convertible notes issued by the Group which include embedded derivatives (option to convert to variable
number of shares in the Group are recognised as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. On initial
recognition, the fair value of the convertible note will equate to the proceeds received and subsequently the liability is
measured at fair value at each reporting period until settlement. The fair value movements are recognised on the
profit and loss as finance costs.

Finance costs

Finance costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the asset. All other finance costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(dd) Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. For non-current assets to be classified as held for sale, they must be available for immediate sale in
their present condition and their sale must be highly probable.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write down of the non-current assets to fair value less
costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of a non-current asset,
but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. Interest and other
expenses attributable to the liabilities of assets held for sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are presented separately on the face of the consolidated statement of
financial position, in current assets. The liabilities of disposal groups classified as held for sale are presented
separately on the face of the statement of financial position, in current liabilities.

(ee) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which:

- represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations

- is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical are of
operations.

- is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to re-sale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs at the earlier of disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to
be classified as held-for-sale.

When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income is re-presented as if the operation had been discontinued from the start of the
comparative year.

Note 2: Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The directors evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial statements based on historical knowledge and
best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current trends
and economic data, obtained both externally and within the Group. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where estimations and assumptions are significant to the financial statements are disclosed here.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure

Exploration and evaluation expenditure for each area of interest is carried forward as an asset provided certain conditions listed
in Note 1(d) are met. Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances suggest that
the carrying amount of an exploration and evaluation asset may exceed its recoverable amount. These calculations and reviews
require the use of assumptions and judgement. The related carrying amounts are disclosed in Note 17.

Producing asset expenditure

The classification of exploration and evaluation expenditure to producing assets is based on the time of first commercial
production. Producing asset expenditure for each area of interest is carried forward as an asset provided certain conditions listed
in Note 1(e) are met and depreciated on a unit of production basis on P1 reserves. P1 reserves have been determined by an
independent expert.

Producing assets are assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amount of a production
asset may exceed its recoverable amount. These timings, calculations and reviews require the use of assumptions and
judgement. The related carrying amounts are disclosed in Note 18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Note 2: Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
Investment in associate - LAR

In January 2013, Range acquired a stake in Citation Resources Limited (ASX: CTR) which held a 70% interest in Latin American
Resources (“LAR”). Subsequently, Range acquired a direct 20% interest in LAR.

As at 30 June 2014, Range had a 6.33% interest in CTR and CTR had a 60% interest in LAR. Combined with the direct
shareholding this gives Range an effective 24% interest in LAR, giving Range significance influence over the group. At 30 June
2014 the carrying value of the Group’s 20% interest in LAR has been impaired down to US$2,779,476 which represents the
Group’s share of 20% of LAR net assets — refer Note 19. The impairment recognised in relation to LAR at 30 June 2014 was
US$1,410,138, which is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income within assets
written-off.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the asset was written down by a further US$600,118 to a value of US$2,179,358 and
transferred to assets held for sale following the board’s decision to actively market the asset. Once transferred to held for sale, a
further write down of US$1,179,358 to US$1,000,000 was recognised

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

During the prior year, and given uncertainty over the counterparty’s ability to repay, a provision for impairment of US$2,489,443
was recognised in relation to miscellaneous other receivables totalling US$3,179,394. A further provision of $17,937 was
recognised in the current financial year.

Provision for impairment of other non-current receivable

In the year ended 30 June 2014, the Company recognised an impairment of US$7,354,469 with respect to the loan which had
been advanced to International Petroleum Limited, reducing the carrying value of the loan to US$1,500,000 at 30 June 2014 as
set out in note 20. US$500,000 of the balance was received in the year ended 30 June 2015, with the remaining balance
exchanged into equity in IOP with a carrying value of $346,000.

Impairment of goodwill and producing assets

The Group tests annually whether goodwill or the producing assets has suffered any impairment in accordance with the
accounting policies stated in notes 1(e) and 1(w). The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the assets
belong is estimated based on the present value of future cash flows. The expected future cash flow estimation is always based
on a number of factors, variables and assumptions, the most important of which are estimates of reserves, future production
profiles, commodity prices and costs. In most cases, the present value of future cash flows is most sensitive to estimates of
future oil price and discount rates. A change in the modelled assumptions in isolation could materially change the
recoverable amount. Refer to note 15 for details of these key assumptions.

Deferred tax liability

Upon acquisition of SOCA Petroleum Ltd, in accordance with the requirement of AASB 112 Income Taxes, a deferred tax liability
of US$46,979,878 was recognised in relation to the difference between the carrying amount for accounting purposes of deferred
development assets and their actual cost base for tax purposes. The carrying value of this deferred tax liability has reduced to
US$43,359,199 at 30 June 2015. In the event that the manner by which the carrying value of these assets is recovered differs
from that which is assumed for the purpose of this estimation, the associated tax charges may be significantly less than this
amount.

Impairment of assets held-for-sale

An impairment loss in respect of assets held-for-sale is generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. Impairment losses on initial classification as held-for-sale and subsequent gains and losses on re-
measurement are recognised in profit or loss. Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment are no longer amortised or depreciated, and any equity-accounted investee is no longer equity accounted.

During 2014, as part of the Company’s strategy to rationalise non-core assets, the Company committed to a plan to dispose its
shares in Strait Oil & Gas (UK) Limited (“Strait”).

In the current financial year, Range decided to actively market its Guatemalan assets for sale.

At 30 June 2015 impairment losses of US$34,281,987 and US$1,779,476 have been recognised in respect of Strait and the
Guatemalan asset, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Note 2: Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
Share based payments transactions

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled share-based payment transactions with employees by reference to the fair value
of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value is determined using a Black-Scholes model. The accounting estimates
and assumptions relating to equity-settled share-based payments would have no impact on the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next annual reporting period but may impact expenses and equity.

Classification of operations to discontinued

The assets classified as discontinued operations represent separate major lines of business and geographical areas of
operations.

Note 3: Revenue Consolidated
2015 2014
Us$ Us$
From continuing operations
—  revenue from sale of oil 13,152,954 21,185,745
Other income
— interest income (i) 3,390 1,217,890
—  otherincome 422,198 3,218

425,588 1,221,108

(i) 2014 figure relates primarily to the loan facility and interest revenue as per final settlement agreement between
Citation Resources Ltd and the Group.

Note 4: Expenses Consolidated
2015 2014
Us$ us$
Loss before income tax includes the following specific expenses:
(a) Cost of sales
—  Costs of production 3,125,464 4,705,948
— Royalties 4,654,241 7,353,237
—  Staff costs 3,315,271 4,843,662
— Oil and gas properties depreciation, depletion and amortisation 1,781,212 1,687,468
—  Amortisation in relation to fair value uplift of oil properties on
business combination 3,135,840 6,222 477
16,012,028 24,812,792
(b) Expenses
Finance costs
— Interest and premium paid on financial liabilities at fair value 2,550,028 11,199,869
—  Fair value movement of option liability (127,883)
—  Facility fees settled in shares 1,675,637 2,123,709
—  Loss on equity swap - 3,494,570
— Interest expense 349,793 2,902,249
—  Corporate advisory fee - 2,077,382
Total finance costs 4,347,575 21,797,779
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Note 4: Expenses (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

General and administration expenses

—  Consultants

—  Other expenses

—  Share based payments

—  Share based payments —employee and consultant shares
—  Foreign exchange (gain)/loss

— Directors’ and officers’ fees and benefits

—  Travel expenditure

—  Legal fees

—  Corporate management services

— Insurance

—  Marketing and public relations

—  Share registry expenses and listing costs
— Audit fees

—  Depreciation

—  Loss on disposal of available for sale asset
— Taxation advice

Total general and administration expenses

Asset values written-down

Asset values written-down

—  Impairment of restricted deposits

—  Impairment of current receivables

—  Impairment of non-current receivables

—  Impairment of investment in associate

—  Impairment of Colombian exploration expenditure

— Impairment of investment in available for sale financial assets
Total assets written-down

Exploration Expenditure

Puntland

Trinidad (i)

Colombia

Total exploration expenses

Loss on disposal of subsidiary
Range Resources Drilling Limited
Total loss on disposal

Details of loss on sale of subsidiaries

Consideration received

Carrying amount of net assets sold
Loss on sale

Reclassification of FX reserve
Income tax expense on gain

Loss on sale
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1,964,024 3,421,400
1,205,399 1,597,262
2,157,037 1,673,558
580,455 -
(134,789) 1,468,581
999,571 1,115,524
585,994 1,113,233
552,459 1,293,946
303,327 780,718
259,384 568,931
200,134 461,902
402,824 655,537
271,754 225,040
1,192 62,224
496,958 -
102,771 47,998
9,948,494 14,485,854
- 3,480,000
17,937 2,489,443
20,992 6,549,517
- 1,410,138
- 9,613,918
654,000 724,952
692,929 24,267,968
314,982 1,163,920
1,810,529 -
77,237 -
2,202,748 1,163,920
1,491,857
1491857
4,870,000
6,319,358
(1,449,358)
(42,499)
(1,491,857)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Note 5: Discontinued operations
(i) Amounts expensed in the year in Trinidad relate to land fees in relation to Guayaguayare and St Mary’s for which the
company policy is to expense.

In 2013, the Company indicated that it was in the process of disposing of the Company’s North Chapman Ranch and East
Texas Cotton Valley assets hence the transfer from producing assets to assets classified as held-for-sale in that accounting
period. This sale was completed on 24 March 2015 through a disposal of Range Australia Resources (US) Limited.

During the 2014 financial year, the Company also committed to a plan to dispose its shares in the unlisted company Strait Oil
& Gas (UK) Limited, representing 45% of the shares on issue of Strait to place greater focus on the Group’s core producing
assets in Trinidad. This has been written down by a further US$5,000,000 in the current financial period (2014:
US$29,281,987) as Range continues to search for a buyer for the asset.

Impairment losses of US$6,779,476 (2014 - US$37,244,836) for write-downs of the disposal group to the lower of its carrying
amount and its recoverable amount have been included in loss on discontinued operations (see note 5a). The impairment
losses have been applied to reduce the carrying amount of the assets held-for-sale within the disposal group. There is no
cumulative income or expenses included in other comprehensive income relating to the disposal group.

2015 2014
us$ us$
(@) Results of discontinued operations
Revenue 238,194 553,965
Cost of sales (104,799) (97,652)
Asset write off (6,779,476) (37,244,836)
Other expenses (949,169) (610,285)
Results from operating activities (7,595,250) (37,398,808)
Income tax (expense)/benefit - 544,298
Results from operating activities, after tax (7,595,250) (36,854,510)
Loss on sale of subsidiary asset (101,909) -
Loss from discontinued operations (7,697,159) (36,854,510)

The loss from the discontinued operations of US$7,697,159 (2014: US$36,854,510) is attributable
entirely to the owners of the Company.

(b) Cash flows gained from/(used in) discontinued operations
Net cash used in operating activities (801,003) (2,069,088)
Net cash flow for the year (801,003) (2,069,088)

(c) Details of sale of Range Australia Resources (US) Limited

Consideration received

-Cash 389,172
-Debts forgiven 147,311
-Shares 155,885
Total disposal consideration 692,368
Less: Carrying amount of net assets sold (794,277)
Loss on sale (101,909)
Income tax expense on gain -
Loss on sale (101,909)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015
Note 6: Income Tax Expense
Consolidated
2015 2014
us$ Us$
(a) Income tax expense
Current tax 624,618 1,753,045
Deferred tax 843,188 (865,005)
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods - (525,718)
1,467,806 362,322
Income tax expense/(benefit) is attributable to:
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations 1,467,806 906,618
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations - (544,296)
Aggregate income tax expense 1,467,806 362,322
(b) The prima facie tax on profit from ordinary
activities before income tax is reconciled to
the income tax as follows: (28,811,248) (102,179,666)
Prime facie tax payable on profit from ordinary
activities before income tax at 30% (2014: 30%)
—  Group (8,643,374 (30,653,900)
(8,643,374) (30,653,900)
Add:
Tax effect of:
—  Other taxes 477,852 2,065,308
—  Expenses not deductible for tax 7,752,706 29,066,976
—  Income not assessable for tax (3,757,145) (4,061,284)
— Taxlosses not brought to account 1,938,572 494,731
—  Benefit of tax losses not previously
recognised 3,608,262 2,128,535
—  Deferred tax assets not brought to account 2,315,848 2,835,615
— Differences in tax rates (2,224,915) (987,941)
—  Prior year adjustment - (525,718)
1,467,806 362,322
Unrecognised Deferred tax asset
— Capital losses 1,084,219 295,658
— Revenue losses 10,033,815 8,797,175
—  Other 3,265,732 1,068,076
14,383,766 10,160,909

Deferred tax assets not brought to account, the benefits of which will only be realised if the conditions for deductibility set out in
Note 1(b) occur.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Note 6: Income Tax Expense (continued)
Consolidated
2015 2014
us$ Us$

(¢)  Recognised deferred tax assets
temporary differences 286,693 462,325
286,693 462,325

Recognised deferred tax liabilities

Accelerated depreciation (11,039,440)  (9,365,463)
DTL arising on business combination (32,319,759)  (35,010,570)
Net deferred tax liabilities (43,359,199)  (44,376,033)

Deferred tax assets not brought to account, the benefits of which will only be realised if the conditions for deductibility set out in
Note 1(b) occur.

Note 7: Auditors’ Remuneration
Consolidated

2015 2014
Us$ us$
Remuneration of the auditor of the Parent Entity for:
auditing or reviewing the financial report by BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd 216,366 144,894
non-audit services provided by a related entity of BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd in respect
to Parent Entity’s tax compliance. 72,570 47,998
Total remuneration for the Parent Entity 289,436 192,892
Remuneration of the auditors of the subsidiaries:
auditing or reviewing the financial report by BDO UK 3,933 -
auditing or reviewing the financial report by BDO Barbados 13,030 15,697
auditing or reviewing the financial report by BDO Trinidad 40,530 64,449
Total remuneration for the subsidiaries 57,493 80,146
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Note 8: Earnings Per Share
Consolidated

2015 2014
US cents US cents
(a) Basic loss per share
(Loss) per share from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity
holders of the company (0.44) (1.85)
(Loss) per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company (0.59) (2.89)
(b) Diluted loss per share
(Loss) per share from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity
holders of the company n/a n/a
(Loss) per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company n/a n/a
(c) Reconciliation of loss used in calculating earnings per share
Basic/ Diluted loss per share
Loss from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of
the company (22,581,895) (65,687,480)
Loss attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company (30,279,054) (102,541,990)
(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator 2015 2014
No. No.
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the denominator in
calculating basic EPS 5,095,406,444 3,553,499,382

Effect of dilutive securities
Options on issue at reporting date could potentially dilute earnings per share in the future. The effect in the current year is to
reduce the loss per share hence they are considered anti-dilutive. Accordingly the diluted loss per share has not been disclosed.

Note 9: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Consolidated

2015 2014
Us$ USs$
Cash at bank and on hand 10,530,104 2,977,410

Risk exposure

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign exchange risk and price risk is provided in Note 35.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Note 10: Trade and Other Receivables

Current
Other receivables
- trade receivables (i)
- accrued revenue (i)
- goods and services tax
- other debtors (iii)
- less: provision for impairment

Consolidated

2015 2014

us$ us$
672,331 1,258,117
102,825

3,820,265 3,287,876
3,145,825 3,179,394
(2489443)  (2,489,443)

5,148,978 5,338,769

Fair value approximates the carrying value of trade and other receivables at 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2014.

()  Trade receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days. They are presented as current assets unless
collection is not expected for more than 12 months after the reporting date. Trade receivables are neither past due nor

impaired.

(i) Accrued revenues relate to the Petrotrin overriding royalty refundable in the Trinidad subsidiaries.

(i) Other debtors are comprised primarily of advances to unrelated third parties. Given the uncertainty over the
likelihood of repayment these advances have been included within the provision for impairment raised at 30 June

2015 and 30 June 2014.

Risk exposure

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign exchange risk and price risk is provided in Note 35.

Note 11: Other Current Assets

Current
Prepayments
Other assets

Note 12: Assets Held-for-Sale

Assets classified as held for sale are as follows:

Strait Oil & Gas (UK) Limited — 45% equity interest

Range Australia Resources (US) Limited — 100% owned subsidiary
Latin American Resources — 20% equity interest

Total
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Consolidated

2015 2014
Us$ us$
352,724 728,544
430,661 -
783,385 728,544

Consolidated

2015 2014

Us$ us$
5,000,000 10,000,000
- 1,000,000
1,000,000 -
6,000,000 11,000,000
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Note 12: Assets Held-for-Sale (continued)

Movements in assets classified as held for sale are as follows:

Opening net book amount 11,000,000 8,769,792
Transfer from investment in associate (note 19) 2,179,358 39,281,987
Additions - 193,057
Sold in period (1,000,000) -
Impairment loss relating to discontinued operations (6,179,358) (37,244,836)
Closing net book amount 6,000,000 11,000,000

Impairment losses of US$6.8 million for write-downs of the disposal group to the lower of its carrying amount and its
recoverable amount have been included in ‘loss on discontinued operations’ (see note 5). The impairment losses have been
applied to reduce the carrying amount of the assets held-for-sale within the disposal group. There is no cumulative income or
expenses included in other comprehensive income relating to the disposal group.

Note 13: Financial Assets Available-For-Sale

Consolidated

2015 2014
us$ us$
Listed investments, at fair value
- Interest in other corporations 446,000 876,347
Total available-for-sale financial assets 446,000 876,347
Movement in Financial Assets Available-for-
Sale
Opening balance 876,347 822,751
Shares received on settlement of loan receivable 171,254 3,762,367
Acquisitions - 1,207,598
Shares disposed of to settle liabilities - (3,720,555)
Foreign exchange variance - 59,021
Shares sold in period (947,601) -
Fair value movement recognised in equity - (529,883)
Transferred from other current assets (note 20) 1,000,000 -
Impairment recognised in profit and loss (654,000) (724,952)
Closing balance 446,000 876,347

Available-for-sale financial assets comprise investments in the ordinary share capital of various entities. There are no fixed
returns or fixed maturity date attached to these investments.

Risk exposure

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign exchange risk and price risk is provided in Note 35.
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Note 14: Controlled Entities

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following subsidiaries in accordance

with accounting policy described in Note 1(a).

Country of Percentage Owned
Controlled Entities Consolidated Incorporation (%)
30 June 30 June
2015 2014
Subsidiaries of Range Resources Limited:
Westblade Pty Ltd (i) Australia - 100
Donnybrook Gold Pty Ltd (i) Australia - 100
Range Australia Resources (US) Ltd (@ USA - 100
Range Resources (Barbados) Limited Barbados 100 100
SOCA Petroleum Limited Barbados 100 100
Range Resources Drilling Services Limited Trinidad - 100
West Indies Exploration Company Limited Trinidad 100 100
Range Resources Trinidad Limited Trinidad 100 100
Los Bajos Oil Limited (iii) Trinidad - 100
Range Resources (Barbados) GY Limited Barbados 100 100
Range Resources St. Mary’s Limited Trinidad 100 -
Range Resources GY Shallow Limited Trinidad 100 100
Range Resources GY Deep Limited Trinidad 100 100
Range Resources (Cayman) Limited Cayman Islands 100 100
Range Resources Upstream Services Limited United Kingdom 100 100

(i) Dissolved in year
(i) Disposed of in year as part of Texas sale
(iii) Amalgamated in year with Range Resources Trinidad Limited.

Note 15: Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in note 1(v).

indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances

The Group reported goodwill of US$46,198,974, which was derived from the acquisition of SOCA Petroleum Limited through
the parent's subsidiary Range Resources (Barbados) Ltd.

At 1 July 2014

Cost

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net book amount

Year ended 30 June 2015
Opening net book amount
Additions-acquisition
Amortisation charge
Closing net book amount

(a) Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill
2015 2014
USs$ Us$
46,198,974 46,198,974
46,198,974 46,198,974
46,198,974 46,198,974
46,198,974 46,198,974

During the year ending 30 June 2015, the Group determined that there is no impairment of any of its cash-generating units or
group of cash-generating units containing goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.
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Note 15: Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes to a single cash-generating unit (CGU), identified according to
operating segments, being Trinidad.

Estimates of the recoverable amount is based on an an asset’s fair value less costs to sell (level 3 fair value hierarchy) using a
discounted cash flow method and is most sensitive to the following key assumptions:

- P1 and P2 Recoverable reserves
- Commodity price of between US$52 and US$82 per barrel dependent on the year.
- Operating costs at 7-14% of revenue, depending on oil price at that time.

- Post-tax discount rate of 10%

Economical recoverable reserves represent management's expectations at the time of completing the impairment testing and
based on the reserves statements and exploration and evaluation work undertaken by appropriately qualified persons. A
summary of the Company’s Trinidad reserves and resources are published on the company’s website.

The commodity price for oil was based on forecast oil price data compiled by Capital IQ, as used in the IER released on 31
July 2015. The data compiled by Capital 1Q is taken from a number of economic and market analyst forecasts and averaged to
present an estimated forecast price. Estimates are $52/bbl in 2015, $63/bbl in 2016, $70/bbl in 2017, $73/bbl in 2018, $78/bbl
in 2019, $80/bbl in 2020 and $82/bbl from 2021.

Operating cost assumptions were based on management reports from June and July 2015.
(b) Sensitivity to change of assumptions
An individual movement of 20% against any one key assumption would cause the carrying value of the cash generating unit to

materially exceed its recoverable amount. An adverse movement of 20% in reserves and resources, commodity prices,
operating costs or discount rate would lead to an impairment of US$16.4m, US$32.3m, US$4.7m and US$4.7m respectively.
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Note 16: Property, Plant & Equipment
Consolidated Production Gathering Leasehold Motor Vehicle, Total
Equipmentand  Station and Field Improvement Furniture,
access roads Office Fixtures &
Fittings
US$ Us$ us$ us$ US$
Year ended 30
June 2014
Opening net
book amount 10,897,690 159,025 433,409 810,294 12,300,418
Foreign currency
movement 4,372 - 546 2,603 7,521
Additions 746,400 - - 111,534 857,934
Disposals - - - (2,708) (2,708)
Depreciation
charge (1,543,103) (19,756) (49,139) (296,898) (1,908,896)
Closing net book
amount 10,105,359 139,269 384,816 624,825 11,254,269
At 30 June 2014
Cost 20,969,042 424,876 1,061,478 2,032,909 24,488,305
Accumulated
depreciation (10,863,683) (285,607) (676,662) (1,408,084) (13,234,036)
Net book amount 10,105,359 139,269 384,816 624,825 11,254,269
Year ended 30
June 2015
Opening net 10,105,359 139,269 384,816 624,825 11,254,269
book amount
Foreign currency 143,202 (29,878) (116,584) 2,167 (1,093)
movement
Additions 1,413,411 23,543 24,181 115,163 1,576,298
Disposals - (3,100) (3,100)
Disposal of
subsidiary (10,030,580) - - (245,780) (10,276,360)
CD;:r;eec'at"’” (793,660) (15,844) (45,098) (192,970) (1,047,572)
Closing net book 837,732 117,090 247 315 300,305 1,502,442
amount
At 30 June 2015
Cost 5,206,843 529,326 556,333 1,235,929 7,528,431
Accumulated
depreciation (4,369,111) (412,236) (309,018) (935,624) (6,025,989)
Net book amount 837,732 117,090 247,315 300,305 1,502,442
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Note 17: Exploration and Evaluation Expenditure

Consolidated

2015 2014

Us$ us$
Opening net book amount 523,605 9,453,636
Additions 145,346 683,887
Assets written off (note 4c) - (9,613,918)
Closing net book amount 668,951 523,605

At 30 June 2015, the US$668,951 (30 June 2014 — US$523,605) capitalised exploration and evaluation expenditure relates to
the interests of the Group in the Guayaguayare and St Mary’s Blocks in Trinidad.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred is accumulated in respect of each identifiable area of interest. These costs
are only carried forward to the extent that they are expected to be recouped through the successful development of the area
or where activities in the area have not yet reached a stage that permits reasonable assessment of the existence of
economically recoverable reserves.

The recoverability of the carrying amount of exploration assets is dependent on the successful development and commercial
exploitation or sale of the respective mining permits.

Capitalised costs amounting to US$145,346 (2014: US$683,887) has been included in the statement of cash flows from
investing activities.

Note 18: Producing Assets
Consolidated

2015 2014
us$ Us$
At 30 June

Cost 122,141,667 110,748,605
Accumulated amortisation (31,791,175)  (28,230,785)
Net book value 90,350,492 82,517,820
Opening net book amount 82,517,820 85,422,826
Foreign currency movement 395 11,633
Additions 11,392,667 3,146,149
Amortisation charge (3,560,390) (6,062,788)
Closing net book amount 90,350,492 82,517,820
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Note 19: Investments in Associates
Consolidated

2015 2014

us$ Us$
Opening balance 2,779,476 37,295,453
Transfer from other non-current assets (note 20) - 2,897,785
Transfer investment in unlisted company Strait Oil & Gas (UK) - (39,281,987)
Limited to held for sale (note 12)
Consideration for equity interest - 1,293,214
Further investments - 2,644,549
Loss on impairment (600,118) (1,410,138)
Share of net loss using equity method - (659,400)
Transfer investment in Latin American Resources to held for sale (2,179,358) -
(note 12)
Closing net book amount - 2,779,476

During the prior year, the Company committed to a plan to dispose of its equity interest in the unlisted Company Strait Oil &
Gas (UK) Limited. US$39,281,987 was therefore re-classified as asset held for sale (refer to note 12).

During the current year, the Company committed to a plan to dispose of its equity interest in Latin American Resources (LAR).
US$2,179,358 was therefore re-classified as asset held for sale (refer to note 12).

(a) Interests in associates
The table below sets out material interests in associates at 30 June 2015. Unless otherwise stated, the proportionate
ownership interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

Name of entity Place of Ownership Nature of Measurement Quoted
business/ interest held by relationship method fair value
Country of the group
incorporation 2015 2014 2015 2014
% % $ $
Latin American Guatemala 20 (i) 20 Held for sale asset ~ Equity method N/A*  N/A*®
Resources (2015)
Associate (2014)

*Private company — no share price available

(i) Classified as held for sale during the year at which point ceased to be accounted for as an associate. Range has not
received audited financial statements from Latin American Resources during the year. Range has therefore written down the
carrying value of the asset to US$1.0m.
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Note 20: Other Non-Current Assets
Consolidated
2015 2014
us$ Us$
Non-current receivables (a) - 1,500,000
Total non-current assets - 1,500,000
(a) Non-current receivables
Opening balance 1,500,000 8,584,773
Transfer to other current receivable - (1,214,389)
Advances made during the year - 700,000
Foreign currency movement - (20,867)
Payments received during the year (500,000) -
Impairment - (6,549,517)
Settled by way of available for sale investment (1,000,000)
Closing balance - 1,500,000

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Company announced its proposal to undertake a strategic merger with International
Petroleum Limited (NSX: IOP) and during that year the Company provided a loan to I0P of US$8,029,110. The loan accrued
interest at a rate of 8% per annum and was repayable by 30 April 2014. IOP was unable to meet the loan repayment when
due. During the current financial year, the Company reached an agreement with IOP to extend the loan repayment date to 30
November 2014 to allow IOP time to complete the sale of its Russian assets and upon conclusion of the sale, IOP made a
US$500,000 cash repayment, with the remaining outstanding monies converted to ordinary shares in IOP. Range also
received 5 million options to acquire shares in IOP (exercisable at AU$0.06, expiry 24 months from the issue date). Following
completion of the sale of IOP Russian assets and the debt conversion to equity, Range owns approximately 9% of the
enlarged share capital of IOP. This balance has been transferred to available for sale financial assets in the period.

IOP remains suspended from trading on NSX and given the uncertainty over the valuation of the shares once trading resumes,
the investment has been written down to US$346,000 being equivalent to the Company's 9% shareholding interest in IOP's net
cash position at 30 June 2015.

Note 21: Trade and Other Payables
Consolidated

2015 2014

Us$ us$
Trade payables 4,991,035 4,233,904
Sundry payables and accrued expenses 8,663,160 4,471,101

13,654,195 8,705,005

Risk exposure

Trade payables are non-interest bearing.
Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign exchange risk and price risk is provided in Note 35.
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Note 22: Borrowings at Fair Value
(a) Borrowings at Fair Value Consolidated

2015 2014

us$ Us$
Opening balance - 11,026,440
Proceeds from borrowings 5,500,000 16,407,790
Fair value movement - 13,323,578
Face value premium 2,250,000 -
Interest due on outstanding balance 330,577 -
Amount classified as equity - (2,123,709)
Cash repayment - (16,119,380)
Conversion to equity - (17,727,995)
Repayment via equity (562,500) -
Settled through transfer of assets - (2,470,353)
Settled through issue of options - (3,146,491)
Foreign currency movement - 830,120
Closing net book amount 7,518,077 -

On 30 September 2014, Range announced that it had signed a loan agreement for up to US$15 million in medium-term
financing with Lind Asset Management, LLC, (Lind). The terms of the financing were subsequently amended, as announced
on 17 October 2014.

The Loan was signed for a maximum term of 24 months and was to be available in 2 tranches. The first tranche (Tranche 1)
totalling US$10 million, of which US$5 million was funded at closing with the remainder to be drawn down on a monthly basis,
with the second tranche (Tranche 2) totalling US$5 million. The total amount repayable under the facility was to be US$18.375
million (US$12.25 million for Tranche 1 and US$6.125 million for Tranche 2).

Each tranche was repayable over an 18-month period from the date of drawdown. Each repayment could be made on a
monthly basis, at Range’s option, either through cash or shares (Repayment Shares) (or a mixture of both). Following the first
6 monthly repayments, if the Company elected to repay in cash, the repayment amount carried a premium of 2.5% of that
monthly repayment amount. Repayment shares were to be priced at the lower of 92.5% of the average of three daily volume
weighted average prices (VWAP), to be chosen by Lind, during the 20 trading days prior to each issuance of shares and 130%
of the average daily VWAP per share during the 11 trading days prior to 17 October 2014 (for Tranche 1) and the second
closing date (for Tranche 2).

In addition, after a period of 6 months from the initial drawdown, Lind had the option to convert any amounts outstanding under
the agreement into ordinary shares at a premium conversion price equal to 130% of the average of the VWAP during the 11
trading days prior to the amended agreement being signed (equal to either A$0.0243 or 1.203p per share).

As part of the financing package, Lind was also entitled to receive up to 46,500,000 options exercisable for up to 36 months
after the date of issue. The options were to be issued in two tranches; 31,000,000 upon drawdown of Tranche 1 and
15,500,000 6 months after execution of the amended agreement in respect of Tranche 2. The exercise price for the options
was to be equal to 130% of the average of the VWAP during the 11 trading days prior to the amended agreement being
signed. This exercise price is £0.01203.

As security for the facility, Range issued to Lind 38,000,000 ordinary shares in the Company (Collateral Shares).

Range had the right to elect to repay the facility in full at any time and if that occurred Lind had the right upon repayment to
convert the repayable amount at that time (or a certain portion of that amount) into equity at the premium conversion price
equal to 130% of the average of the VWAP during the 20 trading days prior to the agreement being signed (equal to A$0.0335
or 1.8938p per share). Range received advances totalling US$5,500,000 (minus certain fees) pursuant to the agreement.
Range made a repayment of US$562,500 (paid by way of the issue of shares to Lind) in November 2014.
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Note 22: Borrowings at Fair Value (cont.)

The amended agreement contained a clause to the effect that a suspension of trading of the Company’s shares on either the
ASX or AIM market for more than 5 trading days in any rolling 12 month period commencing on the execution date would
constitute an event of default (subject to certain exceptions). With the suspension which started on 10 December 2014, the
Company fully utilised these days. On that basis, Lind demanded re-payment of the balance of the loan immediately and in
full, together with a premium of US$2.25 million and interest.

On 16 February 2015 Range received a statutory demand from Lind demanding repayment of approximately US$7.2 million
that Lind alleges is due and payable.

On 9 March 2015, Range filed an application to the Supreme Court of Western Australia to set aside the statutory demand.

On 2 July 2015, the company announced that its application to the Supreme Court of Western Australia to set aside the
statutory demand from Lind Asset Management, LLC had been unsuccessful. The Supreme Court extended the time for
payment of the demand.

On 27 July 2015, Range filed an appeal against the Supreme Court’s decision, and the Western Australian Court of Appeal
extended the deadline for repayment until the later of 31 August 2015 or 7 days from the determination of the appeal.

In advance of the appeal, Range paid $5.0m to Lind on 28 July 2015 without prejudice to its contentions in the appeal.

On 10 September 2015 the appeal was heard and as at the date of this report, no decision has been received from the
Western Australian Court of Appeal.

During the prior year the Group entered into various financing arrangements, as follows:

e  Equity swap arrangement with Yorkville Advisors — Range issued 72 million shares for £1.1million at a benchmark
price of £0.017 to be settled in 6 equal monthly instalments. Nil outstanding at prior year end.
e £4.1 million (US$6.2 million) unsecured convertible note agreements with Hudson Bay, Cranshire, Empery and
Hartz. The term of the loan was for 18 months at coupon rate of 10%, a discount to the face value of 10% and
convertible at a 90% VWAP conversion price. The entire balance was settled through the issue of equity during the
year. Under the terms of these agreements, the lender was granted options equal to 50% of the number of shares
issued on each conversion date. These options have an exercise price equal to the conversion price and an expiry
term of 3 years. Nil outstanding at prior year end.
e  Platinum Partners provided 2 loans for £2.2 million and US$3.3 million respectively each for a 6 month term. In
consideration for providing the loans the Company issued 13,636,364 options exercisable at £0.011 on or before 31
January 2017, 100million collateral shares in the Company and additionally provided security over 100million shares
held by the Company in Citation Resources Limited (ASX: CTR). The loan was fully repaid during the year and as
part of the repayment arrangements the Company agreed that the lender was not required to return the collateral
shares or the CTR security, which therefore allowed a reduced cash payment of the outstanding amount of the loan.
Nil outstanding at prior year end.
e  US$600,000 3-month loan from a US based institutional investor which was convertible at the lenders option at 85%
VWAP conversion price. Nil outstanding at prior year end.
e Unsecured loan of US$2.2 million from a syndicate of Australian investors which was convertible upon the mutual
agreement of the Company and lenders at a 85% VWAP conversion price. In consideration for providing the loans
the Company issued 23,779,254 options to the syndicate. Nil outstanding at prior year end.
e US$1 million, 12 month loan from a Cayman Islands based company which was convertible at the lenders option at
the lower of 1.35p/share or 90% VWAP conversion price. In consideration for providing the loans the Company
issued 7,500,000 options to the lender. Nil outstanding at prior year end.

In the year ended 30 June 2013, the Group issued US$10,400,000 in secured notes to Crede Capital Group. The outstanding
borrowing was fully settled in October 2013 and the remaining obligation to issue 7,500,000 options was satisfied during the
year and the security has been released.
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Note 22: Borrowings at Fair Value (cont.)

Also in the year ended 30 June 2013, the Group entered in a US$15 million Loan Agreement backed by a Standby Equity
Distribution Agreement (“SEDA”) with YA Global Master SPV Ltd, an investment fund managed by Yorkville Advisors. US$6.9
million was drawn during the year ended 30 June 2014 with nil outstanding at prior year end.

(b) Option Liability
Consolidated

2015 2014

us$ Us$
Option liability at fair value through profit or loss 808,083 2,189,913
808,083 2,189,913

During 2015, 49,051,468 options with a face value of US$1,426,883 were exercised prior to year-end and 31m options with a
fair value of US$172,926 were issued.

During the prior year 240,694,827 options with a fair value of US$3,004,295 were issued as a result of conversion of notes
under the above financing arrangements. 70,833,334 options with a face value of US$814,382 were exercised prior to year-
end.

Note 23: Provision for Rehabilitation
The Group records the present value of the estimated cost of legal and constructive obligations to restore operating locations
in the period in which the obligation arises. The nature of restoration activities includes removal of facilities, abandonment of

wells and restoration of affected areas.

Consolidated

2015 2014
us$ us$
Provision for rehabilitation 734,858 696,224
Movement in the provision for rehabilitation during the financial year are set out below:
Carrying amount at the start of the year 696,224 654,873
Additional provision recognised 38,634 41,351
Carrying amount at the end of the year 734,858 696,224
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Note 24: Deferred Tax Liability

Fair Value Uplift Accelerated

on Business Depreciation Total
Combination
us$ us$ Us$
Movements
Year ended 30 June 2014
Opening balance 38,081,168 6,914,465 44,995,633
Foreign currency movement 1,041 - 1,041
Charged/(credited)
to profit or loss (3,071,637) 2,450,996 (620,641)
Closing net book amount 35,010,572 9,365,461 44,376,033
Year ended 30 June 2015
Opening balance 35,010,572 9,365,461 44,376,033
Foreign currency movement (1,041) (32,147) (33,188)
Disposal of subsidiary (723,359) (1,189,198) (1,912,557)
Charged/(credited)
to profit or loss (1,966,411) (2,895,322) 928,911
Closing net book amount 32,319,761 11,039,438 43,359,199

As a result of business combination, at the date of acquisition a deferred tax liability has been recognised in relation to the
difference between the carrying amount of the deferred exploration and development costs for accounting purposes and the
cost base of the asset for tax purposes in accordance with the requirements of Australian Accounting Standard AASB 112
Income Taxes. The Group does not have a tax payable in relation to the deferred tax liability at 30 June 2015 and it is
anticipated that the deferred taxation liability will be reduced in the future as the deferred exploration and development costs
are amortised in future periods.

Note 25: Other Non-Current Liabilities
Consolidated

2015 2014

us$ us$
Employee service benefits 521,257 584,746
521,257 584,746

Risk exposure

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign exchange risk and price risk is provided in Note 35.
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Note 26: Contributed equity

Consolidated

2015 2014
us$ Us$
5,767,169,188 (2014: 4,521,201,870) fully paid ordinary shares 382,535,744 364,567,692
Nil (2014: 386,188,780 I) unissued fully paid ordinary shares - 6,000,000
Nil partly paid shares (2014: 4,925,000) - 1,362,344
Share issue costs (19,330,467)  (19,330,467)
363,205,277 352,599,569
Consolidated
2015 2015 2014 2014
No. Us$ No. us$
(a) Fully Paid Ordinary Shares
At the beginning of reporting period 4,521,201,870 364,567,692 2,898,084,648 331,447,756
Shares issued during year 1,245,967,318 17,968,052 1,623,117,222 33,119,936
Total contributed equity 5,767,169,188 382,535,744 4,521,201,870 364,567,692

Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the Company in proportion to

the number of and amounts paid on the shares held.

On a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting of the Company, in person or by proxy, is entitled to

one vote, and upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote.

(b)  Unissued Fully Paid Ordinary Shares

2015 2014
No. No.
Opening balance (i) 386,188,780 30,000,000
Issued in year (356,188,780)
Shares to be issued subsequent to reporting date (ii) 356,188,780
Total contributed equity 30,000,000 386,188,780
(i) Under the terms of an agreement between shareholders in Strait, the Company was required to issue

30,000,000 shares to other investors in Strait upon the completion of the next well in the Georgia drilling
programme or upon disposal of Range’s shareholding in Strait.
(i) During the prior year, the company entered into a US$12 million financing facility with a Hong Kong based
private institutional investor, Abraham Ltd. Under the terms of the subscription agreement, Abraham was to
subscribe for shares in the Company in two US$6 million tranches, with the first tranche issued during the year,
whilst the second tranche was to be issued following shareholder approval. Shareholder approval for the issue
of shares for the US$6 million second tranche was sought and obtained at the General Meeting of the Company

on 11t July 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED

30 JUNE 2015

Note 26: Contributed equity (continued)
Partly Paid Ordinary Shares

(c)

(d)

(e)

Total partly paid shares -AU$0.30

Total contributed equity
All partly paid shares were cancelled during the year.

Movements in fully paid ordinary share capital

2015

1 July 2014

30 June 2015

1 July 2013

30 June 2014

Options

Details

Opening balance

Transfer from unissued

Shares issued as loan repayment
Shares issued upon option conversion

Shares issued as Collateral Shares (j)
Shares issued to employees

Shares issued in lieu of corporate advisory/ capital
raising and loan commencement fees

Issued to Beijing Sibo Investment Management LP
Closing Balance

Opening balance
Issue of shares through conversion of notes (refer
note 22)
Placement
Issue of shares to YA Global through equity swap
(refer note 22)
Equity tranche under YA Global agreement
YA advance
Equity tranche under convertible notes
Issue of shares to Abraham Ltd for US$12m
financing as per subscription agreement
Issue of shares through exercise of options
Shares issued in lieu of corporate advisory fees
(refer note 32)
Balance

At the beginning of reporting period
Options issued during year

Options expired

Options exercised during year

Total options
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Consolidated

2015 2014
No. No.
- 4,925,000
- 4,925,000
Issue Price
Number of Us$ US$
shares
4,521,201,870 364,567,692
356,188,780 0.017 6,000,000
58,440,891 0.010 562,500
49,051,468 0.010- 923,880
0.024
38,000,000 0.008 300,979
19,987,481 0.013- 580,458
0.040
74,298,698 0.009- 1,633,315
0.037
650,000,000 0.012 7,966,920
5,767,169,188 382,535,744
2,898,084,648 331,447,756
907,296,105 0.020 17,727,995
53,125,000 0.037 1,963,500
72,000,000 0.025 1,794,238
8,119,059 0.027 219,012
31,000,954 0.036 1,107,013
81,460,298 0.026 2,123,709
356,188,780 0.017 6,000,000
70,833,334 0.009 652,778
43,093,692 0.036 1,531,691
4,521,201,870 364,567,692

Consolidated

2015 2014
No. No.
453,203,084 266,612,503
394,701,840 257,423,915
(9,855,166) -
(49,051,469) (70,833,334)
788,998,289 453,203,084
Range Resources Limited and Controlled Entities
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015
Note 26: Contributed equity (continued)

At the date of this report, the unissued ordinary shares of Range Resources Limited under option are as follows:

Date of Expiry Exercise Price Number Under Option

31 January 2016 $0.05 80,508,341 listed
30 April 2016 £0.17 7,058,824 unlisted
31 January 2017 £0.075 5,180,000 unlisted
19 October 2015 £0.0615 15,708,801 unlisted
30 November 2015 £0.05075 32,275,862 unlisted
31 January 2016 A$0.10 5,000,000 unlisted
10 February 2016 A$0.06 5,000,000 unlisted
30 April 2016 £0.04 146,533,850 unlisted
11 July 2016 £0.037 5,000,000 unlisted
25 July 2016 £0.021 476,190 unlisted
29 July 2016 £0.021 952,381 unlisted
31 August 2016 £0.021 6,714,284 unlisted
31 August 2016 £0.020 9,000,000 unlisted
30 September 2016 £0.019 3,947,369 unlisted
30 September 2016 £0.018 8,666,670 unlisted
31 October 2016 £0.018 694,445 unlisted
31 October 2016 £0.017 2,205,885 unlisted
31 October 2016 £0.016 1,250,000 unlisted
31 October 2016 £0.015 17,333,336 unlisted
30 November 2016 £0.015 3,000,001 unlisted
30 November 2016 £0.013 5,153,846 unlisted
11 December 2016 $0.0321 2,000,000 unlisted
31 December 2016 £0.012 2,000,000 unlisted
31 December 2016 £0.011 5,000,000 unlisted
31 January 2017 £0.011 23,636,364 unlisted
9 September 2017 £0.03 7,500,000 unlisted
14 July 2018 £0.01 161,472,247 unlisted
14 July 2018 £0.02 118,729,593 unlisted
31 January 2018 $0.05 1,000,000 unlisted
15 October 2017 £0.01203 31,000,000 unlisted
30 March 2020 £0.01 75,000,000 unlisted

788,998,289

The holders of these options do not have any rights under the options to participate in any share issues of the company.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, 49,051,468 ordinary shares of Range Resources Limited were issued on the exercise of
options (2014: 70,833,334).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015
Note 27: Reserves
Consolidated
2015 2014
us$ Us$
(a) Share-based payment reserve
Balance 1 July 14,226,861 14,085,042
Options issued to consultants and employees (refer note 32) 2,157,038 141,819
Expired options reclassified to retained earnings (2,152,321) -
Balance 30 June 14,231,578 14,226,861

The share based payment reserve records items recognised as expenses on the fair valuation of shares and options issued as
remuneration to employees, directors and consultants.

(b) Option premium reserve
Balance 1 July 10,630,513 9,815,752
Fair value movement of exercised options that were originally classified as a derivative
liability 1,426,850 814,761
Balance 30 June 12,057,363 10,630,513

The option premium reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options.

(c) Foreign currency translation reserve
Balance 1 July 3,004,632 3,415,742
Currency translation differences arising during the year 455,307 (411,110)
Balance 30 June 3,459,939 3,004,632

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation balances of foreign
subsidiaries.

(d) Available for sale investment revaluation reserve

Balance 1 July - (325,263)
Reclassification to profit or loss - 855,146
Decrease in value of investments - (529,883)
Balance 30 June - -
Total Reserves 29,748,880 27,862,006
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015
Note 28: Commitments
Expenditure commitments
Consolidated
2015 2014
Us$ Us$
Not later than 1 year 211,000 137,500

211,000 137,500

Note 29: Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Mark Patterson

Range has received a demand for arbitration of claims in the amount of approximately US$5.8 million from Mark Patterson
who was engaged by Range as a consultant over a period from 2010 - 2014. Mr. Patterson is claiming he terminated a
purported consultant contract, dated 29 August 2013, with good reason, as defined in the contract, due to a reduction in duties,
and in that circumstance he claims to be entitled to full payment for the remainder of the term of the contract plus various other
payments. Range has engaged legal advisers to assist with this claim and will strongly defend our position. The claim will be
heard through an arbitration process in Texas. It is currently expected that the arbitration hearing will occur in late 2015.
Given the process is still at an early stage, Range is unable to quantify any likely financial impact of a successful claim against
the Company however, it will not have a material impact.

Crown Capital Partners

Range is involved as a defendant in a court action in Alberta, Canada related to an alleged breach in early 2013 of an
exclusivity undertaking in a commitment letter from a potential financier dated 6 November 2012. The claim is for
approximately C$500,000. Range strongly refutes the allegations and intends to vigorously defend our position. A Statement
of Defence has been filed and Range is currently in the discovery phase of litigation. There is no date as yet for a court
hearing and the Company is not in a position therefore to determine the likely financial impact of any successful claim. Range
however, believes that any outcome against the Company will not have a material impact.

Lancdon LLC & Benedict Silverman

Los Bajos Qil Limited is a defendant in a court action in federal court in the state of Connecticut, USA which dates back to the
period prior to Los Bajos being acquired by Range in 2011. The claim relates to an alleged breach of contract with respect to
payments due by Los Bajos to Lancdon LLC under a settlement agreement dated May 2011. Range has an indemnity from
the sellers of Los Bajos in respect of any successful claim against the Company.

The Directors are not aware of any further contingent liabilites or contingent assets as at 30 June 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015
Note 30: Segment Reporting (continued)
(b) Other segment information
Consolidated
2015 2014
us$ Us$
Segment other revenue - all other segments
Other income 428,588 1,221,108
428,588 1,221,108
Segment result - all other segments
Directors fees 912,290 1,115,524
Consultancy fees 359,830 3,421,400
Marketing and Public relations 200,134 461,902
Share-based payments 2,737,493 1,673,558
Finance costs 4,347,575 21,797,779
Asset write offs 38,929 9,138,960
Administration and other expenses 2,544 177 4,014,652

Exploration expenses 392,219 15,577,838
Share of loss of associate - 2,171,829

11,532,647 59,373,442

Accounting Policies

AASB 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its
performance. The chief operating decision maker is the managing director and through this role the Board of Directors.

Following the adoption of AASB 8, the identification of the Group’s reporting segments remain consistent with prior periods, with
management allocating resources to segments on a geographical basis.

Information regarding these segments is presented above. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as
those of the Group. Segment information is prepared in conformity with the accounting policies of the entity as disclosed in Note
1.

Segment revenues and expenses are those directly attributable to the segments and include any joint revenue and expenses
where a reasonable basis of allocation exists. Segment assets include all assets used by a segment and consist principally of
cash, receivables, plant and equipment, exploration expenditure capitalised and development assets net of accumulated
depreciation and amortisation. While most such assets can be directly attributed to individual segments, the carrying amount of
certain assets used jointly by two or more segments is allocated to the segments on a reasonable basis. Segment disclosures do
not include deferred income taxes.

Revenue from discontinued operations from Texas of US$238,194 (2014: US$553,965) is derived from several customers who
each account for greater than 10% of this amount. Revenue from Trinidad of US$13,152,954 (2014: US$21,185,745) is derived
from the subsidiary’s sole customer, which is Petrotrin.

Intersegment Transfers

Segment revenues, expenses and results do not include any transfers between segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015
Note 31: Cash Flow Information Consolidated
2015 2014
us$ Us$
Reconciliation of cash flow from operations with loss after income tax
Loss after income tax (30,279,054)  (102,541,990)
Non-cash flows in profit
Depreciation 4,766,581 7,972,169
Share based payment- consultants and employees 2,737,443 1,673,558
Finance costs (non-cash) 2,107,281 16,818,148
Interest on non-current receivable paid in shares - (1,207,598)
Impairment expense 654,000 21,778,525
Loss on sale of subsidiary 1,593,766 -
Loss on sale of PPE 3,100 -
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss (124,789) (840,637)
Impairments recognised on held for sale assets 6,779,476 37,244,836
Share of net loss of associate - 659,400
Net loss on sale of available for sale financial assets 496,958 855,146
Other non-cash items*
Decrease/(increase) in other operating assets - 3,090,272
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets 375,820 -
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables (608,228) 8,958,238
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax asset 175,634 (245,405)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 162,554 1,534,827
Increase/(decrease) in accrued interest 2,830,577 -
Increase/(decrease) in income tax payable (13,442) (1,495,695)
Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax liabilities 1,097,078 (619,600)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 289,981 144,025
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operations 444738  (6,221,781)
*Net of effects of subsidiary disposal
Non-cash investing and financing activities Consolidated
2015 2014
Us$ us$
Repayment of borrowings:
Through issue of shares 562,500 17,727,598
Through the issue of options - 3,146,491
Acquisition of available for sale financial assets - 1,207,598
Non-cash consideration for investment in associate - 1,293,214
Share issued as share based payments or finance costs 4,844,724 -

Note 32: Share-Based Payments
The following share-based payment arrangements occurred during the financial year ended at 30 June 2015.

Quantity Security US$ Value Purpose
19,987,481  Fully paid ordinary shares 580,406  Shares issued to employees and consultants
42,742,654  Unlisted options 1,176,524  Options issued in lieu of consulting fee
75,000,000  Unlisted options 85,464  Options issued to Directors in period
7,500,000  Unlisted options 895,049  Options issued in lieu of consulting fees
Annual report 2015 Range Resources Limited and Controlled Entities
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015
Note 32: Share-Based Payments (continued)

The following inputs were used to calculate the value of the options issued to Directors in the period:

Volatility: 100% Grant date: 27 March 2015
Risk free rate: 1.92% Exercise price: £0.01
USD/GBP exchange rate: 0.7752 Share price on grant date £0.054

The following share-based payment arrangements occurred during the financial year ended at 30 June 2014.

Quantity Security US$ Value Purpose
43,093,692 Fully paid ordinary shares 1,531,691  Issued in lieu of corporate advisory fees

16,729,087 Listed options 141,869 Issued in lieu of corporate advisory fee

Listed options issued as share based payments during the year ended 30 June 2014 were valued based upon the market price
at grant date. There were no unlisted options issued in the 30 June 2014 year.

The fair value at grant date of unlisted options is independently determined using a Black Scholes option pricing model that
takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the impact of dilution, the share price at grant date and expected
price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option.

Employee option plan
During the year the following options were issued to Directors and employees:

Name Number of options
Mr Yan Liu 30,000,000

Mr David Chen 30,000,000

Mr Zhiwei Gu 7,500,000

Ms Juan Wang 7,500,000

The vesting conditions of these options are as follows:

(a) 25% will become exercisable on the date that is one year from the issue date

(b) 25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 1,500 barrels of oil per day for a continuous 15 day
period in Trinidad

(c) 25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 2,500 barrels of oil per day for a continuous 15 day
period in Trinidad

(d) 25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 4,000 barrels of oil per day for a continuous 15 day
period in Trinidad

In addition to the above, vesting depends on continued employment.
In 2014, no options were issued to Directors or employees.

Expenses recognised in the profit & loss
During the year, share-based payments recognised in profit and loss amounts to US$2,157,037 (2014: US$1,673,558)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Note 32: Share-Based Payments (continued)

2015 2014

Number Average exercise ~ Number Average exercise

price US$ price US$

As at 1 July 453,203,083  0.060 266,612,503  0.078
Granted during year 394,701,840 0.019 257,423,914 0.023
Exercised (49,051,468) 0.017 (70,833,334)  0.009
Forfeited (9,855,166) -
As at 30 June 788,998,289  0.023 453,203,083  0.060
Valued and exercisable at 30 June 713,998,289 0.047 453,203,083 0.060
Weighted average remaining contractual life 673 days 700 days

options outstanding at end of period

Note 33: Related Party Transactions

(a) Parent entity
The ultimate Parent Entity and ultimate Australian Parent Entity within the Group is Range Resources Limited.

(b) Subsidiaries
Interests in subsidiaries are set out in Note 14.

(c) Transactions with Key Management Personnel

The following transactions occurred during the year with Key Management Personnel or their related parties:

2015 2014
Us$ Us$
Consulting fees paid or payable to Soncer Limited, a company owned by Mr Graham Lyon, for
the provision of corporate advisory and capital raising services (i) 12,794 67,321
Consulting fees paid or payable to DNR Consulting, a company owned by Mr David Rieke, for the
provision of corporate advisory and services (ii) 13,486 -
Balances at year end to related parties:
Sir Sam Jonah (i) 191,440 219,661
Marcus Edwards-Jones (i) 33,566 33,419
Soncer Limited (i) 18,442 -
Anthony Eastman (iii) 169,280 221,063
OKAP Ventures Pty Ltd payable (iii) 64,579 79,585
Doull Holdings Pty Ltd payable (in respect of Peter Landau Director fees) (iii) 165,403 181,612
(i) These were related parties throughout the financial year until 28 November 2014,
(i) David Rieke was a related party throughout the financial year until 11 December 2014,
(ii) Related party until 13 June 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Note 33: Related Party Transactions (continued)

(d) Key management personnel compensation

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Termination benefits

Share based payments

Total

(e) Transactions with associates

Details of transactions with associates are set out in Note 19.

Note 34: Parent Entity Information

Consolidated

2015 2014

Us$ Us$
778,338 1,147,859
28,152 48,299
150,253 -
85,464 -
1,042,207 1,196,158

The following details information related to the Parent Entity Range Resources Limited, at 30 June 2015. The
information presented here has been prepared in accordance using consistent accounting policies as presented in

Note 1.

Current assets
Non-current assets
Total assets

Current liabilities
Total liabilities

Contributed equity
Accumulated losses
Reserves

Total equity

Loss for the year from continuing operations
Loss for the year from discontinued operations
Total loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss for the year
Total comprehensive loss for the year

The contingent liabilities of the parent are the same as those of the Group as disclosed in Note 29.

2015 2014
us$ uss$
15,290,123 3,740,814
97,208,375 119,618,504
112,498,498 123,359,318
15,333,201 5,361,769
15,333,201 5,361,769
363205245 352,599,569
(205,165,636)  (262,296,104)
29,125,688 27,694,084
97,165,297 117,997 549
(20,028,556)  (57,548,321)
(7,355,641)  (37,556,087)
(36,384,197)  (95,104,408)
- 325,263
(36,384,197)  (94,779,145)

The contractual commitments of the parent are the same as those of the Group as disclosed in Note 28.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Note 35: Financial Risk Management
The Group has exposure to the following risks from their use of financial instruments:

e  Creditrisk
o  Liquidity risk
o Market risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, their objectives, policies and processes
for measuring and managing risk, and the management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout
these financial statements.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework.

Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect
changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, through training and management standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all consultants and agents understand
their roles and obligations.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s investments, receivables and cash held at financial institutions.

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with
limits set by the board. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure to individual
customers, specific industry sectors and/or regions.

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due or impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit
ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates.
Consolidated

2015 2014
Cash at bank and short-term bank deposits (S&P ratings) Us$ us$
AA- 9,868,592 1,603,785
A- - 1,340,063
BBB+ 661,512 -
BBB - 33,562

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets represents the
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Trade and other receivables
Non-current receivable @
Cash and cash equivalents

(i) Counterparties without an external credit rating
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10,530,104 2,977,410

maximum credit exposure. The Group’s maximum

Consolidated

2015 2014

Us$ us$
5,148,978 5,338,769
1,500,000

10,530,104 2,977,410

15,679,082 9,816,179
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Note 35: Financial Risk Management (continued)
Loans and receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each debtor. No collateral was held
in relation to these receivables.

Impairment losses

During the year, an impairment of US$17,937 on trade and other receivables were recognised. An impairment loss of
US$654,000 was recognised in relation to the IOP asset in the year. During the prior year, given uncertainty over the
counterparty's ability to receive repayment a provision for impairment of US$2,489,443 was recognised in relation to
miscellaneous other receivables totalling US$3,179,394.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due,
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group uses activity-based costing to cost its activities, which assists in monitoring cash flow requirements and optimising
its cash return on investments. Typically, the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected
operational expenses for a period of 6 months; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot
reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

The following are contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments and excluding the impact
of netting agreements:

Group
2015
Carrying Contractual 6 monthsor  6-12 1-2 2-5 Over5
amount cash flows less months years years years
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
Trade and other payables 11,998,340 11,998,340 11,998,340 - - -

Borrowings 7,518,077 7,518,077 7,518,077 -

19,516,417 19,516,417 19,516,417 - - -

Group
2014
Carrying  Contractual 6 months 6-12 1-2 2-5 Over5
amount cash flows or less months years years years
Financial liabilities at amortised
cost
Trade and other payables 8,705,005 6,515,093 6,515,093 - - -
Borrowings - - - -
8,705,005 6,515,093 6,515,093 - - -
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and equity prices will affect the Group’s income or
the value of its holdings of available for sale assets. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market
risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015
Note 35: Financial Risk Management (continued)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk. This arises from investments held by the Group and classified on the
statement of financial position as available for sale as well as from the option liability held as a current liability.

A 10% increase in Range’s share price would result in an increase to the option liability of $76,707. A decrease would have
had the equal but opposite effect.

The Group holds equity investments which are publicly traded and included on the NSX.

Range holds an equity investment in International Petroleum Ltd (“IOP”). Any adverse movement in the share price would be
immaterial.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to the US dollar, AU dollar, TT Dollar and British pound.

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional currency. The risk is measured using sensitivity analysis and cash flow forecasting.

The Group’s treasury risk management policy is to closely monitor exchange rate fluctuations. To date, the Group has not
sought to hedge its exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates, however this policy will be reviewed on an ongoing basis.

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the reporting date was as follows: (expressed in USD)

Consolidated Consolidated

2015 2014 2015 2014

AUD AUD GBP GBP
Amount receivable from other entities - 1,647,657 - -
Cash 272,621 343,923 242,304 83,284
Available for sale investments - 784,397 - -
Amount payable to other entities (1,159,133)  (1,042,719) (362,135) -

(886,512) 1,733,257 (119,831) 83,284

Sensitivity

Based upon the amounts above, had the Australian dollar strengthened by 10% against the US dollar with all other variables
held constant, the Group post-tax loss for the year on current amounts receivable/payable would have been US$67,885 higher
(2014: US$181,654 lower), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of AUD denominated payables
as detailed in the table above. A 10% weakening of the Australian dollar against the above currencies at 30 June would have
had the equal but opposite effect, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

The Trinidad entities are minimally exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currencies, primarily with respect to
the United States Dollar.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED

30 JUNE 2015

Note 35: Financial Risk Management (continued)

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

The sensitivity on interest rates for 2015 and 2014 assumes a change of 100 basis points in the interest rates at the reporting
date and would have increased / (decreased) profit and loss by the amounts shown. Both analyses for each year assume that
all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

Weighted
Average
Interest
Rate
Group %
Variable rate instruments
Financial assets (cash and cash equivalents) 0.10%

Financial assets (loan and receivables)

Fair values versus carrying amounts

2015

+100
bps
uss$

2015

-100
bps
Us$

Weighted
Average
Interest
Rate
%

2.50%
3.33%

2014

+100
bps
Us$

2014

-100
bps
uss$

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial position,

are as follows:

Group 30 June 2015 30 June 2014
Us$ USs$
Carrying Carrying Fair
amount Fair value amount value
Available-for-sale financial assets 446,000 446,000 876,347 876,347
Trade and other receivables 5,148,978 5,148,978 5,338,769 5,338,769
Non-current receivable - - 1,500,000 1,500,000
Cash and cash equivalents 10,530,104 10,530,104 2,977,410 2,977,410
Trade and other payables (11,998,340) (11,998,340) (8,705,005) (8,705,005)
Borrowings (7,518,077) (7,518,077) - -
(3,391,335) (3,391,335) 1,987,521 1,987,521

The basis for determining fair value is disclosed in Note 1(n) and Note 1(0).

Other price risk
The Group is not exposed to any other price risks.

Capital management

The entity’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The entity’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2014.

The capital structure of the group consists of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company, comprising issued capital, reserves and accumulated losses as disclosed in Notes 26 and 27 respectively. None of
the entities within the group are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 35: Financial Risk Management (continued)

Gearing ratio

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

The Board reviews the capital structure on an annual basis. As a part of this review the Board considers the cost of capital

and the risks associated with each class of capital

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Net assets / (debt)

Equity

Net debt to equity ratio

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Non-current receivable
Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Option liability

Consolidated
2015 2014
US$ Us$

10,530,104 2,977,410

(11,998,340)  (8,705,005)
(7,518,077) -
(8,986,313)  (5,727,595)
96,507,888 109,295,263

9.31% 5.24%

Consolidated
2015 2014
Us$ Us$

10,530,104 2,977,410
5,148,978 5,338,769
- 1,500,000

446,000 876,347

16,125,082 10,692,526

11,998,340 8,705,005
7,518,077 -
808,083 2,189,913

20,324,500 10,894,918

The carrying amount reflected above represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for such loans and receivables.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Note 36: Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments
(a) Fair value hierarchy
AASB 13 requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:
(@) Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1),
(b) Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly (level 2), and

(c) Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities measured and recognised at fair value at 30
June 2015 and 30 June 2014 on a recurring basis:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 30 June 2015 Uss$ USs$ Us$
Assets
Available for sale financial assets
Equity securities - - 446,000 446,000
Total assets - - 446,000 446,000
Liabilities
Option liability at fair value through profit or loss - 808,083 - 808,083
Borrowings - 7,518,077 - 7,518,077
Total liabilities - 8,326,160 - 8,326,160
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 30 June 2014 Uss$ Us$ Us$
Assets
Available for sale financial assets
Equity securities 876,347 - - 876,347
Total assets 876,347 - - 876,347
Liabilities
Option liability at fair value through profit or loss - 2,189,913 - 2,189,913
Total liabilities - 2,189,913 - 2,189,913

The fair value of financial instruments in active markets such as available for sale securities is based on quoted market bids at
the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in Level 1.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the end of the
reporting period. There were no transfers between the levels of the fair value hierarchy during the year ended 30 June 2015.

(b)  Fair values of other financial instruments

The Group has no financial instruments which are not measured at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying amounts of the current receivables, current payables, current borrowings, and
current other financial liabilities is assumed to approximate their fair value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Note 37: Fair Value Measurement of Non-Financial Instruments
(a) Non-recurring fair value measurements

Assets classified as held for sale at 30 June 2015 were measured at fair value less costs to sell in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy.

Fair value less costs to sell has been determined based upon offers received from independent third parties to acquire the
assets. Due to the way the third party offers are structured, the fair values of assets held for sale has been assessed as a
Level 3 measurement as per the fair value hierarchy set out above.

Significant estimates made in determining the fair value of held for sale assets are as follows:

Strait Oil & Gas (UK) Limited

The Group has made the decision to divest Strait in June 2014. as part of the revised strategy to focus on Trinidad and the
Group is in the process of marketing its equity interest in Strait. The Group is optimistic that a buyer will be found for this
asset. In the absence of a fully executed sale agreement at the report date the Group has chosen to write down the value of
its interest in Strait to US$5million which is considered by the Company to be a fair market value for the level of cash
consideration which may be received upon closing of a sale. This valuation is based upon expressions of interest received
and negotiations which have taken place with potential purchasers.

Latin American Resources (LAR)

The Group has also made the decision to divest LAR in June 2015. The Group is optimistic that a buyer will be found for this
asset. In the absence of a fully executed sale agreement at the report date the Group has chosen to write down the value of
its interest in LAR to US$1million which is considered by the Company to be a fair market value for the level of cash
consideration which may be received upon closing of a sale. This valuation is based upon expressions of interest received
and negotiations which have taken place with potential purchasers.

(b)  Fair value hierarchy
AASB 13 requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

(d) Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1),

(e) Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly (level 2), and

(f) Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs (level 3).

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the end of the
reporting period. There were no transfers between the levels of the fair value hierarchy during the year ended 30 June 2015.

The following table presents the Group’s non-financial instruments measured and recognised at fair value at 30 June 2015 on
a non-recurring basis:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 30 June 2015 Us$ Us$ USs$

Assets

Assets classified as held for sale
Strait Oil & Gas (UK) Limited -
Latin American Resources -

5,000,000 5,000,000
2,179,358 2,179,358

Total assets - - 7,179,358 7,179,358
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Note 38: Events after the Reporting Date

Loan Financing with Lind

Subsequent to the period end, the Company announced that its application to the Supreme Court of Western Australia to set
aside the statutory demand from Lind Asset Management, LLC had been unsuccessful. The Supreme Court extended the
time for payment of the demand. Subsequently, Range filed an appeal against the Supreme Court's decision, and the Western
Australian Court of Appeal extended the deadline for repayment until the later of 31 August 2015 or 7 days from the
determination of the appeal. In advance of the appeal, Range paid US$5 million to Lind without prejudice to its contentions in
the appeal. On 10 September 2015 the appeal was heard and as at the date of this report, no decision has been received from
the Western Australian Court of Appeal.

Completion of US$30m funding

Following the Company’s announcement on 1 September 2015, Range received proceeds of US$22.1 million in cash from
Beijing Sibo Investment Management LP (“Sibo”). As per the terms of the subscription agreement, Range issued
1,797,620,912 new ordinary fully paid shares of the Company to Sibo at a subscription price of £0.008 per Share, which
represented a premium of approximately 45% to the share price of the Company on the close of AIM on 2 September 2015.
The Company also issued 194,585,862 unlisted warrants with an exercise price of £0.01 and 172,557,274 unlisted warrants
with an exercise price of £0.02 to Sibo. All warrants have an expiry date of 3 September 2019. Tranche 1 subscription
proceeds of £5.2 million (approximately US$7.9 million) in cash had already been received by the Company, as announced on
5 June 2015. Following completion of Tranche 2, the total funding provided by Sibo is US$30 million. This gave Sibo a total
holding of approximately 32% in the enlarged share capital of the Company.

St Mary’s block

During the period, the Company successfully signed the Exploration & Production licence and negotiated the Joint Operating
Agreement on the new St Mary’s block. The work programme on the block has commenced with the audit of existing field
infrastructure, facilities and wells currently underway. Range has committed to drilling four exploration wells, shooting 160km of
2D seismic and 60km2 of 3D seismic, along with various other technical studies before the end of 2018.

Subsequent to the period end, Range used US$8 million of the Sibo proceeds to provide the Ministry of Energy and Energy
Affairs with the required performance bond in support of the minimum work obligations on the St Mary’s licence. The Company
is seeking alternative sources of finance to replace this bond, which would allow the cash collateral to be released and used for
other purposes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Note 39: New Accounting Standards and Interpretations

Australian Accounting Standards/Amendments Released But Not Yet Effective: 30 June 2015 Year End

Certain new accounting Standards and Interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2015 reporting
periods and have not been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s assessment of the impact of these new Standards and

Interpretations is set out below. In all cases the Group intends to apply these standards from the application date as indicated
in the table below.

Standard

Group

Reference | Title o o Key Requirements Impact
application date | application date
AASB 9 Financial 1 January 2018 | 1 July 2018 There will be no
Instruments AASB 9 addresses the significant
classification, measurement and impact on the
derecognition of financial assets Group on the
and financial liabilities and adoption of this
introduces new rules for hedge standard.
accounting.
In December 2014, the AASB
made further changes to the
classification and measurement
rules and also introduced a new
impairment model. These latest
amendments now complete the
financial instruments standard.
AASB 15 | Revenue 1 January 2018 | 1 July 2018 Management is
from The AASB has issued a new currently
Contracts standard for the recognition of assessing the
with revenue. This will replace AASB impact of the
Customers 118 which covers contracts for new rules.

goods and services and AASB111
which covers construction
contracts.

The new standard is based on the
principle that revenue is
recognised when control of a good
or service transfers to a customer,
so the notion of control replaces
the existing notion of risks and
rewards.

The standard permits a modified
retrospective approach for the
adoption. Under this approach
entities will recognise any
applicable transitional adjustments
in retained earnings on the date of
the initial application without
restating the comparative period.

Entities will only need to apply the
new rules to contracts that are not
completed as of the date of initial
application.

At this stage, the
Group is not able
to estimate the
impact of the
new rules on the
Group’s financial
statements. The
Group will make
more detailed
assessments of
the impact over
the next 12
months.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2015

Note 39: New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued)

Standard

Group

Reference | Title o o Key Requirements Impact
application date | application date
AASB Amendments | 1 January 2016 | 1 July 2016 There will be no
2015-2 to Australian This standard makes amendments | significant
Accounting to AASB 101 Presentation of impact on the
Standards - Financial Statements arising from | Group on the
Disclosure the IASB'’s Disclosure Initiative adoption of this
Initiative: Project. The amendments are standard.
Amendments designed to further encourage The Group is
to AASB 101 companies to apply professional currently
judgment in determining what conducting an
information to disclose in the exercise of
financial statements. reviewing
financial report
The amendments also clarify that | disclosures.

companies should use
professional judgment in
determining where and in what
order in formation is to be
presented in the financial
disclosures.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that would be expected to have a material impact on Range in the
current or future period and on foreseeable future transactions.

Note 40: Company Details
The registered office of the company is:

Ground Floor, BGC Centre
28 The Esplanade

Perth WA 6000

Australia

Telephone: +61 8 6205 3012
Facsimile: +618 6316 2211

The principal place of business is:

Ground Floor, BGC Centre
28 The Esplanade

Perth WA 6000

Australia

Telephone: +61 8 6205 3012
Facsimile: +61 8 6316 2211
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RANGE RESOURCES LIMITED
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 88 002 522 009

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

The directors of the company declare that:

1.

The financial statements, comprising the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of financial position, consolidated statement of cash flows, consolidated statement of changes in
equity, accompanying notes, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and:

(a) comply with Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional
reporting requirements; and

(b) give a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 30 June 2015 and of its performance for the year
ended on that date.

The company has included in the notes to the financial statements an explicit and unreserved statement of compliance
with International Financial Reporting Standards.

In the directors’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and
when they become due and payable.

The directors have been given the declarations by the chief executive officer and chief financial officer required by section
295A.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors and is signed for and on behalf of the
directors by:

s

David Chen
Chairman
30 September 2015
Annual report 2015 Range Resources Limited and Controlled Entities
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Tel: +61 8 6382 4600 38 Station Street
BD Fax: +61 8 6382 4601 Subiaco, WA 6008
PO Box 700 West Perth WA 6872

www.bdo.com.au
A— .
Australia

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of Range Resources Limited

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Range Resources Limited, which comprises the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2015, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the directors’ declaration of the
consolidated entity comprising the company and the entities it controlled at the year’s end or from
time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error. In Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101
Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial statements comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with
relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the company’s
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd ABN 79 112 284 787 is a member of a national association of independent entities which are all members of BDO Australia Ltd ABN
77 050 110 275, an Australian company limited by guarantee. BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd and BDO Australia Ltd are members of BDO International Ltd, a UK
company limited by guarantee, and form part of the international BDO network of independent member firms. Liability limited by a scheme approved under
Professional Standards Legislation, other than for the acts or omissions of financial services licensees.
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Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations
Act 2001. We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which
has been given to the directors of Range Resources Limited, would be in the same terms if given to the
directors as at the time of this auditor’s report.

Opinion
In our opinion:

(@) the financial report of Range Resources Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2015
and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in
the Note 1.

Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in the directors’ report for the year ended 30 June
2015. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the
Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with
Australian Auditing Standards.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Range Resources Limited for the year ended 30 June 2015
complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd

.-/Ir II’-:'I
_J.IJ_ F LS

? %’M :

Jarrad Prue

Director

Perth, 30 September 2015
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED)

This report details the nature and amount of remuneration for each director of Range Resources
Limited.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of Range Resources Limited has been designed to align director and
executive objectives with shareholder and business objectives by providing a fixed remuneration
component and offering specific long-term incentives based on key performance areas affecting
the Group’s financial results. The Board of Range Resources Limited believes the remuneration
policy to be appropriate and effective in its ability to attract and retain the best executives and
directors to run and manage the Group, as well as create alignment of goals between directors,
executives and shareholders.

The Board’s policy for determining the nature and amount of remuneration for Board members
and senior executives of the Company is as follows:

The remuneration policy, setting the terms and conditions for the executive directors and other
senior executives, was developed and approved by the Board.

Non-executive directors, executive directors and senior executives receive a base salary (which is
based on factors such as length of service and experience), which is calculated on a total cost
basis and includes any FBT charges related to employee benefits including motor vehicles, as
well as employer contributions to superannuation funds.

Executive and Non-Executive directors can be employed by the Company on a consultancy basis,
on Board approval, with remuneration and terms stipulated in individual consultancy agreements.

The Board exercises its discretion in determining remuneration performance of executives. Given
the size and nature of the entity, the Board does not deem it to be realistic to measure
performance against defined criteria. As such remuneration and performance have historically
not been linked.

All remuneration paid to directors and executives is valued at the cost to the Company and
expensed. Shares given to directors and executives are valued as the difference between the
market price of those shares and the amount paid by the director or executive. Unlisted options
are valued using the Black-Scholes methodology.

The Board policy is to remunerate non-executive directors at market rates for comparable
companies taking into consideration time, commitment and level of responsibility. As approved by
shareholders in 30 November 2011, the aggregate non-executive remuneration per annum is
currently A$350,000 (US$260,555). The Remuneration and Nomination Committee determines
payments to the non-executive directors and reviews their remuneration annually. Independent
external advice is sought when required. Fees for non-executive directors are not linked to the
performance of the Group. The directors are not required to hold any shares in the Company
under the Constitution of the Company; however, to align Directors’ interests with shareholder
interests, the directors are encouraged to hold shares in the Company.

Options may be issued to directors and executives as part of remuneration. Options issued to
directors have historically not been based on performance criteria. However, the options issued to
the current directors on 27 March 2015 and the Key Management Personnel on 1 September
2015 principally vest upon satisfaction of set company performance criteria detailed in Note 31.

Under the Company’s share trading policy, all employees and directors of the Company and its
related companies are prohibited from trading in the Company’s shares or other securities if they
are in possession of inside information.

The Board believes that it has implemented suitable practices and procedures that are
appropriate for an organisation of this size and maturity.

Annual report 2016 Range Resources Limited and Controlled Entities
ABN 88 002 522 009
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED) (continued)

Remuneration Committee

A Remuneration Committee was established during the year ended 30 June 2015. One meeting
was held during the current year to undertake annual review of performance remuneration for
senior executives and directors.

Company Performance, Shareholder Wealth and Directors and Executives Remuneration

No relationship exists between shareholder wealth, director and executive remuneration and
Company performance.

Use of remuneration consultants

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Group contracted the service of a remuneration
consultant, The Curzon partnership, to provide market comparison for executive and non-
executive remuneration. The fee for this service was GB£480 (US$755). No such services were
contracted in the year ended 30 June 2016.

Voting and comments made at the company’s 2015 Annual General Meeting

Range Resources Limited received 99% of “yes” votes on its remuneration report for the 2015
financial year. Range notes this was a significant improvement on the previous year and reflects

the conservative remuneration practices of the company.

Key Management Personnel

Name Position Held Appointment / Resignation Date

Mr Zhiwei Gu

Mr Yan Liu

Mr David Yu Chen
Ms Juan Wang
Mr Yu Wang

Mr Lubing Liu

Dr Yi Zeng
Officers

Mr Nick Beattie

Ms Sara Kelly

Annual report 2016

Non-Executive Chairman
Non-Executive Director
Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Chairman
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

CFO & Company Secretary

Company Secretary

125

appointed 25 May 2016

resigned 31 January 2016
re-appointed 25 May 2016
appointed 31 January 2016
resigned 25 May 2016
appointed 25 May 2016
resigned 25 May 2016

appointed 30 September 2015
appointed 16 June 2016
appointed 16 June 2016

appointed 23 May 2014 (as CFO)
and 30 March 2015 (as Company
Secretary)

resigned 21 Jul 2014, re-appointed
7 January 2015

Range Resources Limited and Controlled Entities
ABN 88 002 522 009
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(ii)

REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED) (continued)

Details of Remuneration

The remuneration for the Key Management Personnel of the Group during the year was as follows:

Post- Share-
Short-term benefits employment based
benefits payments
Cash L Super-
2016 salary One-off Termlne_\tlon annuation/ Options Total
and fees payment benefits pensions
Us$ UsS$ USs$ Us$ Us$ uUss$
Directors &
officers
Mr Gu 53,065 - - - 38,317 91,382
Mr Y Liu 113,605 - - 3,052 50,120 166,777
Mr Chen 141,437 - - - 67,058 208,495
Ms Wang 30,000 - - - 16,764 46,764
Mr Wang - - - - - -
Mr L Liu 10,375 - - - - 10,375
Dr Zeng 1,042 - - - - 1,042
Mr Beattie 211,943 15,700 - 21,194 62,165 311,002
561,467 15,700 - 24,246 234,424 835,837
Post- Share-
Short-term benefits employment based
benefits payments
Cash N Super-
2015 salary and Cash Termlna_ttlon annuation/ Options Total
bonus benefits .
fees pensions
USss$ Uss$ USss$ USs$ uUss uUss
Directors &
officers
Sir Sam Jonah 37,609 - - - 37,609
Mr Scott Russell 103,137 150,253 - - 253,390
Mr Beattie 228,342 - 28,152 - 256,494
Mr Edwards-
Jones 37,609 - - - 37,609
Mr Macliver 5,584 - - - 5,584
Mr Lyon (i) 50,093 - - - 50,093
Dr Bukovics 37,889 - - - 37,889
Mr Riekie (ii) 45,836 - - - 45,836
Mr Olson 21,265 - - - 21,265
Mr Chen 88,710 - - 34,186 122,896
Mr Liu 86,418 - - 34,186 120,604
Ms Wang 19,152 - - 8,546 27,698
Mr Gu 16,694 - - 8,546 25,240
778,338 150,253 28,152 85,464 1,042,207

Fees paid to Mr Lyon comprised US$37,299 received in his capacity as a non-executive director and
US$12,794 received for additional consulting work.
Fees paid to Mr Rieke comprised US$31,416 received in his capacity as a non-executive director and

US$14,420

received

for
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED) (continued)
Equity instrument disclosures relating to Key Management Personnel

Year ended 30 June 2016

i. Share-based payments

The following options were issued to key management personnel:

Name Number of options Grant date
Mr Nick Beattie 25,000,000 1 September 2015
Mr Yan Liu 20,000,000 25 May 2016 (i)
Mr Kerry Gu 22,500,000 25 May 2016 (i)

(i) Options to be granted on gaining shareholder approval

The options expire on 30 March 2020 with an exercise price of £0.01 per share.

The vesting conditions of these options are as follows:

a) 25% became exercisable on 31 March 2016

b) 25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 1,500 barrels of oil
per day for a continuous 15 day period in Trinidad

c) 25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 2,500 barrels of oil
per day for a continuous 15 day period in Trinidad

d) 25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 4,000 barrels of oil
per day for a continuous 15 day period in Trinidad

Mr Nick Beattie options:

The value per option at the grant date was 0.56 cents, determined using the Black Scholes option
price model using the following key inputs:

Volatility: 100% Probability of meeting vesting conditions: 100%
Risk free rate: 1.92% Exercise price: £0.01
USD/GBP exchange rate: 0.6509 Share price on grant date £0.0057

Mr Kerry Gu and Mr Yan Liu options:

The value per option at the grant date was 0.30 cents, determined using the Black Scholes option
price model using the following key inputs:

Volatility: 100% Probability of meeting vesting conditions: 100%
Risk free rate: 1.92% Exercise price: £0.01
USD/GBP exchange rate: 0.7468 Share price on grant date £0.0037
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED) (continued)
Year ended 30 June 2015

On 27 March 2015, the following options were issued to key management personnel:

Name Number of options
Mr Yan Liu 30,000,000

Mr David Chen 30,000,000

Mr Zhiwei Gu 7,500,000

Ms Juan Wang 7,500,000

All options expire on 30 March 2020 with an exercise price of £0.01 per share.

The vesting conditions of these options are as follows:

a) 25% will become exercisable on the date that is one year from the issue date

b) 25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 1,500 barrels of oil
per day for a continuous 15 day period in Trinidad

c) 25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 2,500 barrels of oil
per day for a continuous 15 day period in Trinidad

d) 25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 4,000 barrels of oil
per day for a continuous 15 day period in Trinidad

The value per option at the grant date was 0.51 cents, determined using the Black Scholes option
price model using the following key inputs:

Volatility: 100% Grant date: 27 March 2015
Risk free rate: 1.92% Exercise price: £0.01
USD/GBP exchange rate: 0.7752 Share price on grant date £0.054

ii. Shares provided on exercise of remuneration options

No options issued in prior years affects remuneration in the current or future financial years.

iii. Fully paid share holdings

The numbers of shares in the company held during the financial year or at time of resignation by
Key Management Personnel of the Company, including their personally related parties, are set
out below.

2016 Balance at Granted as Other Balance at Balance
the start of compensation changes the end of held

the year the year indirectly
Mr Gu - - 2,083,333 2,083,333 -
Mr Chen 10,288,070 - 8,000,000 18,288,070 -
Mr Y Liu - - 6,333,333 6,333,333 -
Ms Wang - - 2,083,333 2,083,333 -
Mr Wang - - - - -
Mr L Liu - - - - -
Dr Zeng - - - - -
Mr Beattie - - 2,916,667 2,916,667 -
Total 10,288,070 - 21,416,666 31,704,736 -

Annual report 2016 Range Resources Limited and Controlled Entities

ABN 88 002 522 009
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED) (continued)

iv. Options held by key management personnel

The numbers of options in the company held during the financial year or at time of resignation by
Key Management Personnel of the Company, including their personally related parties, are set

out below:
2016 Balance at Granted as Other Balance at Vested and
the start of compensation changes the end of exercisable
the year the year
Mr Gui (ii) 7,500,000 22,500,000 - 30,000,000 7,500,000
Mr Y Liu (i)(ii) 30,000,000 20,000,000 (20,000,000) 30,000,000 7,500,000
Mr Chen 72,742,654 - - 72,742,654 50,242,654
Ms Wang 7,500,000 - - 7,500,000 1,875,000
Mr Wang - - - - -
Mr L Liu - - - - -
Dr Zeng - - - - -
Mr Beattie - 25,000,000 - 25,000,000 6,250,000
Mr L Liu - - - - -
Mr Zeng - - - - -
Total 117,742,654 67,500,000 (20,000,000) 165,242,654 73,367,654
(i) During the year 20,000,000 options were cancelled following Yan Liu’s change in
position from executive to non-executive director. An amount of US$22,791 was
reversed in the current year.
(ii) Options to be granted on gaining shareholder approval

Loans to Key Management Personnel

There were no loans made to directors of Range Resources Limited and other Key Management
Personnel of the Group, including their personally related parties during the 2015 or 2016
financial years.

Transactions with Key Management Personnel

The following transactions occurred during the year with Key Management Personnel or their
related parties:

Balances at year end due to Key and Former Key Management Personnel

US$
David Chen and related entities 12,267
Lubing Liu and related entities 10,375
Dr Zeng 1,042
Kiki Wang and related entities 2,500
Kerry Gu and related entities 20,833
Sir Sam Jonah (i) 152,943
Soncer Limited (i) 1,519

(iy These were related parties throughout the prior financial year until 28 November 2014.

Annual report 2016 Range Resources Limited and Controlled Entities
ABN 88 002 522 009
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED) (continued)
Employment contracts of Directors and other Key Management Personnel

On appointment, Executive Directors and Other Key Management Personnel enter into an
employment contract with the Company (or another company within the Group). This contract
sets out their duties, remuneration and other terms of employment. These contracts may be
terminated by either the Company or the employee as detailed below.

All non-executive directors are eligible to receive consulting fees for services provided to the
Company over and above the services expected from a non-executive director.

Mr Zhiwei Gu as Non-Executive Chairman (appointed as Non-Executive Chairman on 25 May
2016)

Non-Executive Chairman contract

Contract start date —25 May 2016

Total compensation including executive services - US$250,000 per annum

Superannuation — no superannuation entitlement

Notice period — 3 months

Termination benefits — payment in lieu of notice at Company option for termination without cause

Non-executive Director contract

Contract start date —19 January 2015

Base payment - US$30,000 per annum
Superannuation — no superannuation entitlement
Termination benefits — none

Mr Yan Liu as Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director (resigned as CEO and
Executive Director on 31 January 2016, re-appointed as CEO and Executive Director on 25 May
2016)

Contract start date —25 May 2016

Base payment - AU$215,000 per annum

Superannuation — 10% of base salary

Notice period — 3 months

Termination benefits — payment in lieu of notice at Company option for termination without cause

Non-Executive Director contract

Contract start date —31 January 2016

Base payment - US$30,000 per annum
Superannuation — no superannuation entitlement
Notice period — none

Termination benefits — none

Prior Executive Director contract

Contract start date —11 December 2014

Base payment - US$155,000 per annum

Superannuation — no superannuation entitlement

Notice period — 3 months

Termination benefits — payment in lieu of notice at Company option for termination without cause

Annual report 2016 Range Resources Limited and Controlled Entities
ABN 88 002 522 009
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED) (continued)

Mr David Chen as Non-Executive Director (resigned as Non-Executive chairman on 25 May
2016)

Non-Executive Director contract

Contract start date —25 May 2016

Base payment - US$30,000 per annum
Superannuation — no superannuation entitlement
Notice period — none

Termination benefits — none

Non- Executive Chairman contract

Contract start date —11 December 2014

Total compensation including executive services - US$155,000 per annum

Superannuation — no superannuation entitlement

Notice period — 3 months

Termination benefits — payment in lieu of notice at Company option for termination without cause

Ms Juan Wang as Non-Executive Director
Contract start date —19 January 2015

Base payment - US$30,000 per annum
Superannuation — no superannuation entitlement
Termination benefits — none

Mr Yu Wang as Non-Executive Director (appointed 30 September 2015)
No remuneration received

Mr Lubing Liu as Non-Executive Director (appointed 16 June 2016)

Contract start date —16 June 2016

Base payment - US$25,000 per annum

Superannuation — no superannuation entitlement

Termination benefits — none

Consulting services — Mr Liu may provide additional consulting services over and above services
rendered to the Company as a Non-Executive Director from time to time as required at a rate of
between US$600 and $1,200 per day.

Dr Yi Zeng as Non-Executive Director (appointed 16 June 2016)
Contract start date —16 June 2016

Base payment - US$25,000 per annum

Superannuation — no superannuation entitlement

Termination benefits — none

Mr Nick Beattie as Chief Financial Officer

Contract start date — 23 May 2014

Base payment - GB£135,000 per annum, reviewed annually
Pension — 10% of base

Bonus — Eligible to receive bonus at the discretion of the board
Notice period — 3-6 months

Termination benefits — 6 months’ salary

End of Audited Remuneration Report

Annual report 2016 Range Resources Limited and Controlled Entities
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MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

During the financial year 5 meetings of the board of directors were held. Attendances by each
director during the year were as follows:

Board meetings

Director Eligible to attend Attended
Zhiwei Gu 5 5
Yan Liu 5 5
David Chen 5 5
Juan Wang 5 4
Yu Wang (appointed 30 September 2015) 4 4

Lubing Liu (appointed 16 June 2016)
Yi Zeng (appointed 16 June 2016) - -

INDEMNIFYING OFFICERS OR AUDITOR

In accordance with the constitution, except where prohibited by the Corporations Act 2001, every
director, principal executive officer and secretary of the Company shall be indemnified out of the
property of the Company against any liability incurred by him/her in his/her capacity as director,
principal executive officer or secretary of the Company or any related corporation in respect of
any act or omission whatsoever and howsoever occurring or in defending any proceedings
whether civil or criminal.

During the financial year, the Company has paid premiums to insure the Directors and Officers
against certain liabilities arising out of the conduct of acting as an officer of the Company. Under
the terms and conditions of the insurance contract, the nature of liabilities insured against and the
premium paid cannot be disclosed.

PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF THE COMPANY

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or to
intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a party for the purpose of taking
responsibility on behalf of the Company for all or any part of those proceedings.

The Company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.

Annual report 2016 Range Resources Limited and Controlled Entities
ABN 88 002 522 009
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OPTIONS

As at 30 June 2016, the unissued ordinary shares of Range Resources Limited under option are
as follows:

Date of expiry Exercise price Number under option
11 July 2016 £0.037 5,000,000
25 July 2016 £0.021 476,190

29 July 2016 £0.021 952,381

31 August 2016 £0.021 6,714,284
31 August 2016 £0.020 9,000,000
30 September 2016 £0.019 3,947,368
30 September 2016 £0.018 8,666,670
31 October 2016 £0.018 694,445

31 October 2016 £0.017 2,205,885
31 October 2016 £0.016 1,250,000
31 October 2016 £0.015 17,333,336
30 November 2016 £0.015 3,000,001
30 November 2016 £0.013 5,153,846
11 December 2016 A$0.0321 2,000,000
31 December 2016 £0.012 2,000,000
31 December 2016 £0.011 5,000,000
31 January 2017 £0.075 5,180,000
31 January 2017 £0.011 23,636,364
9 September 2017 £0.03 7,500,000
15 October 2017 £0.01203 31,000,000
31 January 2018 A$0.05 1,000,000
14 July 2018 £0.01 161,472,247
14 July 2018 £0.02 118,729,593
31 August 2018 £0.01 14,000,000
3 September 2019 £0.01 194,585,862
3 September 2019 £0.02 172,557,274
30 March 2020 £0.01 80,000,000
Total 883,055,746

During the year ended 30 June 2016 no ordinary shares of Range Resources Limited were issued
on the exercise of options (2015: 49,051,468). The holders of these options do not have any
rights under the options to participate in any share issues of the Company.

NON-AUDIT SERVICES

The total value of non-audit services provided by a related practice of BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd in
respect to the Company’s tax compliance is US$34,149 (2015: US$72,570).

The board of directors has considered the position and is satisfied that the provision of the non-
audit services is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by
the Corporations Act 2001. The directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services by
the auditor did not compromise the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001 for the following reasons:

e all non-audit services have been reviewed by the Board to ensure they do not impact the
impartiality and objectivity of the auditor; and

e none of the services undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as
set out in APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants.

Annual report 2016 Range Resources Limited and Controlled Entities
ABN 88 002 522 009
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AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

The auditor’s independence declaration, as required under Section 307C of the Corporations Act
2001, for the year ended 30 June 2016 has been received and can be found on the following
page.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Lo\

Zhiwei Gu
Chairman
30 September 2016
Annual report 2016 Range Resources Limited and Controlled Entities
ABN 88 002 522 009
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Tel: +61 8 6382 4600 38 Station Street
BD Fax: +61 8 6382 4601 Subiaco, WA 6008
www.bdo.com.au PO Box 700 West Perth WA 6872

Australia

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY JARRAD PRUE TO THE DIRECTORS OF RANGE RESOURCES
LIMITED

As lead auditor of Range Resources Limited for the year ended 30 June 2016, | declare that, to the best
of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

1. No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

2. No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Range Resources Limited and the entities it controlled during the
period.

Ue.

Jarrad Prue

Director

BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd
Perth, 30 September 2016

BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd ABN 79 112 284 787 is a member of a national association of independent entities which are all members of BDO Australia Ltd ABN
77 050 110 275, an Australian company limited by guarantee. BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd and BDO Australia Ltd are members of BDO International Ltd, a UK
company limited by guarantee, and form part of the international BDO network of independent member firms. Liability limited by a scheme approved under
Professional Standards Legislation, other than for the acts or omissions of financial services licensees.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Note Consolidated

2016 2015

uss uss
Revenue from continuing operations 3 7,062,226 13,152,954
Operating expenses (7,266,830) (6,440,734)
Royalties (2,104,894) (4,654,241)
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation (5,490,676) (4,917,053)
Cost of sales 4a (14,862,400) (16,012,028)
Gross loss (7,800,174) (2,859,074)
Other income and expenses from continuing
operations
Other income 3 51,193 428,588
Finance costs 4b (934,321) (4,347,575)
General and administration expenses 4b (3,400,038) (9,948,494)
Assets written-off 4c (1,000,761) (692,929)
Exploration expenditure and land fees 4d (4,261,435) (2,202,748)
Impairment of non-current assets 16,19 (20,564,829) -
Loss on disposal of subsidiary de (1,491,857)

Loss before income tax expense from continuing
operations

(37,910,365)

(21,114,089)

Income tax expense 6 (1,084,520) (1,467,806)
Loss after income tax from continuing operations (38,994,885) (22,581,895)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax 5a (4,880,000) (7,697,159)
Loss for the year attributable to equity holders of

Range Resources Limited (43,874,885) (30,279,054)
Other comprehensive income

Iltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Exchange differences on translation of foreign 26¢

operations 160,799 455,307
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of
tax 160,799 455,307

Total comprehensive loss attributable to equity
holders of Range Resources Limited

(43,714,086)

(29,823,747)

Loss per share from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the

Company:
Basic loss per share (cents per share) 8a (0.54) (0.44)
Diluted loss per share (cents per share) 8b n/a n/a

Loss per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company:
Basic loss per share (cents per share) 8a (0.60) (0.59)
Diluted loss per share (cents per share) 8b n/a n/a

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2016

Note Consolidated
2016 2015
USs$ US$

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9 13,001,252 10,530,104
Restricted deposits 10 8,000,000 -
Trade and other receivables 11 4,620,266 5,148,978
Other current assets 12 178,158 783,385

25,799,676 16,462,467
Assets classified as held for sale 13 1,250,000 6,000,000
Total current assets 27,049,676 22,462,467
Non-current assets
Deferred tax asset 6 3,959,803 286,693
Available for sale financial assets 14 45,238 446,000
Goodwill 16 28,985,014 46,198,974
Property, plant and equipment 17 2,329,228 1,502,442
Exploration & evaluation expenditure 18 645,801 668,951
Producing assets 19 95,077,882 90,350,492
Total non-current assets 131,042,966 139,453,552
Total assets 158,092,642 161,916,019
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 12,244,873 13,654,195
Current tax liabilities 286,723 296,894
Borrowings 2l1a - 7,518,077
Option liability 21b 835,714 808,083
Provisions 22 740,268 734,858
Total current liabilities 14,107,578 23,012,107
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 23,764,005 -
Deferred tax liabilities 23 47,561,612 43,359,199
Employee service benefits 24 422,315 521,257
Total non-current liabilities 71,747,932 43,880,456
Total liabilities 85,855,510 66,892,563
Net assets 72,237,132 95,023,456
Equity
Contributed equity 25 383,882,192 363,205,277
Reserves 26 24,227,125 29,748,880

Accumulated losses

Total equity

(335,872,185)

(297,930,701)

72,237,132

95,023,456

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying

notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR YEAR ENDED

30 JUNE 2016

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers and employees

Payments for exploration and evaluation expenditure
Income taxes paid

Interest received

Interest & other finance costs

Payments relating to held for sale asset

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payment for property, plant & equipment

Proceeds from sale of available for sale financial assets
Payment for producing assets

Payments for exploration and evaluation assets
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of assets held-for-sale

Transfer to restricted deposit

Receipts from loan repayments/(Loans to external
parties)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity (net of capital raising
costs)

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Net cash inflow from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Net foreign exchange differences

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year

Note

30

9

Consolidated

2016 2015
Us$ us$
7,171,488 13,313,284
(10,790,650)  (19,472,258)
- (392,219)
(32,940) (208,536)
45,210 3,390
(449,143) (198,925)
(130,000) -
(4,186,035) (6,955,264)
(140,474) (1,576,298)
- 450,643
(260,888) (3,992,670)
- (145,346)
11,799 -
- 5,202,379
(8,000,000) -
- 500,000
(8,389,563) 438,708
22,338,344 8,890,800
- 5,250,000
(7,225,997) -
15,112,347 14,140,800
2,536,749 7,624,244
(65,601) (71,550)
10,530,104 2,977,410
13,001,252 10,530,104

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying

notes.

Annual report 2016

139

Range Resources Limited and Controlled Entities
ABN 88 002 522 009

17



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations, other
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act
2001. Range Resources Limited is a for-profit entity for the purpose of preparing the financial
statements.

The financial statements cover the Group consisting of Range Resources Limited and its controlled
entities. Financial information for Range Resources Limited as an individual entity is disclosed in Note
33. Range Resources Limited is a listed public company, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by the Group in the preparation
of the financial statements. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise
stated.

Basis of preparation
Reporting basis and conventions

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs
modified by the revaluation of selected non-current assets, and financial assets and financial liabilities
for which the fair value basis of accounting has been applied.

Compliance with IFRS

The financial statements of Range Resources Limited also comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). The financial
statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 29 September 2015.

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “Functional Currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in United States Dollars (USD), which is Range
Resources Limited’s functional and presentation currency.

Going concern

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis, which contemplates
continuity of normal business activities and the realisation of assets and discharge of liabilities in the
normal course of business.

As disclosed in the financial statements, the Group incurred losses of US$43.9m for the year ending 30
June 2016 which includes significant non-cash items of U$32.0m. The Group also had net cash
outflows from operating activities for the year totalling US$4.2m. Range considers that with anticipated
production growth from its waterflood programme, this cash outflow will be eliminated in the 2017
financial year.

At the reporting date, Range had US$13.0m of unrestricted cash at bank. Range has net current
liabilities (excluding cash, restricted deposits, option liability and provisions) of US$6.5m. This cash, net
revenue from production, and extended credit terms of 720 days provided by LandOcean for all oil field
work undertaken in Trinidad is more than sufficient to cover the Group’s cash requirements for the 12
months from date of sign off including any net current liabilities due.

The Company will seek to rationalise the portfolio of non-core assets and redeploy capital to maximise
current production from its assets in Trinidad and pursue growth opportunities that enhance cash
generation and returns to shareholders.

Adoption of new and revised accounting standards

In the year ended 30 June 2016, the directors have reviewed all of the new and revised Standards and
Interpretations issued by the AASB that are relevant to the Company and effective for the current
annual reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

As a result of this review, the directors have determined that there is no material impact of the new and
revised Standards and Interpretations on the Company and, therefore, no material change is necessary
to Group accounting policies.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Range
Resources Limited (“Parent Entity” or “Company”) as at 30 June 2016 and the results of all subsidiaries
for the year then ended. Range Resources Limited and its subsidiaries together are referred to as the
“Group”.

Subsidiaries are all those entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
investment with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity.

Where controlled entities have entered or left the Group during the year, their operating results have
been included/excluded from the date control was obtained or until the date control ceased. A list of
controlled entities is contained in Note 15 to the financial statements. All controlled entities have a June
financial year-end.

All inter-company balances and transactions between entities in the Group, including any unrealised
profits or losses, have been eliminated on consolidation. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistencies with those policies applied by the Company.

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20-50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.

Income tax

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any non-
assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or are
substantively enacted by the reporting date within each jurisdiction.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. No
deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of an asset or liability, excluding a
business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in profit or loss except where it relates to items
that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current
tax assets and liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation that the
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

Group will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be realised and comply with
the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

Property, plant and equipment
Owned assets

Plant and equipment are measured on the historical cost basis less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

The cost of fixed assets constructed within the Group includes the cost of materials, direct labour,
borrowing costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed and variable overheads.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Oil and gas assets

These properties represents the accumulation of all exploration, evaluation and development
expenditure, pre-production development costs and ongoing costs of continuing the develop reserves for
production incurred by or on behalf of the entity in relation to areas of interests.

Where further development expenditure is incurred in respect of a property after the commencement of
production, such expenditure is carried forward as part of the cost of that property only when expected
future economic benefits are to be received, otherwise such expenditure is classified as part of the cost
of production.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including capitalised lease assets is depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their useful lives to the Group commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or
the estimated useful lives of the improvements.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are:

Class of Fixed Asset Depreciation Rate
Plant & equipment 11.25% - 33%
Production equipment 10 - 20%

Motor vehicles, furniture & fixtures 25-33%
Leasehold improvements 10 - 12.50%

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date.

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by directors to ensure it is not in
excess of the recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis
of the expected net cash flows which will be received from the asset's employment and subsequent
disposal. The expected net cash flows have been discounted to their present values in determining
recoverable amounts.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These
gains or losses are included in profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, amounts included in the
revaluation reserve relating to that asset are transferred to accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

(d) Exploration and evaluation expenditure and the recognition of assets

(e)

Generally, exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred is accumulated in respect of each
identifiable area of interest. These costs are only carried forward to the extent that they are expected to
be recouped through the successful development of the area or where activities in the area have not yet
reached a stage that permits reasonable assessment of the existence of economically recoverable
reserves.

Accumulated costs in relation to an abandoned area are written off in full against profit in the year in
which the decision to abandon the area is made.

A regular review is undertaken of each area of interest to determine the appropriateness of continuing to
carry forward costs in relation to that area of interest.

The recoverability of the carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation assets is dependent on the
successful development and commercial exploitation, or alternatively, sale of the respective areas of
interest.

The carrying values of expenditures carried forward are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date
when the facts, events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Accumulated expenditures are written off to profit or loss to the extent to which they are considered to
be impaired.

Range Resources Limited is applying AASB 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources
which is equivalent to IFRS 6. The carrying value of exploration and evaluation expenditure is historical
cost less impairment.

Ongoing exploration costs incurred in respect of the Group’s Trinidadian and Colombian interests are
expensed as incurred. Initial acquisition costs to obtain the right to explore are capitalised.

Producing assets

Upon the commencement of commercial production from each identifiable area of interest, the
exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred up to that point is impairment tested and then
reclassified to producing assets.

When production commences, the accumulated costs for the relevant area of interest are amortised on
a units of production method based on the ratio of actual production to remaining proved reserves (P1)
as estimated by independent petroleum engineers over the life of the area according to the rate of
depletion of the economically recoverable reserves.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

The carrying amount of producing assets is reviewed annually by directors to ensure it is not in excess of
the recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. In assessing value in use, an asset’s estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a post-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash flows that are largely independent from other assets or groups of assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. For producing assets, the
estimated future cash flows for the value-in-use calculation are based on estimates, the most significant
of which are 2P hydrocarbon reserves, future production profiles, commaodity prices, operating costs and
any future development costs necessary to produce the reserves. Under a fair value less costs to sell
calculation, future cash flows are based on estimates of 2P hydrocarbon reserves. Estimates of future
commodity prices are based on the Group’s best estimate of future market prices with reference to
external market analysts’ forecasts, current spot prices and forward curves. Future commodity prices are
reviewed at least annually.
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An asset’s carrying amount is written down to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains or losses are included in profit or loss. When
revalued assets are sold, amounts included in the revaluation reserve relating to that asset are
transferred to accumulated losses.The Group records the present value of the estimated cost of legal
and constructive obligations to restore operating locations in the period in which the obligation arises.
The nature of restoration activities includes the removal of facilities, abandonment of wells and
restoration of affected areas. A restoration provision is recognised and updated at different stages of the
development and construction of a facility and then reviewed on an annual basis. When the liability is
initially recorded, the estimated cost is capitalised by increasing the carrying amount of the related
exploration and evaluation/development assets.

Over time, the liability is increased for the change in the present value based on a post-tax discount rate
appropriate to the risk inherent in the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recorded as an accretion
charge within finance costs. The carrying amount capitalised in oil and gas properties is depreciated
over the useful life of the related asset. Costs incurred that relate to an existing condition caused by
past operation and do not have a future economic benefit are expensed.

Financial instruments

The Group’s financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets.

Recognition

Financial instruments are initially measured at cost on trade date, which includes transaction costs, when
the related contractual rights or obligations exist. Subsequent to initial recognition, these instruments are
measured as set out below. The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans
and receivables and available-for-sale investments. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the investments were acquired. Management determines the classification of its investments at initial
recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market and are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include non-derivative financial assets designated in this category not
included in any of the other categories. Available-for-sale financial assets are reflected at fair value.
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are taken directly to the available for sale
investment revaluation reserve in equity. Investments are designated as available-for-sale if they do not
have fixed maturities and fixed determinable payments and management intends to hold them for the
medium to long term.

Fair value

Fair value is determined based on current bid prices for all quoted investments. Valuation techniques are
applied to determine the fair value for all unlisted securities held at cost less impairment, including recent
arm’s length transactions, reference to similar instruments and option pricing models.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a foreign currency and classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in amortised cost
of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security. The translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in the available for sale investment revaluation reserve in equity. Changes in the
fair value of other monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised
in equity.

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a
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30 JUNE 2016

significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of a security below its cost is considered an indicator that
the securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and included in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are not reversed
through profit or loss.

Recognition and de-recognition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs. Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and reward of ownership.

When the securities classified as available-for-sale are sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in profit or loss as gains and losses for investment securities.

Foreign currency transactions and balances
Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each entity within the Group is determined using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which that entity operates. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in United States dollars which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transaction and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the year-end
exchange rate. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost continue to be carried at the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value are reported at the
exchange rate at the date when fair values were determined.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items are recognised directly in equity to
the extent that the gain or loss is directly recognised in equity; otherwise the exchange difference is
recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make good obligations are recognised when the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’'s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the
present value reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to
the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank
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overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the statement
of financial position.

() Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Trade receivables are generally due
for settlement within 30 days.

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be
uncollectible are written off by reducing the carrying amount directly. An allowance account (provision for
impairment of trade receivables) is used when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all amounts due, according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade
receivable is impaired. The amount of impairment allowance is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting
is immaterial.

The amount of impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss within other expenses. When a trade
receivable, for which an impairment allowance had been recognised, becomes uncollectible in a
subsequent period, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against other expenses in profit or loss.

(k) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as
revenue are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, and it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Group.

Revenue from the sale of oil and gas and related products is recognised when the Group has transferred
to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership and the amounts can be measured reliably. In
the case of oil, this usually occurs at the time of lifting.

Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the interest rates applicable
to the financial assets.

() Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of
GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense.
Receivables and payables in the statement of financial position are shown inclusive of GST.

Cash flows are presented in the consolidated statement of cash flows on a gross basis, except for the
GST component of investing and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows.

(m) Comparative figures

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes
in presentation for the current financial year.
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Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilites must be estimated for recognition and
measurement for disclosure purposes.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and
trading and available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each reporting date.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to
approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash follows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

Investments in associates

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting in the consolidated
financial statements.

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate is carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the
associate.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise any
additional impairment loss with respect to the Group’s net investment in the associate.

The Group's share of the associate post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in the associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any unsecured long-term receivables and loans, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

The reporting dates of the associate and the Group are identical and the associate’s accounting policies
conform to those used by the Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Prepayments for investments

Prepayments for acquisitions of financial assets are recorded at the fair value of consideration to acquire
the assets.

On satisfaction of all terms of the acquisition contract have been satisfied the prepayment is transferred
and accounted for as an investment.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognition unless alternative terms are agreed. The Group’s most material balance is with LandOcean
which has credit payment terms of 720 days.

Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the financial year but not distributed at reporting
date.

Contributed equity

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the managing director.

Impairment of assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which they are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Intangible assets (goodwill)

Goodwill is measured at cost less any impairment write downs. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries
is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the business combination in which the goodwill arose, identified according to operating segments (note
29).

Share-based payments

The fair value of options granted is recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in equity.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
which includes any market performance conditions and the impact of any non-vesting conditions but
excludes the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions.

Employee benefits
Wages and salaries and annual leave
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits are recognised in current liabilities in

respect of employees’ services up to the reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when the liabilities are settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

Long service benefit

The liability for long service benefit is recognised in current and non-current liabilities, depending on the
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. The
liability is measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is
given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of
service.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfiiment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

A distinction is made between finance leases, which effectively transfer from the lessor to the lessee
substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of leased assets, and operating leases,
under which the lessor effectively retains substantially all such risks and benefits.

Finance leases are capitalised. A lease asset and liability are established at the fair value of the leased
assets, or if lower, the present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are allocated
between the principal component of the lease liability and the finance costs, so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Leased assets acquired under a finance lease are depreciated over the asset’s useful life or over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that the company
will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

Operating lease payments, net of any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Borrowings

Loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, net of
transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Where there is an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting date, the loans or borrowings are classified as non-current.

(bb) Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group comprise convertible notes that can be converted
to ordinary shares at the option of the holder, when the number of shares to be issued is fixed.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is recognised initially at the fair value of a
similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity component is recognised
initially at the difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the
fair value of the liability component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity component of a compound financial
instrument is not remeasured subsequent to initial recognition.

Interest related to the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss. On conversion the financial liability
is reclassified to equity and no gain or loss is recognised.

Convertible notes that can be converted to share capital at the option of the holder and where the
number of shares is variable, contains an embedded derivative liability. The embedded derivative liability
is calculated (at fair value) first and the residual value is assigned to the debt host contract. The
embedded derivative is subsequently measured at fair values and movements are reflected in the profit
and loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

Certain convertible notes issued by the Group which include embedded derivatives (option to convert to
variable number of shares in the Group are recognised as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss. On initial recognition, the fair value of the convertible note will equate to the proceeds received and
subsequently the liability is measured at fair value at each reporting period until settlement. The fair
value movements are recognised on the profit or loss as finance costs.

(cc) Finance costs

Finance costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the asset. All other finance costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

(dd) Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. They are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. For non-current assets to be classified as held for sale,
they must be available for immediate sale in their present condition and their sale must be highly
probable.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write down of the non-current assets to fair
value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell
of a non-current asset, but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. Interest
and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of assets held for sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are presented separately on the face of the consolidated
statement of financial position, in current assets. The liabilities of disposal groups classified as held for
sale are presented separately on the face of the statement of financial position, in current liabilities.

(ee) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which:

— represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations

— is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or
geographical are of operations

— is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to re-sale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs at the earlier of disposal or when the operation meets
the criteria to be classified as held-for-sale.

When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income is re-presented as if the operation had been discontinued
from the start of the comparative year.

Note 2: Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The directors evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial statements based on
historical knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation
of future events and are based on current trends and economic data, obtained both externally and within
the Group. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where estimations and
assumptions are significant to the financial statements are disclosed here.

Producing asset expenditure

The classification of exploration and evaluation expenditure to producing assets is based on the time of
first commercial production. Producing asset expenditure for each area of interest is carried forward as
an asset provided certain conditions listed in Note 1(e) are met and depreciated on a unit of production
basis on P1 reserves. P1 reserves have been determined by an independent expert.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

Producing assets are assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying
amount of a production asset may exceed its recoverable amount. These timings, calculations and
reviews require the use of assumptions and judgement. The related carrying amounts are disclosed in
Note 19.

Reserves and resources

Estimates of reserves requires judgement to assess the size and quality of reservoirs and their
anticipated recoveries. Estimates of reserves are used to calculate depreciation, depletion and
amortisation charges.

Impairment of goodwill and producing assets

The Group tests annually whether goodwill or the producing assets has suffered any impairment in
accordance with the accounting policies stated in notes 1(e) and 1(w). The recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the assets belong is estimated based on the present value of future cash
flows. The expected future cash flow estimation is always based on a number of factors, variables and
assumptions, the most important of which are estimates of reserves, future production profiles,
commodity prices and costs. In most cases, the present value of future cash flows is most sensitive to
estimates of future oil price and discount rates. A change in the modelled assumptions in isolation
could materially change the recoverable amount. Refer to note 16 for details of these key
assumptions.

Deferred tax liability

Upon acquisition of SOCA Petroleum Ltd, in accordance with the requirement of AASB 112 Income
Taxes, a deferred tax liability of US$46,979,878 was recognised in relation to the difference between the
carrying amount for accounting purposes of deferred development assets and their actual cost base for
tax purposes. The carrying value of this deferred tax liability has increased to US$47,344,960 at 30 June
2016. In the event that the manner by which the carrying value of these assets is recovered differs from
that which is assumed for the purpose of this estimation, the associated tax charges may be significantly
less than this amount.

Assets held-for-sale

As part of the Company’s strategy to rationalise non-core assets, the Company committed to a plan to
dispose its shares in Strait Oil & Gas Limited (“Strait’). The company is in advanced discussions and
negotiations surrounding the sale of this asset which is currently anticipated to complete in the 2017
financial year. Given current market conditions around exploration assets, the Company anticipates that
part of any consideration will be deferred or contingent. The asset is therefore recognised at fair value
being the expected recoverable value on sale in relation to non-contingent or deferred aspects of that
sale. No value is assigned to the contingent or deferred aspect.

An impairment loss in respect of assets held-for-sale is generally measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. Impairment losses on initial classification as held-for-sale and
subsequent gains and losses on re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Share based payments transactions

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled share-based payment transactions with employees by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value is determined using a
Black-Scholes model. The accounting estimates and assumptions relating to equity-settled share-based
payments would have no impact on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next annual
reporting period but may impact expenses and equity.

Classification of operations to discontinued

The assets classified as discontinued operations represent separate major lines of business and
geographical areas of operations.
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Note 3:

Note 4:

(a)

(b)

(c)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

Revenue

From continuing operations
Revenue from sale of oil

Other income
Interest income
Other income

Expenses

Loss before income tax includes the following specific
expenses:

Cost of sales

Costs of production

Royalties

Staff costs

Oil and gas properties depreciation, depletion and
amortisation

Total cost of sales

Finance costs

Interest and premium paid on financial liabilities at fair
value

Fair value movement of option liability

Facility fees settled in shares

Foreign exchange loss

Interest expense

Other finance expenses

Total finance costs

General and administration expenses

Equity based payments

Directors’ and officers’ fees and benefits

Share based payments — employee, director and
consultant options

Other expenses

Total general and administration expenses

Asset values written-down

Impairment of current receivables

Impairment of non-current receivables

Impairment of investment in available for sale financial
assets

Total assets written-down

Consolidated

2016 2015
US$ US$
7,062,226 13,152,954
45210 3,390
5,983 425,198
51,193 428,588
Consolidated

2016 2015

US$ Us$
4,944 478 3,125,464
2,104,894 4,654,241
2,322,352 3,315,271
5,490,676 4,917,052
14,862.400 16,012,028
370,983 2,550,028
(1,643,570) (127,883)
- 1,575,637
1,507,714 -
667,839 349,793
31,355 -
934,321 4,347 575
- 2,157,037
601,413 999,571
250,849 580,455
2,547,776 6,211,431
3,400,038 9,948,494
600,000 17,937
- 20,992
400,761 654,000
1,000,761 692,929

During the current year the Group chose to fully write down a current receivable due to uncertainty
over its recoverability. In addition to this, the Group also fully wrote down its investment in
International Petroleum by US$346,000 due to the continued suspension of trading of its shares
and inability to therefore calculate an appropriate carrying value. A further available for sale asset
was also written down by US$54,761, being Range’s estimate of its recoverable value at the
balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

(d) Exploration Expenditure
Puntland 1,812 314,982
Trinidad (i) 4,123,048 1,810,529
Colombia 136,575 77,237
Total exploration expenses 4,261,435 2,202,748
(i) Amounts expensed in the year in Trinidad relate to land fees in relation to Guayaguayare
and St Mary’s for which the company policy is to expense.
Note 4: Expenses (continued)
(e) Loss on disposal of subsidiary
Range Resources Drilling Limited - 1,491,857
Total loss on disposal - 1,491,857
Details of loss on sale of subsidiaries
Consideration received - 4,870,000
Carrying amount of net assets sold - 6,319,358
Loss on sale - (1,449,358)
Reclassification of FX reserve - (42,499)
Income tax expense on gain - -
Total loss on sale - (1,491,857)

Note 5: Discontinued operations

In 2013, the Company indicated that it was in the process of disposing of the Company’s North
Chapman Ranch and East Texas Cotton Valley assets hence the transfer from producing assets to
assets classified as held-for-sale in that accounting period. As announced on 23 December 2014 a sale
of Range’s 100% equity interest in Range Australia (US) Ltd (holder of Texas assets) was agreed with
Citation Resources Limited. It completed on 24 March 2015.

The Company is committed to a plan to dispose of its 45% interest in the unlisted company Strait Oil &
Gas Limited (Strait).

2016 2015
uUss$ uUss$
(@) Results of discontinued operations

Revenue - 238,194
Cost of sales - (104,799)
Asset write off (4,750,000) (6,779,476)
Other expenses (130,000) (949,169)
Results from operating activities (4,880,000) (7,595,250)
Income tax (expense)/benefit - -
Results from operating activities, after tax (4,880,000) (7,595,250)
Loss on sale of subsidiary asset - (101,909)
Loss from discontinued operations (4,880,000) (7,697,159)

The loss from the discontinued operations of US$4,880,000 (2015: US$7,697,159) is

attributable entirely to the owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016
(b) Cash flows gained from/(used in)
discontinued operations
Net cash used in operating activities (130,000) (801,003)
Net cash flow for the year (130,000) (801,003)
Note 6: Income tax expense
Consolidated
2016 2015
uss Us$
(a) Income tax expense
Current tax - 624,618
Deferred tax 1,070,852 843,188
Adjustments for current tax of prior
periods 13,668 -
1,084,520 1,467,806
Income tax expense/(benefit) is
attributable to:
Profit/(loss) from continuing
operations 1,084,520 1,467,806
Profit/(loss) from discontinued
operations - -
Aggregate income tax expense 1,084,520 1,467,806
(b) The prime facie tax on profit
from ordinary activities before
income tax is reconciled to the
income tax as follows:
Loss from continuing operations
before income tax (37,910,365) (21,114,089)
Loss from discontinuing operations
before income tax (4,880,000) (7,697,159)
(42,790,365) (28,811,248)
Prime facie tax payable on profit
from ordinary activities before
income tax at 30% (2015: 30%)
Group (12,837,110) (8,643,374)
(12,837,110) (8,643,374)
Add tax effect of:
Other taxes 13,668 477,852
Expenses not deductible for tax 18,518,390 7,752,706
Income not assessable for tax (6,010,578) (3,757,145)
Tax losses not brought to account 10,650,658 1,938,572
Benefit of tax losses not previously
recognised - 3,608,262
Deferred tax assets not brought to
account (242,740) 2,315,848
Differences in tax rates (9,007,770) (2,224,915)
1,084,520 1,467,806
Unrecognised Deferred tax asset
Capital losses 985,528 1,084,219
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016
Revenue losses 9,462,107 10,033,815
Other 4,942,534 3,265,732
15,390,169 14,383,766

Deferred tax assets not brought to account, the benefits of which will only be realised if the

conditions for deductibility set out in Note 1(b) occur.

Consolidated

2016 2015
uss Us$
(c) Recognised deferred tax assets
Temporary differences 3,959,803 286,693
3,959,803 286,693
Recognised deferred tax liabilities
Accelerated depreciation (17,515,407) (11,039,440)
DTL arising on business combination (30,046,205) (32,319,759)
Net deferred tax liabilities (47,561,612) (43,359,199)

Deferred tax assets not brought to account, the benefits of which will only be realised if the conditions

for deductibility set out in Note 1(b) occur.

Note 7: Auditors’ remuneration

Consolidated

2016 2015
US$ uUs$
Remuneration of the auditor of the Parent Entity for:
Auditing or reviewing the financial report by BDO Audit (WA) Pty
Ltd 84,726 216,866
Non-audit services provided by a related entity of BDO Audit (WA)
Pty Ltd in respect to Parent Entity’s tax compliance. 34,149 72,570
Total remuneration for the Parent Entity 118,875 289,436
Remuneration of the auditors of the subsidiaries:
Auditing or reviewing the financial report by BDO UK 3,707 3,933
Auditing or reviewing the financial report by BDO Barbados 17,743 13,030
Auditing or reviewing the financial report by BDO Trinidad 25,188 40,530
Total remuneration for the subsidiaries 46,638 57,493
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Note 8: Earnings per share

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basic loss per share

(Loss) per share from continuing operations attributable to the

ordinary equity holders of the company

(Loss) per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of
the company

Diluted loss per share

(Loss) per share from continuing operations attributable to the

ordinary equity holders of the company

(Loss) per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of
the company

Reconciliation of loss used in calculating earnings per
share

Basic/ Diluted loss per share
Loss from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary
equity holders of the company

Loss attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company

Weighted average number of shares used as the
denominator

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the

Consolidated

2016
US cents

(0.54)

(0.60)

n/a

n/a

(38,994,885)

2015
US cents

(0.44)

(0.59)

n/a

n/a

(22,581,895)

(43,874,885)

(30,279,054)

2016
No.

2015
No.

denominator in calculating basic EPS 7,266,100,594 5,095,406,444

Effect of dilutive securities

Options on issue at reporting date could potentially dilute earnings per share in the future. The effect in
the current year is to reduce the loss per share hence they are considered anti-dilutive. Accordingly the

diluted loss per share has not been disclosed.
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Note 9: Cash and cash equivalents
Consolidated
2016 2015
uUss$ uUss$
Cash at bank and on hand 13,001,252 10,530,104

Risk exposure

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign exchange risk and price risk is provided in
Note 34.

Note 10: Restricted cash
Consolidated
2016 2015
USss$ US$
Cash held in secured account 8,000,000 -
Total 8,000,000 -

Restricted cash is held in a deposit account that is secured against a bank guarantee given in respect of
the Group’s work commitments on the St Mary’s block in Trinidad. The funds are freely transferrable
but alternative collateral acceptable to the bank, would need to be put in place to replace the cash
security.

Note 11: Trade and Other Receivables
Consolidated

2016 2015
uUS$ uUsS$
Current
Trade receivables (i) 375,348 672,331
Taxes receivable 3,960,541 3,820,265
Other debtors (i) 3,373,820 3,145,825
Less provision for impairment (3,089,443) (2,489,443)

4,620,266 5,148,978

Fair value approximates the carrying value of trade and other receivables at 30 June 2016 and 30 June
2015.

(i) Trade receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days. They are presented as
current assets unless collection is not expected for more than 12 months after the reporting date.
Trade receivables are neither past due nor impaired.

(i) Other debtors are comprised primarily of advances to unrelated third parties. Given the
uncertainty over the likelihood of repayment these advances have been included within the
provision for impairment raised at 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015.

Risk exposure

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign exchange risk and price risk is provided in
Note 34.

Annual report 2016 Range Resources Limited and Controlled Entities
ABN 88 002 522 009
35

157



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

Note 12: Other current assets

Current
Prepayments
Other assets

Note 13: Assets held-for-sale

Assets classified as held for sale are as follows:

Strait Oil & Gas Limited — 45% equity interest
Latin American Resources — 20% equity interest
Total

Movements in assets classified as held for sale are as follows:
Opening net book amount
Transfer from investment in associate
Sold in period
Impairment loss relating to discontinued operations

Closing net book amount

Consolidated
2016 2015
USsSs$ US$

178,158 352,724
- 430,661

178,158 783,385

Consolidated
2016 2015
Uss$ US$

1,250,000 5,000,000
- 1,000,000
1,250,000 6,000,000

6,000,000 11,000,000

- 2,179,358

- (1,000,000)
(4,750,000)  (6,179,358)
1,250,000 6,000,000

Impairment losses of US$4,750,000 for write-downs of the disposal group to the lower of its carrying
amount and its recoverable amount have been included in ‘loss on discontinued operations’ (see note 5
and note 36). The impairment losses have been applied to reduce the carrying amount of the assets
held-for-sale within the disposal group. There is no cumulative income or expenses included in other

comprehensive income relating to the disposal group.

Note 14: Financial assets available-for-sale

Interest in other corporations
Total available-for-sale financial assets

Movement in financial assets available-for-sale
Opening balance

Shares received on settlement of loan receivable
Shares sold in period

Transferred from other current assets

Impairment recognised in profit and loss

Closing balance

Annual report 2016

158

Consolidated

2016 2015
Us$ us$
45,238 446,000
45,238 446,000
446,000 876,347
- 171,254
- (947,601)
- 1,000,000

(400,762)  (654,000)

45,238 446,000
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Available-for-sale financial assets comprise investments in the ordinary share capital of various entities.
There are no fixed returns or fixed maturity date attached to these investments.

Risk exposure

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign exchange risk and price risk is provided in
Note 34.

Note 15: Controlled Entities

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following
subsidiaries in accordance with accounting policy described in Note 1(a).

Country of Percentage Owned

Controlled Entities Consolidated Incorporation (%)

30 June 30 June
2016 2015

Subsidiaries of Range Resources Limited:

Range Resources (Barbados) Limited Barbados 100 100
SOCA Petroleum Limited Barbados 100 100
West Indies Exploration Company Limited Trinidad 100 100
Range Resources Trinidad Limited Trinidad 100 100

Range Resources (Barbados) GY Limited Barbados 100 100
Range Resources St. Mary’s Limited Trinidad - 100
Range Resources GY Shallow Limited Trinidad 100 100
Range Resources GY Deep Limited Trinidad 100 100

Range Resources (Cayman) Limited Cayman Islands - 100

Range Resources HK Limited Hong Kong 100 -

Range Resources Upstream Services Limited United Kingdom 100 100

Note 16: Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in note 1(v). Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

The Group reported goodwill of US$28,985,014, which was derived from the acquisition of SOCA
Petroleum Limited through the parent’s subsidiary Range Resources (Barbados) Ltd.

Goodwill
2016 2015
uUss$ US$
At 1 July 2015
Cost 46,198,974 46,198,974
Impairment write down (17,213,960) -

Net book amount 28,985,014 46,198,974

Year ended 30 June 2016

Opening net book amount 46,198,974 46,198,974
Additions-acquisition - -
Impairment charge (17,213,960) -

Closing net book amount 28,985,014 46,198,974
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(a) Impairment tests for goodwill

During the year ending 30 June 2016, the Group recorded an impairment of US$17,213,960 with respect
to goodwill. The impairment principally arose due to the lower oil price environment.
Note 16: Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes to a single cash-generating unit (CGU),
identified according to operating segments, being Trinidad.

Estimates of the recoverable amount is based on an asset’s value in use using a discounted cash flow
method and is most sensitive to the following key assumptions:

— Obtaining all required approvals and permissions to undertake waterflood development

— Obtaining lease extensions until 2030

— P1 and P2 Recoverable reserves

— Commodity price of between US$43 and US$81 per barrel dependent on the year.

— Operating costs at 12%-43% of revenue, depending on oil price and production at that time.

— Post-tax discount rate of 11.1%
Economical recoverable reserves represent management’s expectations at the time of completing the
impairment testing and based on the reserves statements and exploration and evaluation work

undertaken by appropriately qualified persons. A summary of the Company’s Trinidad reserves and
resources are published on the company’s website.

The commodity price for oil was based on mean WTI forecast oil price data from a variety of different
analysts and other sources. Estimates are US$43/bbl in 2016, US$57/bbl in 2017, US$66/bbl in 2018,
US$66/bbl in 2019, US$67/bbl in 2020 and then escalating at 2% per annum for the remainder of the
project.

Operating cost assumptions were based on FY17 budgets, actual costs incurred in FY16 and estimates
of additional operating costs for waterflood activities received from LandOcean.

(b) Sensitivity to change of assumptions

An individual movement of 20% against any one key assumption would cause the carrying value of the
cash generating unit to materially exceed its recoverable amount. An adverse movement of 20% in
reserves and resources, commodity prices, operating costs, discount rate or capex would lead to an
additional impairment of US$6.6million, US$34.4million, US$17.1million, US$8.3million and $10.1million
respectively.

Any impairment charge in excess of the goodwill value would be applied against producing assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 17: Property, plant & equipment

Consolidated

Year ended 30
June 2015
Opening net
book amount
Foreign
currency
movement
Additions
Disposals
Disposal of
subsidiary
Depreciation
charge

Closing net book
amount

At 30 June
2015

Cost
Accumulated
depreciation
Net book
amount

Year ended 30
June 2016
Opening net
book amount
Foreign
currency
movement
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation
charge

Closing net book
amount

At 30 June
2016

Cost
Accumulated
depreciation
Net book
amount

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016
Production Gathering Leasehold Motor Total
equipment station and improvement vehicle,
and access field office furniture,
roads fixtures &
USs$ Us$ fittings Uss$
USs$ US$
10,105,359 139,269 384,816 624,825 11,254,269
143,202 (29,878) (116,584) 2,167 (1,093)
1,413,411 23,543 24,181 115,163 1,576,298
- (3,100) (3,100)
(10,030,580) - - (245,780) (10,276,360)
(793,660) (15,844) (45,098) (192,970) (1,047,572)
837,732 117,090 247,315 300,305 1,502,442
5,206,843 529,326 556,333 1,235,929 7,528,431
(4,369,111) (412,236) (309,018) (935,624) (6,025,989)
837,732 117,090 247,315 300,305 1,502,442
837,732 117,090 247,315 300,305 1,502,442
(35,321) (4,687) (8,370) (9,521) (57,899)
1,140,919 - - 68,887 1,209,806
- - - (11,799) (11,799)
(173,165) (14,284) (24,645) (101,228) (313,322)
1,770,165 98,119 214,300 246,644 2,329,228
6,111,168 505,510 534,020 1,135,223 8,285,921
(4,341,003) (407,391) (319,720) (888,579) (5,956,693)
1,770,165 98,119 214,300 246,644 2,329,228
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Note 18: Exploration and evaluation expenditure

Opening net book amount

Additions
Foreign exchange
Closing net book amount

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

Consolidated

2016 2015
Us$ US$
668,951 523,605

- 145,346
(23,150) -
645,801 668,951

At 30 June 2016, the US$645,801 (30 June 2015 — US$668,951) capitalised exploration and evaluation
expenditure relates to the interests of the Group in the Guayaguayare and St Mary’s Blocks in Trinidad.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred is accumulated in respect of each identifiable area of
interest. These costs are only carried forward to the extent that they are expected to be recouped through
the successful development of the area or where activities in the area have not yet reached a stage that
permits reasonable assessment of the existence of economically recoverable reserves.

The recoverability of the carrying amount of exploration assets is dependent on the successful
development and commercial exploitation or sale of the respective mining permits.

No capitalised costs (2015: US$145,346) have been included in the statement of cash flows from

investing activities.

Note 19: Producing assets

Cost

Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

Opening net book amount

Foreign currency movement

Additions

Impairment charge
Amortisation charge
Closing net book amount
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Consolidated

2016 2015
US$ Us$
134,697,008 122,141,667
(39,619,926)  (31,791,175)
95,077,082 90,350,492
90,350,492 82,517,820
(1,747,957) 395
15,007,723 11,392,667
(3,350,869) -
(5,181,507)  (3,560,390)
95,077,882 90,350,492
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 20: Trade and other payables

(@) Current

Trade payables
Interest bearing trade payables
Sundry payables and accrued expenses

(@) Non- current

Interest bearing trade payables
Accrued expenses

Risk exposure

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

Consolidated

2016 2015

uss Uss$
1,048,601 4,991,035
1,556,463 -
9,639,809 8,663,160
12,244,873 13,654,195

Consolidated

2016 2015

uss US$
13,998,006 -
9,765,999 -
23,764,005 -

Trade payables are non-interest bearing with the exception of debt due to LandOcean classed under

interest bearing trade payables.

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign exchange risk and price risk is provided in

Note 34.

Note 21: Borrowings at fair value

(a) Borrowings at fair value

Opening balance
Proceeds from borrowings
Face value premium

Interest due on outstanding
balance

Cash repayment
Repayment via equity
Closing net book amount

All amounts due to Lind were repaid during the year.
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Consolidated

2016 2015

uss Us$

7,518,077 -
- 5,500,000
- 2,250,000

137,920 330,577

(7,655,997) -
- (562,500)

- 7,518,077
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

Note 21: Borrowings at fair value (continued)

(b) Option liability
Consolidated

2016 2015

uss US$
Option liability at fair value through profit or loss 835,714 808,083
835,714 808,083

During 2016, no options were exercised prior to year-end and 367,143,136 options with a fair value of
US$1,661,430 were issued to Beijing Sibo Investment Management LP under the share placement (refer
Note 25). These options are recognised as a financial liability given the exercise price is stated in GPB. Total
fair value movement recognised in P&L was a gain of US$1,633,799 (2015: US$127,883).

During the prior year 49,051,468 options with a face value of US$1,426,883 were exercised prior to year-end
and 31,000,000 options with a fair value of US$172,926 were issued.

Note 22: Provision for rehabilitation

The Group records the present value of the estimated cost of legal and constructive obligations to
restore operating locations in the period in which the obligation arises. The nature of restoration
activities includes removal of facilities, abandonment of wells and restoration of affected areas.

Consolidated

2016 2015
US$ US$
Provision for rehabilitation 740,268 734,858

Movement in the provision for rehabilitation during the financial year are set out below:

Carrying amount at the start of the year 734,858 696,224
Additional provision recognised 5,410 38,634
Carrying amount at the end of the year 740,268 734,858
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 23: Deferred tax liability

Movements

Year ended 30 June 2015
Opening balance

Foreign currency movement
Disposal of subsidiary
Charged/(credited)

- to profit or loss
Closing net book amount

Year ended 30 June 2016

Opening balance
Foreign currency movement

Charged/(credited)
- to profit or loss
Closing net book amount

As a result of business combination, at the date of acquisition a deferred tax liability has been recognised in
relation to the difference between the carrying amount of the deferred exploration and development costs for
accounting purposes and the cost base of the asset for tax purposes in accordance with the requirements of
Australian Accounting Standard AASB 112 Income Taxes.
relation to the deferred tax liability at 30 June 2016 and it is anticipated that the deferred taxation liability will

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016
Fair value Accelerated
uplift on depreciation Total
business
combination
uUs$ Us$ US$
35,010,572 9,365,461 44,376,033
(1,041) (32,147) (33,188)
(723,359)  (1,189,198) (1,912,557)
(1,966,411) 2,895,322 928,911
32,319,761 11,039,438 43,359,199
32,319,761 11,039,438 43,359,199
- (669,950) (669,950)
(2,273,556) 7,145,919 4,872,363
30,046,205 17,515,407 47,561,612

The Group does not have a tax payable in

be reduced in the future as the deferred exploration and development costs are amortised in future periods.

Note 24: Other non-current liabilities

Employee service benefits

Risk exposure

Consolidated

2016 2015
uss Uss
422,315 521,257
422,315 521,257

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign exchange risk and price risk is provided in

Note 34.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016
Note 25: Contributed equity
Consolidated

2016 2015

uUs$ Us$
7,589,790,100 (2015: 5,767,169,188) fully paid ordinary shares 404,874,079 382,535,744
Share issue costs (20,991,887) (19,330,467)

383,882,192 363,205,277

Consolidated

2016 2016 2015 2015
No. Uss No. Uss$
(@) Fully paid ordinary shares
At the beginning of reporting
period 5,767,169,188 382,535,744  4,521,201,870 364,567,692
Shares issued during year 1,822,620,912 22,338,335 1,245,967,318 17,968,052
Total contributed equity 7,589,790,100 404,874,079 5,767,169,188 382,535,744

Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the
Company in proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held.

On a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting of the Company, in person or
by proxy, is entitled to one vote, and upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote.

(b)

(i)

(ii)

Unissued Fully Paid Ordinary Shares

2016 2015

No. No.
Opening balance (i) 30,000,000 386,188,780
Issued in year (ii) - (356,188,780)
Cancelled in year (i) (30,000,000) -
Total contributed equity - 30,000,000

Under the terms of an agreement between shareholders in Strait, the Company was required to
issue 30,000,000 shares to other investors in Strait upon the completion of the next well in the
Georgia drilling programme or upon disposal of Range’s shareholding in Strait. The obligation to
issue shares to Strait has expired.

During the 2013 financial year, the company entered into a US$12 million financing facility with a
Hong Kong based private institutional investor, Abraham Ltd. Under the terms of the subscription
agreement, Abraham was to subscribe for shares in the Company in two US$6 million tranches,
with the first tranche issued during the year, whilst the second tranche was to be issued following
shareholder approval. Shareholder approval for the issue of shares for the US$6 million second
tranche was sought and obtained at the General Meeting of the Company on 11" July 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED

30 JUNE 2016

te 25: Contributed equity (continued)

c) Movements in fully paid ordinary share capital

Details

1 July 2015 Opening balance
(Tranche 2) Share placement to
Beijing Sibo Investment
Management LP (i)
Share placement to directors and
employees

30 June 2016 Closing balance

1 July 2014 Opening balance
Transfer from unissued

Shares issued as loan repayment
Shares issued upon option conversion

Shares issued as Collateral Shares
Shares issued to employees

Shares issued in lieu of corporate
advisory/ capital raising and loan
commencement fees

Issued to Beijing Sibo Investment
Management LP

30 June 2015 Closing balance

Issue
Number of price Uss$
shares Uss$
5,767,169,188 382,535,744
1,797,620,912 0.012 22,033,080
25,000,000 0.012 305,255
7,589,790,100 404,874,079
4,521,201,870 364,567,692
356,188,780 0.017 6,000,000
58,440,891 0.010 562,500
49,051,468  0.010- 923,880
0.024
38,000,000 0.008 300,979
19,987,481 0.013- 580,458
0.040
74,298,698  0.009- 1,633,315
0.037
650,000,000 0.012 7,966,920
5,767,169,188 382,535,744

(i)Under the share placement, the following options were issued (refer Note 21):

Date of Expiry  Exercise Price  Number Under

Tranche 1 3 Sept 2019 £0.01
Tranche 2 3 Sept 2019 £0.02
(d) Options

At the beginning of reporting period

Options issued during year (refer Notes 21 and 31)
Options expired

Options exercised during year

Total options
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Option
194,585,862
172,557,274
Consolidated
2016 2015
No. No.
788,998,289 453,203,084
406,143,136 394,701,840
(312,085,678) (9,855,166)
- (49,051,469)
883,055,747 788,998,289
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

Note 25: Contributed equity (continued)

At 30 June 2016, the unissued ordinary shares of Range Resources Limited under option are as

follows:
Date of Expiry

11 July 2016

25 July 2016

29 July 2016

31 August 2016

31 August 2016

30 September 2016
30 September 2016
31 October 2016
31 October 2016
31 October 2016
31 October 2016
30 November 2016
30 November 2016
11 December 2016
31 December 2016
31 December 2016
31 January 2017
31 January 2017

9 September 2017
15 October 2017
31 January 2018
14 July 2018

14 July 2018

31 August 2018

3 September 2019
3 September 2019
30 March 2020

Exercise Price

£0.037
£0.021
£0.021
£0.021
£0.020
£0.019
£0.018
£0.018
£0.017
£0.016
£0.015
£0.015
£0.013
A$0.0321
£0.012
£0.011
£0.075
£0.011
£0.03
£0.01203
A$0.05
£0.01
£0.02
£0.01
£0.01
£0.02
£0.01

Total number under option

Option
5,000,000
476,190
952,381
6,714,284
9,000,000
3,947,368
8,666,670
694,445
2,205,885
1,250,000
17,333,336
3,000,001
5,153,846
2,000,000
2,000,000
5,000,000
5,180,000
23,636,364
7,500,000
31,000,000
1,000,000
161,472,247
118,729,593
14,000,000
194,585,862
172,557,274
80,000,000

Number Under

883,055,746

The holders of these options do not have any rights under the options to participate in any share issues

of the company.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, no ordinary shares of Range Resources Limited were issued on
the exercise of options (2015: 49,051,468).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

Note 26: Reserves

@)

Consolidated

2016 2015
uUss$ Uss$
Share-based payment reserve
Balance 1 July 14,231,578 14,226,861
Share based payment expenses (refer note 31) 250,847 2,157,038
Expired options reclassified to retained earnings (5,933,401) (2,152,321)
Balance 30 June 8,549,024 14,231,578

The share based payment reserve records items recognised as expenses on the fair valuation of shares
and options issued as remuneration to employees, directors and consultants.

(b)

(©)

Option premium reserve

Balance 1 July 12,057,363 10,630,513
Fair value movement of exercised options that were originally

classified as a derivative liability - 1,426,850
Balance 30 June 12,057,363 12,057,363

The option premium reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options.

Foreign currency translation reserve

Balance 1 July 3,459,939 3,004,632
Currency translation differences arising during the year 160,799 455,307
Balance 30 June 3,620,738 3,459,939

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the
translation balances of foreign subsidiaries.

Balance 30 June 24,227,125 29,748,880
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

Note 27: Commitments

Expenditure and Capital commitments
Consolidated

2016 2015
Uss$ Uss$
Not later than 1 year 30,614,669 211,000

30,614,669 211,000

Expenditure commitments for 2016 include the remaining expenditure due under Purchase Order 2.

Note 28: Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Colombian exploration licences

In January 2016, Range received notification from Agencia Nacional de Hidrocarburos (“ANH”) in
Colombia advising that the E&P licences over three exploration blocks (PUT-5, VSM-1 and VMM-7) had
been revoked. The licences had been awarded to a Consortium of Optima Oil Corporation (“Optima”)
and the Company in December 2012. ANH alleges that various obligations and commitments agreed
within the exploration licences have not been complied with and also that invalid letters of credit had
been presented to ANH by Optima to support the minimum work obligations. The effect of revocation of
the licences by ANH is: (i) expiry of the contracts, (ii) Range would be unable to enter into any further
agreement with Colombian State for a period of 5 years, (iii) final settlement and liquidation of the
licences, and (iv) joint and several liability of the Consortium partners to ANH for all sums due to ANH
and for potential damages claim of up to the aggregate financial value of the work commitments of the
Consortium for the three licences which totalled approximately US$53million. The value of the allegedly
invalid letters of credit provided was approximately US$11million.

On 1 September 2016, Range received a demand notice from ANH addressed to the Consortium
seeking payment of the full amount of the outstanding obligations due to ANH totalling up to
approximately US$53million. The deadline for making the payment, or otherwise responding to ANH
with a defence against the action, was 7 September 2016. A comprehensive response was
subsequently submitted to ANH by the consortium on this date. This response addressed the numerous
areas in which Range and the consortium object to the demand which was received from ANH.

A Joint Operating Agreement (*JOA”) is in place amongst the Consortium partners. Under the terms of
the JOA it was agreed between the Consortium that it was the sole responsibility of Optima to complete
the minimum work obligations and to provide all necessary funding, including the provision of valid
letters of credit in favour of ANH. Under the JOA, Range has an indemnity to recover from Optima any
payment incurred by Range for any contractual obligations under the licences which were not paid by
Optima. Range has engaged legal advisers in Colombia.

Range has no material assets in Colombia.

In addition to the ongoing work with legal advisers in Colombia, Range has sought advice from its
Australian advisers regarding the ability of ANH to try and enforce a claim against Range in Australia
(where Range is incorporated). The Company's legal advisers confirm that there is no provision in
Australian law to enable either judgments of Colombian courts, or administrative orders of ANH to be
recognised in Australia. If ANH did seek to make any claim in Australia it would be required to
commence court proceedings in the Australian courts and to prove its entitlement to such claim. Range
would have the right to defend such claim. Range has not received any claim from ANH in Australia and
would defend itself against any such claim if ever received.

The Company continues to work with Optima and legal advisers to defend its position to the maximum
extent possible and is considering what further action can be taken to challenge the actions taken by
ANH. At this time Range cannot provide any indication of the likely timeline for any resolution to this
matter, nor any likely financial impact.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

Note 28. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (continued)

Geeta Maharaj

Range has received an invoice from Geeta Maharaj, a Trinidad based attorney seeking payment of
approximately US$1.9million. The invoice purports to relate to legal work undertaken during mid-2014
in the preparation of inter-company loan agreements. Range strongly refutes the amount of this
purported invoice and intends to vigorously defend its position. Range has engaged Trinidad legal
counsel to assist in this matter. Range considers that that the amount of the purported invoice is vastly
excessive and is not payable.

Guayaguayare licence

On 21 May 2015, Range announced that it had signed an amendment agreement in respect of its
interest in the Guayaguayare Block in Trinidad. As a result of the amended agreement, Range acquired
the full interest of Niko Resources Ltd. (Niko), which is 32.5% in the Shallow and 40% in the Deep
Production Sharing Contracts (PSCs). Following completion of the agreement, Range holds 80%
interest in the Deep PSC and 65% interest in the Shallow PSC.

The consideration payable for the increased interest is contingent upon commercial discovery and
subsequent production, whereby Range will pay Niko upon certain production milestones being
achieved from the two PSCs, with the maximum payable of US$19 million based on production in
excess of 10 million barrels. Range is currently unable to assess the likelihood of these milestones
being met, and consequently, no provision has been raised.

The Directors are not aware of any further contingent liabilities or contingent assets as at 30 June 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

0] Unallocated assets

Segment assets

30 June 2016

30 June 2015

US$ US$
Cash 12,189,822 9,868,592
Assets held for sale 1,250,000 6,000,000
Other 403,583 1,589,904
Total segment assets 13,843,405 17,458,496
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016
Note 29: Segment reporting

30 June 2016 Trinidad Unallocated Total

uUs$ US$ Us$
Segment revenue
Revenge from continuing 7,062,226 ) 7,062,226
operations
Revenue from
discontinued operations ) )
Other income 5,983 45,210 51,193
Total revenue 7,068,209 45,210 7,113,419
Segment result
Segment expenses (43,323,546) (6,580,238) (49,903,784)
Loss before income tax (36,255,337) (6,535,028) (42,790,365)
Income tax (1,084,520) - (1,084,520)
Loss after income tax (37,339,857) (6,535,028) (43,874,885)
Segment assets
Segment assets(i) 144,249,237 13,843,405 158,092,642
Total assets 144,249,237 13,843,405 158,092,642
Segment liabilities
Segment liabilities 81,191,617 4,663,893 85,855,510
Total liabilities 81,191,617 4,663,893 85,855,510
30 June 2015 Trinidad Unallocated Total

uss uss Uss$
Segment revenue
Revenge from continuing 13,152,954 ) 13,152,954
operations
Revenue from . 238,194 238,194
discontinued operations
Other income - 428,588 428,588
Total revenue 13,152,954 666,782 13,819,736
Segment result
Segment expenses (23,162,985) (19,467,998) (42,630,983)
Loss before income tax (10,010,031) (18,801,216) (28,811,247)
Income tax (1,467,806) - (1,467,806)
Loss after income tax (11,477,837) (18,801,216) (30,279,053)
Segment assets
Segment assets(i) 144,457,523 17,458,496 161,916,019
Total assets 144,457,523 17,458,496 161,916,019
Segment liabilities
Segment liabilities 49,846,696 17,045,866 66,892,562
Total liabilities 49,846,696 17,045,866 66,892,562
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

Note 29: Segment reporting (continued)

€) Other segment information
Consolidated
2016 2015
USs$ Us$

Segment other revenue — all other segments
Other income 45,210 428,588

45,210 428,588

Segment result — all other segments

Equity based payments - 2,157,037
Directors’ and officers’ fees and benefits 500,229 999,571
Impairment of available for sale asset 400,762 496,958
Share based payments — employee and consultant shares 188,969 580,455
Discontinued operations 3,880,000 7,935,352
Other expenses 1,610,278 7,298,625

6,580,238 19,467,998

Accounting policies

AASB 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of
the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources
to the segment and to assess its performance. The chief operating decision maker is the Chief Executive
Officer and through this role the Board of Directors.

Following the adoption of AASB 8, the identification of the Group’s reporting segments remain consistent
with prior periods, with management allocating resources to segments on a geographical basis.

Information regarding these segments is presented above. The accounting policies of the reportable
segments are the same as those of the Group. Segment information is prepared in conformity with the
accounting policies of the entity as disclosed in Note 1.

Segment revenues and expenses are those directly attributable to the segments and include any joint
revenue and expenses where a reasonable basis of allocation exists. Segment assets include all assets
used by a segment and consist principally of cash, receivables, plant and equipment, exploration
expenditure capitalised and development assets net of accumulated depreciation and amortisation. While
most such assets can be directly attributed to individual segments, the carrying amount of certain assets
used jointly by two or more segments is allocated to the segments on a reasonable basis. Segment
disclosures do not include deferred income taxes.

Revenue from discontinued operations from Texas of nil (2015: US$238,194) was derived from several
customers who each account for greater than 10% of this amount. Revenue from Trinidad of
US$7,062,226 (2015: US$13,152,954) is derived from the subsidiary’s sole customer, which is Petroleum
Company of Trinidad and Tobago Limited.

Intersegment transfers

Segment revenues, expenses and results do not include any transfers between segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

Note 30: Cash flow information

Reconciliation of cash flow from operations with loss after

income tax

Loss after income tax
Non-cash flows in profit
Depreciation
Share based payment- consultants and employees
Impairment of non-current assets
Finance costs (non-cash)
Impairment of available for sale assets
Loss on sale of subsidiary
Loss on sale of PPE
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss
Impairments recognised on held for sale assets
Share of net loss of associate
Net loss on sale of available for sale financial assets
Other non-cash items
Decrease in other current assets
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in deferred tax asset
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables
Increase in accrued interest
Decrease in income tax payable
Increase in deferred tax liabilities
(Decrease)/increase in provisions
Increase in non-current operating payables
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operations

Non-cash investing and financing activities

Repayment of borrowings:
Through issue of shares

Share issued as share based payments or finance or capital raising

costs

Note 31: Share-based payments

Consolidated

2016 2015
Us$ USs$

(43,874,885)  (30,279,054)

5,490,676 4,766,581

250,847 2,737,443

20,564,829 -

(1,633,799) 2,107,281

400,762 654,000

- 1,593,766

- 3,100

1,768,479 (124,789)

4,750,000 6,779,476

- 496,958

605,227 375,820

528,712 (608,228)

(3,673,112) 175,634

(1,409,322) 162,554

- 2,830,577

(10,170) (13,442)

4,202,416 1,097,078

(93,532) 289,981

7,946,837 -

(4,186,035)  (6,955,264)

Consolidated

2016
Uss$

1,661,430

2015
Uss$

562,500

4,844,724

The following share-based payment arrangements occurred during the financial year ended at 30 June

2016.
Quantity Security US$ Value Purpose
81,500,000(i) Unlisted options 106,278 Options issued to employees
(i) Includes 42,500,000 options to be granted once shareholder approval obtained

The value of options have been expensed to the profit and loss on a proportionate basis for each

financial year from grant to vesting date.
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Note 31: Share-based payments (continued)

The following share-based payment arrangements occurred during the financial year ended at 30 June
2015.

Quantity Security US$ Value Purpose

19,987,481 Fully paid 580,406 Shares issued to employees and consultants
ordinary shares

42,742,654 Unlisted options 1,176,524 Options issued in lieu of consulting fee

75,000,000 Unlisted options 85,464 Options issued to Directors in period

7,500,000 Unlisted options 895,049 Options issued in lieu of consulting fees

The fair value at grant date of unlisted options is independently determined using a Black Scholes
option pricing model that takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the impact of
dilution, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected
dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option.

Employee option plan

Current year

The following options were issued to key management personnel, employees and consultants:

Name Number of options Grant date Expiry Date
Key management 25,000,000 1 September 2015 30 March 2020
personnel

Employees and consultants 14,000,000 1 September 2015 31 August 2018
Key management 42,500,000 25 May 2016 30 March 2020

personnel (i)

(i) options to be granted once shareholder approval obtained

The options have an exercise price of £0.01 per share.
The vesting conditions of the options issued to key management personnel are as follows:

(a) 25% became exercisable on 31 March 2016

(b) 25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 1,500 barrels of oil per day
for a continuous 15 day period in Trinidad

(c) 25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 2,500 barrels of oil per day
for a continuous 15 day period in Trinidad

(d) 25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 4,000 barrels of oil per day
for a continuous 15 day period in Trinidad
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Note 31: share-based payments (continued)

The vesting conditions of the options issued to employees and consultants are as follows:

(a) 33% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 1,500 barrels of oil per day
for a continuous 15 day period in Trinidad
(b) 33% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 2,500 barrels of oil per day
for a continuous 15 day period in Trinidad
(c) 34% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 4,000 barrels of oil per day
for a continuous 15 day period in Trinidad

Options granted 1 September 2015
The value per option at the grant date was 0.56 cents for key management personnel options and 0.45

cents for employee options, determined using the Black Scholes option price model using the following
key inputs:

Volatility: 100% Probability of meeting vesting conditions: 100%
Risk free rate: 1.92% Exercise price: £0.01
USD/GBP exchange rate: 0.6509 Share price on grant date £0.0057

Options granted 25 May 2016

The fair value of options to be granted have been estimated at 30 June 2016 at 0.30 cents using the
Black Scholes options pricing model using the following key inputs:

Volatility: 100% Probability of meeting vesting conditions: 100%
Risk free rate: 1.92% Exercise price: £0.01
USD/GBP exchange rate: 0.7468 Share price on grant date £0.0037

Year ended 30 June 2015

During the previous year the following options were issued to Directors and employees:

Name Number of options
Mr Yan Liu 30,000,000

Mr David Chen 30,000,000

Mr Zhiwei Gu 7,500,000

Ms Juan Wang 7,500,000

The vesting conditions of these options are as follows:

(a) 25% will become exercisable on the date that is one year from the issue date (27 March 2016)

(b) 25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 1,500 barrels of oil per day
for a continuous 15 day period in Trinidad

(c) 25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 2,500 barrels of oil per day
for a continuous 15 day period in Trinidad

(d) 25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 4,000 barrels of oil per day
for a continuous 15 day period in Trinidad

During the year 20,000,000 options were cancelled following Yan Liu’s change in position from
executive to non-executive director. An amount of US$22,791 was reversed in the current year.
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Note 31: share-based payments (continued)

Expenses recognised in the profit & loss

During the year, share-based payments recognised in profit and loss amounts to US$250,847 (2015:

US$2,157,037)

2016 2015
Number Average Number Average
exercise price
Us$ USs$
As at 1 July 788,998,289  0.047 453,203,083 0.060
Granted during year:
Under employee option plan 39,000,000 0.013 75,000,000 0.016
Other options issued 367,143,136  0.019 319,701,840 0.019
Exercised - - (49,051,468) 0.017
Forfeited (312,085,678) 0.045 (9,855,166)
As at 30 June 883,055,747  0.019 788,998,289 0.023
Vested and exercisable at 30 June 823,055,747 0.019 713,998,289 0.047

Weighted average remaining

contractual life options outstanding 682 days 673 days
at end of period

Note 32: Related party transactions

€) Parent entity

exercise price

The ultimate Parent Entity and ultimate Australian Parent Entity within the Group is Range

Resources Limited.

(b) Subsidiaries
Interests in subsidiaries are set out in Note 15.

(c) Transactions with Key Management Personnel

The following transactions occurred during the year with Key Management Personnel or their related

parties:
2016 2015
US$ USs$

Consulting fees paid or payable to Soncer Limited, a company owned by Mr

Graham Lyon, for the provision of corporate advisory and capital raising services

(i) - 12,794
Consulting fees paid or payable to DNR Consulting, a company owned by Mr

David Rieke, for the provision of corporate advisory and services (ii) - 13,486
Balances at year end to related parties:

David Chen and related entities 12,267 -
Lubing Liu and related entities 10,375 -
DrYiZeng 1,042 -
Kiki Wang and related entities 2,500 -
Kerry Gu and related entities 20,833 -
Sir Sam Jonabh (i) 152,943 191,440
Marcus Edwards-Jones (i) - 33,566
Soncer Limited (i) 1,519 18,442

(i) These were related parties throughout the prior financial year until 28 November 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED

(i) David Rieke was a related party throughout the prior financial year until 11 December 2014.

Note 32: Related party transactions (continued)

(d) Key Management Personnel compensation

Short-term benefits
One-off payment
Post-employment benefits
Termination benefits
Share based payments

Total

Note 33: Parent entity information

Consolidated

2016 2015

US$ Uss
561,467 778,338
15,700 -
24,246 28,152
- 150,253
234,424 85,464

835,837 1,042,207

The following details information related to the Parent Entity Range Resources Limited, at 30 June
2016. The information presented here has been prepared in accordance using consistent accounting

policies as presented in Note 1.

Current assets

Non-current assets
Total assets

Current liabilities
Total liabilities

Contributed equity
Accumulated losses

Reserves
Total equity

Loss for the year from continuing operations

2016 2015
Us$ US$

17,142,499 15,290,123
59,743,582 97,208,375
76,886,081 112,498,498
4,648,918 15,333,201
4,648,918 15,333,201
383,882,182 363,205,245
(335,088,153)  (295,165,636)
23,443,134 29,125,688
72,237,163 97,165,297

Loss for the year from discontinued operations

Total loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss for the year
Total comprehensive loss for the year

(40,975,917)
(4,880,000)
(45,855,917)

(29,028,556)
(7,355,641)
(36,384,197)

(45,855,917)

(36,384,197)

The contingent liabilities of the parent are included within those of the Group as disclosed in Note 28.

The contractual commitments of the parent are included within those of the Group as disclosed in Note

27.
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Note 34: Financial risk management
The Group has exposure to the following risks from their use of financial instruments:

e Credit risk
e Liquidity risk
e Market risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, their objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the management of capital. Further
quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk
management framework.

Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities.
The Group, through training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined
and constructive control environment in which all consultants and agents understand their roles and
obligations.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s investments, receivables and cash
held at financial institutions.

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external
ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk,
whether through exposure to individual customers, specific industry sectors and/or regions.

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due or impaired can be assessed by reference
to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates.
Consolidated

Cash at bank, restricted deposits and short-term bank deposits 2016 2015
(S&P ratings) Uss$ uss$
AAA 155,801 -
AA- 4,635,076 9,868,592
A+ 719,460 -
BBB+ 95,205 661,512
BBB- 7,382,980 -
Not rated 8,012,730

21,001,252 10,530,104

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:
Consolidated

2016 2015

7 USs$ Uss
Trade and other receivables " 4,620,266 5,148,978
Cash and cash equivalents 13,001,252 10,530,104
Restricted deposits 8,000,000 -
25,621,518 15,679,082

(i) Counterparties without an external credit rating
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Note 34: Financial risk management (continued)
Loans and receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each debtor.
No collateral was held in relation to these receivables.

Impairment losses

Impairment loss US$600,000 was recognised in relation to other receivables respectively in the year.
During the prior year, an impairment of US$17,937 on trade and other receivables were recognised.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group uses activity-based costing to cost its activities, which assists in monitoring cash flow
requirements and optimising its cash return on investments. Typically, the Group ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses for a period of 12 months; this
excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as
natural disasters.

The following are contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments and
excluding the impact of netting agreements:

Group

2016
Carrying Contractual 6 months 6-12 1-2 years 2-5 years
amount  cash flows or less months

Financial liabilities

at amortised cost

Trade and other

payables 36,008,878 38,540,925 8,906,905 3,493,614 15,397,807 10,742,599
36,008,878 38,540,925 8,906,905 3,493,614 15,397,807 10,742,599

Group

2015
Carrying Contractual 6 months 6-12 1-2 2-5 Over 5
amount cash flows  orless months years vyears years

Financial liabilities at

amortised cost

Trade and other payables 11,998,340 11,998,340 11,998,340 - - -
Borrowings 7,518,077 7,518,077 7,518,077 - - -

19,516,417 19,516,417 19,516,417 - - -
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Note 34: Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and equity prices will affect
the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of available for sale assets. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimising the return.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk. This arises from investments held by the Group
and classified on the statement of financial position as available for sale as well as from the option

liability held as a current liability.

A 10% increase in Range’s share price would result in an increase to the option liability of US$190,323.
A decrease would have had the equal but opposite effect.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to the US dollar, AU dollar, TT Dollar and British pound.

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency. The risk is measured using
sensitivity analysis and cash flow forecasting.

The Group’s treasury risk management policy is to closely monitor exchange rate fluctuations. To date,
the Group has not sought to hedge its exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates, however this policy
will be reviewed on an ongoing basis.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the reporting date was as follows:

Consolidated Consolidated
2016 2015 2016 2015
AUD AUD GBP GBP
Cash 209,285 272,621 585,596 242,304
Amount payable to other entities (119,549) (1,159,133) (44,725) (362,135)

89,736 (886,512) 540,871 (119,831)
Sensitivity

Based upon the amounts above, had the Australian dollar strengthened by 10% against the US dollar
with all other variables held constant, the Group post-tax loss for the year on current amounts
receivable/payable would have been US$35,798 higher (2015: US$67,885 higher), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of AUD denominated payables as detailed in the table
above. A 10% weakening of the Australian dollar against the above currencies at 30 June would have
had the equal but opposite effect, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

The Trinidad entities are minimally exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currencies,
primarily with respect to the United States Dollar.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

Note 34: Financial risk management (continued)
Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
The sensitivity on interest rates for 2016 and 2015 assumes a change of 100 basis points in the interest
rates at the reporting date and would have increased / (decreased) profit and loss by the amounts
shown. Both analyses for each year assume that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates,

remain constant.

Weighted 2016 2016 Weighted 2015 2015

Average Average
Interest +100 -100 Interest +100 -100
Rate bps bps Rate bps bps
Group % Uss$ uss$ % Uss$ Us$

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets (cash and cash - -
equivalents) 0.31% - 0.10% -
Financial assets (loan and - -
receivables) - - - -

Fair values versus carrying amounts

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the
statement of financial position, are as follows:

Group 30 June 2016 30 June 2015
Uss$ uUss$

Carrying Carrying Fair

amount Fair value amount value
Available-for-sale financial assets 45,238 45,238 446,000 446,000
Trade and other receivables 4,620,266 4,620,266 5,148,978 5,148,978
Cash and cash equivalents 13,001,252 13,001,252 10,530,104 10,530,104
Restricted deposits 8,000,000 8,000,000 - -
Trade and other payables (36,008,878)  (36,008,878) (11,998,340) (11,998,340)
Borrowings - (7,518,077) (7,518,077)

(10,342,122)  (10,342,122) _ (3,391,335)  (3,391,335)

The basis for determining fair value is disclosed in Note 1(n).

Other price risk

The Group is not exposed to any other price risks.

Capital management

The entity’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The entity’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2015.

The capital structure of the group consists of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company, comprising issued capital, reserves and accumulated losses as disclosed in
Notes 25 and 26 respectively. None of the entities within the group are subject to externally imposed

capital requirements.
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30 JUNE 2016

Note 34: Financial risk management (continued)
Gearing ratio
The Board reviews the capital structure on an annual basis. As a part of this review the Board

considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital
Consolidated

2016 2015
Us$ Uss$
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 13,001,252 10,530,104
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (36,008,878) (11,998,340)
Borrowings - (7,518,077)
Net assets / (debt) (23,007,626) (8,986,313)
Equity 72,237,132 95,023,456
Net debt to equity ratio 31.9% 9.5%

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Option liability

Consolidated

2016
Uss$

2015
Uss$

13,001,252 10,530,104

4,620,266

5,148,978

45,238 446,000

17,666,756 16,125,082

36,008,878 11,998,340

- 7,518,077

835,714 808,083

36,844,592 20,324,500

The carrying amount reflected above represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for such

loans and receivables.
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Note 35: Fair value measurement of financial Instruments

(@) Fair value hierarchy

AASB 13 requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value
measurement hierarchy:

(a) Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1),

(b) Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly (level 2), and

(c) Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities measured and
recognised at fair value at 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015 on a recurring basis:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 30 June 2016 USH US$ Uss$
Assets
Available for sale financial assets
Equity securities - - 45,238 45,238
Total assets - - 45,238 45,238
Liabilities
Option liability at fair value through profit or
loss - 835,714 - 835,714
Total liabilities - 835,714 - 835,714
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 30 June 2015 USss$ UsSs$ US$
Assets
Available for sale financial assets
Equity securities - - 446,000 446,000
Total assets - - 446,000 446,000
Liabilities
Option liability at fair value through profit or
loss - 808,083 - 808,083
Borrowings - 7,518,077 - 7,518,077
Total liabilities - 8,326,160 - 8,326,160

The fair value of financial instruments in active markets such as available for sale securities is based on
quoted market bids at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in Level 1.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the
end of the end of the reporting period. There were no transfers between the levels of the fair value
hierarchy during the year ended 30 June 2016.

(b) Fair values of other financial instruments

The Group has no financial instruments which are not measured at fair value in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Due to their short term nature, the carrying amounts of the current
receivables, current payables, current borrowings, and current other financial liabilities is assumed to
approximate their fair value.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

Note 36: Fair value measurement of non-financial instruments
(@ Non-recurring fair value measurements

Assets classified as held for sale at 30 June 2016 were measured at fair value less costs to sell in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.

Fair value less costs to sell has been determined based upon offers received from independent third
parties to acquire the assets. Due to the way the third party offers are structured, the fair values of
assets held for sale has been assessed as a Level 3 measurement as per the fair value hierarchy set
out above.

Significant estimates made in determining the fair value of held for sale assets are as follows:

Strait Oil & Gas Limited

The Group made the decision to divest its interest in Strait in June 2014 and the Group is in the process
of marketing its equity interest in Strait. The Group is optimistic that a buyer will be found for this asset.
In the absence of a fully executed sale agreement at the report date the Group has chosen to write
down the value of its interest in Strait to US$1.25million which is considered by the Company to be a fair
market value for the level of cash consideration which may be received upon closing of a sale. This
valuation is based upon expressions of interest received and negotiations which have taken place with
potential purchasers.

(b)  Fair value hierarchy

AASB 13 requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value
measurement hierarchy:
(d) Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1),
(e) Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly (level 2), and
(f) Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs (level 3).

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the
end of the end of the reporting period. There were no transfers between the levels of the fair value
hierarchy during the year ended 30 June 2016.

The following table presents the Group’s non-financial instruments measured and recognised at fair
value at 30 June 2016 on a non-recurring basis:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 30 June 2016 USs$ USs$ USs$
Assets
Assets classified as held for sale
Strait Oil & Gas Limited - - 1,250,000 1,250,000
Total assets - - 1,250,000 1,250,000
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 30 June 2015 Uss$ Uss$ US$
Assets
Assets classified as held for sale
Strait Oil & Gas Limited - - 5,000,000 5,000,000
Latin American Resources 2,179,358 2,179,358
Total assets - - 7,179,358 7,179,358
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Note 37: Events after the reporting date

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

On 1 September 2016, Range received a demand notice from ANH addressed to the Consortium of
Optima Oil Corporation and Range Resources Limited seeking payment of the full amount of the
outstanding obligations due to ANH in relation to Range’s Colombian assets totalling up to

approximately US$53million. For further details on this matter, please refer to Note 28.

Note 38: New accounting Standards and interpretations

Australian accounting Standards/amendments released but not yet effective: 30 June 2016 year

end

Certain new accounting Standards and Interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for
30 June 2016 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s
assessment of the impact of these new Standards and Interpretations is set out below. In all cases the
Group intends to apply these standards from the application date as indicated in the table below.

Standard Group

Reference | Title application application Key Requirements Impact

date date

AASB 9 Financial 1 January 1 July 2018 | AASB 9 addresses the There will be
Instruments | 2018 classification, no significant

measurement and impact on the
derecognition of financial | Group on the
assets and financial adoption of
liabilities and introduces this standard.
new rules for hedge

accounting.

In December 2014, the

AASB made further

changes to the

classification and

measurement rules and

also introduced a new

impairment model.

These latest amendments

now complete the

financial instruments

standard.

AASB 15 | Revenue 1 January 1 July 2018 | The AASB has issued a Management
from 2018 new standard for the is currently
Contracts recognition of revenue. assessing the
with This will replace AASB impact of the
Customers 118 which covers new rules.

contracts for goods and At this stage,
services and AASB111 the Group is
which covers construction | not able to
contracts. estimate the
impact of the
The new standard is new rules on
based on the principle the Group’s
that revenue is financial
recognised when control statements.
of a good or service The Group
transfers to a customer, will make
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED

30 JUNE 2016

so the notion of control
replaces the existing
notion of risks and
rewards.

The standard permits a
modified retrospective
approach for the
adoption. Under this
approach entities will
recognise any applicable
transitional adjustments
in retained earnings on
the date of the initial
application without
restating the comparative
period.

Entities will only need to
apply the new rules to
contracts that are not
completed as of the date
of initial application.

more detailed
assessments
of the impact
over the next
12 months.

AASB Amendments | 1 January 1 July 2016 There will be
2015-2 to Australian | 2016 This standard makes no significant
Accounting amendments to AASB impact on the
Standards - 101 Presentation of Group on the
Disclosure Financial Statements adoption of
Initiative: arising from the IASB’s this standard.
Amendments Disclosure Initiative The Group is
to AASB 101 Project. The currently
amendments are conducting
designed to further an exercise
encourage companies to | of reviewing
apply professional financial
judgment in determining report
what information to disclosures.
disclose in the financial
statements.
The amendments also
clarify that companies
should use professional
judgment in determining
where and in what order
in formation is to be
presented in the financial
disclosures.
AASB 16 | Leases 1 January 1 July 2019 | The key features of AASB | To the extent
2019 16 are as follows: that the
Lessee accounting entity, as
e Lessees are required lessee, has
to recognise assets significant
and liabilities for all operating
leases with a term of leases
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED

30 JUNE 2016

more than 12 months,
unless the underlying
asset is of a low value.
A lessee measures
right-of-use assets
similarly to other non-
financial assets and
lease liabilities
similarly to other
financial liabilities.
Assets and liabilities
arising from a lease
are initially measured
on a present value
basis. The
measurement includes
non-cancellable lease
payments, and also
includes payments to
be made in optional
periods if the lessee is
reasonably certain to
exercise an option to
extend the lease, or
not to exercise an
option to terminate the
lease.

AASB 16 contains
disclosure
requirements for
leases.

Lessor accounting

AASB 16 substantially
carries forward the
lessor accounting
requirements in AASB
117. Accordingly, a
lessor continues to
classify its leases as
operating leases or
finance leases, and to
account for those two
types of leases
differently.

AASB 16 also requires
enhanced disclosures
to be provided by
lessors that will
improve information
disclosed about a
lessor’s risk exposure,
particularly to residual
value risk.

outstanding
at the date of
initial
application, 1
July 2019,
right-of-use
assets will be
recognised
for the
amount of the
unamortised
portion of the
useful life,
and lease
liabilities will
be
recognised at
the present
value of the
outstanding
lease
payments.
Thereafter,
earnings
before
interest,
depreciation,
amortisation
and tax
(EBITDA) will
increase
because
operating
lease
expenses
currently
included in
EBITDA will
be
recognised
instead as
amortisation
of the right-
of-use asset,
and interest
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the early
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016
because the
amortisation
and interest
charges will
exceed the
current
straight-line
expense
incurred
under AASB
117 Leases.
This trend will
reverse in the
later years.
There will be
no change to
the
accounting
treatment for
short-term
leases less
than 12
months and
leases of low
value items,
which will
continue to
be expensed
on a straight-
line basis.
AASB Amendments | 1 January 1 July 2017 | This standard amends There will be
2016-1 to Australian | 2017 AASB 112 Income Taxes | no significant
Accounting to clarify the requirements | impact on the
Standards - on recognition of deferred | Group’s
Recognition tax assets for unrealised results on the
of Deferred losses on debt adoption of
Tax Assets instruments measured at | this standard.
for fair value.
Unrealised
Losses
(AASB 112)
AASB Amendments | 1 January 1 July 2017 | This standard amends There will be
2016-2 to Australian | 2017 AASB 107 Statement of no significant
Accounting Cash Flows to require impact on the
Standards - entities preparing Group’s
Disclosure financial statements in results on the
Initiative: accordance with Tier 1 adoption of
Amendments reporting requirements to | this standard.
to AASB 107 provide disclosures that

enable users of financial
statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities
arising from financing
activities, including both
changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash
changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that would be expected to have a material
impact on Range in the current or future period and on foreseeable future transactions.

Note 39: Company details
The registered office of the company is:

Ground Floor, BGC Centre
28 The Esplanade

Perth WA 6000

Australia

Telephone: +61 8 6205 3012
Facsimile: +61 8 6316 2211

The principal place of business is:

Ground Floor, BGC Centre
28 The Esplanade

Perth WA 6000

Australia

Telephone: +61 8 6205 3012
Facsimile: +61 8 6316 2211
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RANGE RESOURCES LIMITED
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 88 002 522 009

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

The directors of the company declare that:

1. The financial statements, comprising the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of financial position, consolidated statement of
cash flows, consolidated statement of changes in equity, accompanying notes, are in accordance
with the Corporations Act 2001 and:

(@) comply with Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other
mandatory professional reporting requirements; and

(b) give a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 30 June 2016 and of its
performance for the year ended on that date.

2. The company has included in the notes to the financial statements an explicit and unreserved
statement of compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

3. In the directors’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to
pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

4. The directors have been given the declarations by the chief executive officer and chief financial
officer required by section 295A.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors and is signed for and
on behalf of the directors by:

5 Ao

Zhiwei Gu
Chairman
30 September 2016

Annual report 2016 Range Resources Limited and Controlled Entities
ABN 88 002 522 009
70

192



Tel: +61 8 6382 4600 38 Station Street
Fax: +61 8 6382 4601 Subiaco, WA 6008

E—— www.bdo.com.au PO Box 700 West Perth WA 6872
Australia

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Range Resources Limited

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Range Resources Limited, which comprises the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2016, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the directors’ declaration of the
consolidated entity comprising the company and the entities it controlled at the year’s end or from
time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error. In Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101
Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial statements comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with
relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the company’s
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations
Act 2001. We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which
has been given to the directors of Range Resources Limited, would be in the same terms if given to the
directors as at the time of this auditor’s report.

BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd ABN 79 112 284 787 is a member of a national association of independent entities which are all members of BDO Australia Ltd ABN 77 050 110 275,
an Australian company limited by guarantee. BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd and BDO Australia Ltd are members of BDO International Ltd, a UK company limited by guarantee, and
form part of the international BDO network of independent member firms. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation other than for
the acts or omissions of financial services licensees
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Opinion
In our opinion:

(a) the financial report of Range Resources Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2016
and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in
Note 1.

Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 33 to 41 of the directors’ report for the
year ended 30 June 2016. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of the Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act
2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit
conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Range Resources Limited for the year ended 30 June 2016
complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd

.-"’Jllr Ilr-;l
B/ PLY

Jarrad Prue

Director

Perth, 30 September 2016
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Remuneration Report (Audited)

This report details the nature and amount of remuneration for each director of Range
Resources Limited.

Remuneration policy

The remuneration policy of Range has been designed to align director and executive
objectives with shareholder and business objectives by providing a fixed remuneration
component and offering specific long-term incentives based on key performance areas
affecting the Group's financial results. The Board of Range Resources Limited believes the
remuneration policy to be appropriate and effective in its ability to attract and retain the
best executives and directors to run and manage the Group, as well as create alignment of
goals between directors, executives and shareholders.

The Board’s policy for determining the nature and amount of remuneration for Board
members and senior executives of the Company is as follows:

The remuneration policy, setting the terms and conditions for the executive directors and
other senior executives, was developed and approved by the Board.

Non-executive directors, executive directors and senior executives receive a base salary
(which is based on factors such as length of service and experience), which is calculated on
a total cost basis and includes any FBT charges related to employee benefits including motor
vehicles, as well as employer contributions to superannuation funds where applicable.

Executive and non-executive directors can be employed by the Company on a consultancy
basis on Board approval, with remuneration and terms stipulated in individual consultancy
agreements.

The Board exercises its discretion in determining remuneration performance of executives.
Given the size and nature of the entity, the Board does not deem it to be redlistic o measure
performance against defined criteria. As such remuneration and performance have
historically not been linked.

All remuneration paid to directors and executives is valued at the cost to the Company and
expensed. Shares given to directors and executives are valued as the difference between
the market price of those shares and the amount paid by the director or executive. Unlisted
options are valued using the Black-Scholes methodology.

The Board policy is to remunerate non-executive directors at market rates for comparable
companies taking info consideration tfime, commitment and level of responsibility. As
approved by shareholders on 30 November 2011, the aggregate non-executive
remuneration per annum is currently A$350,000 (US$260,555). The Remuneration and
Nomination Committee determines payments to the non-executive directors and reviews
their remuneration annually. Independent external advice is sought when required. Fees for
non-executive directors are not linked to the performance of the Group. The directors are
notf required to hold any shares in the Company under the Constitution of the Company;
however, to align directors’ interests with shareholder interests, the directors are encouraged
to hold shares in the Company.

Options may be issued to directors and executives as part of remuneration. Options issued to
directors historically were not based on performance criteria. However, the options issued to

Range Resources Ltd and Confrolled Entities
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the current directors on 27 March 2015 and the Key Management Personnel on 1 September
2015 and November 2016, principally vest upon satisfaction of set company performance
criteria detailed in Note 31.

Under the Company’s share frading policy, all employees and directors of the Company and
its related companies are prohibited from frading in the Company’s shares or other securities
if they are in possession of inside information.

The Board believes that it has implemented suitable practices and procedures that are
appropriate for an organisation of this size and maturity.

Remuneration committee

A Remuneration Committee was established during the year ended 30 June 2015. An annual
review of remuneration is generally undertaken, however no review was undertaken during
the reporting period. The Board is intending to take a comprehensive review during late 2017.

Company performance, shareholder wealth and directors and executives remuneration

No relationship exists between shareholder wealth, director and executive remuneration and
Company performance.

Voting and comments made at the company’s 2016 Annual General Meeting

Range Resources Limited received 99% of “yes” votes on its remuneration report for the 2016
financial year, which is in line with the previous year and the Board believes that this reflects
the conservative remuneration practices of the company.

Key Management Personnel

Position Appointed/Resigned
Non-Executive Chairman appointed 25 May 2016
Mr Zhiwei Gu appointed 11 December 2014

Non-Executive Direct
on-Executive Director resigned 25 May 2016

Executive Director, Chief

Mr Yan Liu Executive Officer appointed 25 May 2016
Ms Juan Wang Non-Executive Director appointed 30 November 2014
Mr Yu Wang Non-Executive Director appointed 30 September 2015
Mr Lubing Liu Non-Executive Director appointed 16 June 2016
DrYiZeng Non-Executive Director appointed 16 June 2016

appointed 30 November 2014
resigned 25 May 2016

appointed 25 May 2016

resigned 24 November 2016
appointed 23 May 2014 (as CFO)

Non-Executive Chairman
Mr David Yu Chen

Non-Executive Director

Mr Nick Beattie CFO & Company Secretary and 30 March 2015 (as Company
Secretary)
Ms Sara Kelly Company Secretary appointed 7 January 2015

Vice President of Operations

Mr Lijun Xiu and Production

appointed 29 September 2016

Range Resources Ltd and Controlled Enfities
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Details of remuneration

The remuneration for the Key Management Personnel of the Group during the year was as
follows:

Post-
Short Term Benefits employment sharebased
benefits payments
Cash salary & One-off Termirjation Z:Fr):::ﬁon / Options
fees payment benefits .
pensions
Currency Us$ Us$ Us$ Us$ UsS$ US$
Director’s & Officers
Mr Gu (i) 250,000 - - - 21,515 271,515
Mr Y Liu 162,031 - - 16,203 23,971 202,205
Mr Chen 12,918 - 38,750 - (62,942) (11,274)
Ms Wang (i) 105,000 - - - 1,558 106,558
Mr L Liu (iii) 64,660 - - - - 64,660
Dr Zeng 25,000 - - - - 25,000
Mr Beattie 171,116 - - 17,112 23,041 211,269
Mr Xiu (iv) 116,000 104,000 - - 7,096 227,096
Total: 906,725 104,000 38,750 33,315 14,239 1,097,029

(i) Fees paid to Mr Gu comprised US$30,000 received in his capacity as a non-executive director,
US$25,000 in his role as Chairman and US$ 195,000 for additional consulting work.

(i)Fees paid to Ms Wang comprised US$30,000 received in her capacity as a non-executive director

and US$75,000 received for additional consulting work.

(iii) Fees paid to Mr L Liu comprised US$25,000 received in his capacity as a non-executive director and
US$39,660 received for additional consulting work.

(iv) Fees paid to Mr Xiu comprised US$60,000 received in his capacity as a Vice President of Operations
and Production and US$56,000 plus a one-off payment of $104,000 received for additional consulting

work.

Post-
Short Term Benefits employment share based
benefits payments
Cash salary & One-off Termir?ation Z:iirqﬁon /  Options
fees payment benefits .
pensions
Currency Uus$ Us$ Uus$ Uus$ Us$ Us$
Director’s & Officers
Mr Gu 53,065 - - - 38.317 91,382
MrY Liu 113,605 - - 3,052 50,120 166,777
Mr Chen 141,437 - - - 67,058 208,495
Ms Wang 30,000 - - - 16,764 46,764
Mr Wang - - - - - -
Mr L Liu 10,375 - - - - 10,375
DrZeng 1,042 - - - - 1,042
Mr Beattie 211,943 15,700 - 21,194 62,165 311,002
Total: 561,467 15,700 - 24,246 234,424 835,837
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Equity instrument disclosures relating to Key Management Personnel
Share-based payments (year ended 30 June 2017)
The following options were issued to key management personnel:

Name Number of options Grant date
Mr Lijun Xiu 8,000,000 29 September 2016

The options expire on 30 March 2020 with an exercise price of £0.01 per share. The vesting
conditions of these options are as follows:

25% became exercisable on 31 March 2017;

25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 1,500 barrels of
oil per day for a contfinuous 15 day period in Trinidad;

25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 2,500 barrels of
oil per day for a continuous 15 day period in Trinidad;

25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 4,000 barrels of
oil per day for a contfinuous 15 day period in Trinidad.

The value per option at the grant date was 0.21 cents, determined using the Black Scholes
option price model using the following key inpufs:

Volatility: 100% Probability of meeting vesting condifions: 100%
Risk free rate: 1.92% Exercise price: £0.01
USD/GBP exchange rate: 0.8028 Share price on grant date: £0.00368

Share-based payments (year ended 30 June 2016)

The following options were issued to key management personnel:

Name Number of options Grant date

Mr Nick Beattie 25,000,000 1 September 2015
Mr Yan Liu 20,000,000 25 May 2016

Mr Kerry Gu 22,500,000 25 May 2016

Mr Liu's and Mr Gu's options were granted on 25 May 2016 however they were issued on 13
December 2016 once shareholder approval was obtained.

All options expire on 30 March 2020 with an exercise price of £0.01 per share. The vesting
conditions of these options are as follows:

25% became exercisable on 31 March 2017;

25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 1,500 barrels of
oil per day for a confinuous 15 day period in Trinidad;

25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 2,500 barrels of
oil per day for a continuous 15 day period in Trinidad;

25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 4,000 barrels of
oil per day for a confinuous 15 day period in Trinidad.
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Mr Nick Beattie options:

The value per option at the grant date was 0.56 cents, determined using the Black Scholes
option price model using the following key inputs:

Volatility: 100% Probability of meeting vesting conditions: 100%
Risk free rate: 1.92% Exercise price: £0.01
USD/GBP exchange rate: 0.6509 Share price on grant date: £0.0057

Mr Kerry Gu and Mr Yan Liu options:

The value per option at the grant date was 0.30 cents, determined using the Black Scholes
option price model using the following key inputs:

Volatility: 100% Probability of meeting vesting conditions: 100%
Risk free rate: 1.92% Exercise price: £0.01
USD/GBP exchange rate: 0.7468 Share price on grant date: £0.0037

Share-based payments (year ended 30 June 2015)

On 27 March 2015, the following options were issued to key management personnel:

Name Number of options

Mr Yan Liu 30,000,000
Mr David Chen 30,000,000
Mr Zhiwei Gu 7,500,000
Ms Juan Wang 7,500,000

All options expire on 30 March 2020 with an exercise price of £0.01 per share. The vesting
conditions of these options are as follows:

25% became exercisable one year from the issue date;

25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 1,500 barrels of
oil per day for a contfinuous 15 day period in Trinidad;

25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 2,500 barrels of
oil per day for a confinuous 15 day period in Trinidad;

25% will become exercisable upon the Company reaching production of 4,000 barrels of
oil per day for a contfinuous 15 day period in Trinidad.

The value per option at the grant date was 0.51 cents, determined using the Black Scholes
option price model using the following key inputs:

Volatility: 100% Grant date: 27 March 2015
Risk free rate: 1.92% Exercise price: £0.01
USD/GBP exchange rate: 0.7752 Share price on grant date £0.054
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Fully paid share holdings

RANGE

The numbers of shares in the Company held during the financial year or at time of resignation
by Key Management Personnel of the Company, including their personally related parties,

are set out below.

Balance at the

Balance at the Granted as Balance held
start of the year Compensation Other Changes j::rOf ihe indirectly
Mr Gu 2,083,333 - - 2,083,333 -
Mr Chen 18,288,070 - - 18,288,070 -
MrY Liu 6,333,333 - - 6,333,333 -
Ms Wang 2,083,333 - - 2,083,333 -
Mr Wang - - - - -
Mr L Liu - - - - -
Dr Zeng - - - - -
Mr Beattie 2,916,667 - - 2,916,667 -
Ms Kelly 1 - - 1 -
Total: 31,704,737 - - 31,704,737 -

Options held by Key Management Personnel

The numbers of options in the company held during the financial year or at fime of
resignation by Key Management Personnel of the Company, including their personally
related parties, are set out below:

Balance at the

Balance at the Granted as Vested &

start of the year Compensation Other Changes j::rOf ihe Exercisable
Mr Gu 30,000,000 - - 30,000,000 7,500,000
MrY Liu 30,000,000 - - 30,000,000 7,500,000
Mr Chen (i) 72,742,654 - (22,500,000) 50,242,654 42,742,654
Ms Wang 7,500,000 - - 7,500,000 1,875,000
Mr Wang - - - - -
Mr L Liu - - - - -
DrZeng - - - - -
Mr Beattie 25,000,000 - - 25,000,000 6,250,000
Mr Xiu - 8,000,000 - 8,000,000 -
Ms Kelly - - - - -

Total: 165,242,654 8,000,000 (22,500,000) 150,742,654 65,867,654

(i) 22,500,000 Unlisted options (£0.01, 30 March 2020) which were issued on March 2015 fo previous
director Mr David Chen were cancelled on 13 December 2016 due fo failure fo satisfy the vesting

conditions. The amount of US$62,492 was reversed in the current year.
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Loans to Key Management Personnel

There were no loans made to directors of Range and other Key Management Personnel of
the Group, including their personally related parties during the 2016 or 2017 financial years.
Please refer fo Note 32c for other transactions with Key Management Personnel.

Employment coniracts of Directors and other Key Management Personnel

On appointment, Executive Directors and Other Key Management Personnel enter info an
employment contfract with the Company (or another company within the Group). This
contract sets out their duties, remuneration and other terms of employment. These contracts
may be terminated by either the Company or the employee as detailed below.

All non-executive directors are eligible to receive consulting fees for services provided to the
Company over and above the services expected from a non-executive director.

Mr Zhiwei Gu as Non-Executive Chairman
Confract starf date: 25 May 2016
Base Payment: US$55,000 per annum
Superannuation: no superannuation entitlement
Nofice period: 3 months
Termination benefits: payment in lieu of notice at Company option
for termination without cause.
Consulfing services: From May 2016, Mr Gu provides additional
executive and consulting services over and above services
rendered to the Company at a rate of US$16,250 per month.

Non-Executive
Chairman contract

Mr Yan Liv as Chief Executive Officer

Confract start date: 25 May 2016

Base payment: AU$215,000 per annum

Superannuation: 10% of base salary

Bonus: Eligible to receive bonus at the discretion of the board
Nofice period: 3 months

Termination benefits: payment in lieu of notice at Company opftion
for termination without cause

Chief Executive
Officer contract

Mr David Chen as Non-Executive Director
Confract start date: 25 May 2016
Resignatfion date: 24 November 2016
Non-Executive Base payment: US$30,000 per annum
Director contract Superannuation: no superannuation entitlement
Notice period: None
Termination benefits: None
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Ms Juan Wang as Non-Executive Director
Conftract start date: 19 January 2015
Base payment: US$30,000 per annum
Superannuafion: no superannuation entitlement

Non-Executive Termination benefits: None

Director contract Consulting services: From January 2017, Ms Wang provides
additional consulting services over and above services rendered to
the Company as a Non-Executive Director at a rate of US$12,500
per month.

Mr Yu Wang as Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive

. No remuneration received
Director contract

Mr Lubing Liv as Non-Executive Director
Confract start date: 16 June 2016
Base payment: US$25,000 per annum
Superannuafion: no superannuation entitlement

Non-Executive Termination benefits: None

Director contract Consulfing services: Mr Liu may provide additional consulting
services over and above services rendered to the Company as a
Non-Executive Director from time to fime as required at a rate of
between US$600 and $1,200 per day.

Dr Yi Zeng as Non-Executive Director

Confract start date: 16 June 2016

Base payment: US$25,000 per annum
Superannuation: no superannuation entitlement
Termination benefits: None

Non-Executive
Director contract

Mr Nick Beattie as Chief Financial Officer

Confract start date: 23 May 2014
Base payment: GB£135,000 per annum, reviewed annually
Chief Financial Pension: 10% of base
Officer contract Bonus: Eligible to receive bonus at the discretion of the board
Nofice period: 3-6 months
Termination benefits: 6 months’ salary

Confract start date: 29 September 2016

Vice President of
Operations and
Production

Base payment: US$144,000 per annum, reviewed annually
Nofice period: 45 days

Termination benefits: None

This is the end of the audited remuneration report.
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Meetings of Directors

During the financial year, six meetings of the board of directors were held. Attendances by
each director during the year were as follows:

Board Meetings

Director ‘
Eligible o attend  AHtended

Zhiwei Gu

Yan Liu

David Chen (resigned 24 November 2016)

Juan Wang

Yu Wang

Lubing Liu

ON|ON|ON OV N OO
Al O OOV N OV O

Yi Zeng

Indemnifying officers or auditors

In accordance with the constitution, except where prohibited by the Corporations Act 2001,
every director, principal executive officer and secretary of the Company shall be
indemnified out of the property of the Company against any liability incurred by him/her in
his/her capacity as director, principal executive officer or secretary of the Company or any
related corporation in respect of any act or omission whatsoever and howsoever occurring
or in defending any proceedings whether civil or criminal.

During the financial year, the Company has paid premiums to insure the Directors and
Officers against certain liabilities arising out of the conduct of acting as an officer of the
Company. Under the terms and condifions of the insurance contract, the nature of liabilities
insured against and the premium paid cannot be disclosed.

Proceedings on behalf of the company

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or
to intervene in any proceedings fo which the Company is a party for the purpose of taking
responsibility on behalf of the Company for all or any part of those proceedings.

The Company was not a party fo any such proceedings during the year
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Options

As at 30 June 2017, the unissued ordinary shares of Range under option are as follows:

Date of expiry Exercise price Number under option
9 September 2017 £0.03 7,500,000

15 October 2017 £0.01203 31,000,000

31 January 2018 A$0.05 1,000,000

14 July 2018 £0.01 161,472,247

14 July 2018 £0.02 118,729,593

31 August 2018 £0.01 14,000,000

3 September 2019 £0.01 194,585,862

3 September 2019 £0.02 172,557,274

30 March 2020 £0.01 80,000,000

Total: 780,844,976

During the year ended 30 June 2017 no ordinary shares of Range were issued on the exercise
of options (2016: nil).

The holders of these options do not have any rights under the options to participate in any
share issues of the Company.

Non-audit services

The total value of non-audit services provided by a related practice of BDO Audit (WA) Pty
Ltd in respect to the Company’s tax compliance is US$17,828 (2016: US$34,149).

The board of directors has considered the position and is satisfied that the provision of the
non-audit services is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors
imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The directors are safisfied that the provision of non-
audit services by the auditor did not compromise the auditor independence requirements of
the Corporations Act 2001 for the following reasons:

all non-audif services have been reviewed by the Board to ensure they do not impact
the impartiality and objectivity of the auditor; and

none of the services undermine the general principles relating o auditor independence
as set out in APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration

The auditor’s independence declaration, as required under Section 307C of the Corporations
Act 2001, for the year ended 30 June 2017 has been received and can be found on the
following page.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

g Ao

Zhiwei Gu
Chairman

29 September 2017
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Auditor’'s Independence Declaration

Tel: +61 8 6382 4600 38 Station Street

Fax: +61 8 6382 4601 Subiaco, WA 6008

www.bdo.com.au PO Box 700 West Perth WA 6872
—

Australia

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY JARRAD PRUE TO THE DIRECTORS OF RANGE RESOURCES
LIMITED

As lead auditor of Range Resources Limited for the year ended 30 June 2017, | declare that, to the best
of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

1. No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

2. No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Range Resources Limited and the entities it controlled during the
period.

-

we

Jarrad Prue

Director

BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd
Perth, 29 September 2017

BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd ABN 79 112 284 787 is a member of a national association of independent entities which are all members of BDO Australia Ltd ABN
77 050 110 275, an Australian company limited by guarantee. BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd and BDO Australia Ltd are members of BDO International Ltd, a UK
company limited by guarantee, and form part of the international BDO network of independent member firms. Liability limited by a scheme approved under
Professional Standards Legislation, other than for the acts or omissions of financial services licensees.
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RANGE

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other
Comprehensive Income for the year ended

30 June 2017

2017 (USS)

Consolidated

2016 (USS)

Revenue from continving operations 8 8,435,309 7,062,226
Operating expenses (8,770,969) (7,266,830)
Royalties (2,494,497) (2,104,894)
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation (6,289,324) (5,490,676)
Cost of sales 4a (17,554,790) (14,862,400)
Gross loss (9.119,481) (7.800,174)
Other income and expenses from continuing operations

Otherincome 3 174,367 51,193
Finance costs 4b (3.806,226) (934,321)
General and administration expenses 4b (5.223,721) (3.,400,038)
Assets written-off 4c - (1,000,761)
Exploration expenditure and land fees 4d (1,152,854) (4,261,435)
Impairment of non-current assets 16 (28,985,014) (20,564,829)
Loss be.fore income tax expense from continuing (48,112,929) (37.910,365)
operations

Income tax expense 6 (4,999.950) (1,084,520)
Loss after income tax from continving operations (53,112,879) (38,994,885)
Loss from disconfinued operations, net of fax 5a (1,250,000) (4,880,000)
Loss for the year ai‘!ritzutable to equity holders of (54,362,879) (43,874,885)
Range Resources Limited

Other comprehensive income

Itfems that may be reclassified fo profit or loss

Exchor?ge differences on translation of foreign 26 2144373 160,799
operations

iOqi)?er comprehensive income for the year, net of 2,144,373 160,799
Total comprehensive loss attributable to equity (52,218,506) (43,714,086)

holders of Range Resources Limited

Loss per share from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company:

Basic loss per share (cents per share) 8a (0.68) (0.54)
Diluted loss per share (cents per share) 8b n/a n/a
Loss per share atiributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company:

Basic loss per share (cents per share) 8a (0.70) (0.60)
Diluted loss per share (cents per share) 8b n/a n/a

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at
30 June 2017

Annual Report 2017

Consolidated
Note

2017 (USS) 2016 (USS)
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9 17,254,360 13,001,252
Restricted deposits 10 - 8,000,000
Trade and other receivables 11 5,740,726 4,620,266
Other current assets 12 2,586,283 178,158
Assets classified as held for sale 13 - 1,250,000
Total current assets 25,581,369 27,049,676
Non-Current Assets
Trade and other receivables 11 6,866,394 -
Deferred tax asset 6 6,853,135 3,959,803
Available for sale financial assets 14 45,238 45,238
Goodwill 16 - 28,985,014
Property, plant and equipment 17 2,021,682 2,329,228
Exploration & evaluation expenditure 18 632,176 645,801
Producing assets 19 108,347,455 95,077,882
Total non-current assets 124,766,080 131,042,966
Total assets 150,347,449 158,092,642
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 1,613,499 12,244,873
Current tax liabilities 283,220 286,723
Option liability 21b 341,618 835,714
Provisions 22 784,316 740,268
Total current liabilities 3,022,653 14,107,578
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 51,390,088 23,764,005
Borrowings 21 21,071,631 -
Deferred tax liabilities 23 54,500,144 47,561,612
Employee service benefits 24 340,289 422,315
Total non-current liabilities 127,302,152 71,747,932
Total liabilities 130,324,805 85,855,510
Net assets 20,022,644 72,237,132
Equity
Conftributed equity 25 383,918,397 383,882,192
Reserves 26 26,339,311 24,227,125
Accumulated losses (390,235,064) (335,872,185)
Total equity 20,022,644 72,237,132

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with

the accompanying noftes.
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RANGE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for
the year ended 30 June 2017

Foreign

Contributed Accumulated

currency

Share-based

Option

. . payment premium Total equity
Note equity losses translation reserve reserve
reserve
(UsS) (UsS) (UsS) (UsS) (UsS) (USS)
Balance at 1 July 2015 363,205,277  (297,930,701) 3,459,939 14,231,578 12,057,363 95,023,456
ther comprehensive ) ) 160,799 ) . 160,799
income
Loss attributable to
members of the - (43,874,885) - - - (43,874,885)
company
Total comprehensive ~ (43,874,885) 160,799 - _ (43,714,086)
loss for the year
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Issue of share capital 25 20,676,915 - - 20,676,915
Expired opfions - - 5,933,401 - (5,933,401) -
Reclassified
Cost of share-based ) ) ) 250,847 250847
payments
Balance at 30 June
2016 383,882,192  (335,872,185) 3,620,738 8,549,024 12,057,363 72,237,132
Balance at 1 July 2014 383,882,192  (335,872,185) 3,620,738 8,549,024 12,057,363 72,237,132
Q’rher comprehensive ) 0,144,373 ) ) 2144373
income
Loss attributable to
members of the - (54,362,879) - - - (54,362,879)
company
deitell e el R - (54,362,879) 2144373 - - (52,218,506)
loss for the year
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Issue of share capital 25 36,205 - - - - 36,205
t of share-

Cost of share-based ) ) ) (32,187) ) (32,187)
payments
;g:‘;"ce at 30 June 383918397 (390.235064) 5765111 8,516,837 12,057,363 20,022,644

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with
the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year
ended 30 June 2017/

Consolidated

Note

2017 (USS) 2016 (USS)
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers 8,531,655 7,171,488
Payments to suppliers and employees (6,255,175) (10,790.,650)
Income taxes paid (958,253) (32,940)
Interest received 85,123 45,210
Interest & other finance costs 5b - (449,143)
Payments relating to held for sale asset - (130,000)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 30 1,403,350 (4,186,035)
Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for property, plant & equipment (4,363) (140,474)
Payment for producing assets - (260,888)
Proc.eeds from disposal of property, plant and 63,106 11,799
equipment
Transfer from/(to) restricted deposit 8,000,000 (8,000,000)
Payments for available for sale assets (6,830) -
Payments for loan to external parties (5,153,759) -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities 2,898,154 (8,389,563)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity (net of capital raising ) 22,338,344
costs)
Repayment of borrowings - (7.225,997)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities - 15,112,347
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,301,504 2,536,749
Net foreign exchange differences (48,396) (65,601)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial 13,001,252 10,530,104
year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 9 17,254,360 13,001,252

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been
prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting
Interpretations, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards
Board and the Corporations Act 2001. Range Resources Limited is a for-profit entity for the
purpose of preparing the financial statements.

The financial statements cover the Group consisting of Range Resources Limited and its
conftrolled entities. Financial information for Range Resources Limited as an individual entity is
disclosed in Note 33. Range Resources Limited is a listed public company, incorporated and
domiciled in Australia.

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by the Group in the
preparation of the financial statements. The accounting policies have been consistently
applied, unless otherwise stated. The financial report was authorised for issue by the Directors
on 29 September 2017.

Basis of preparation

Reporting basis and conventions

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on
historical costs modified by the revaluation of selected non-current assets, and financial
assets and financial liabilities for which the fair value basis of accounting has been applied.

Compliance with IFRS

The financial statements of Range Resources Limited also comply with Intfernational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 29 September 2017.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“Functional Currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in United States
Dollars (USD), which is Range Resources Limited's functional and presentation currency.

Going concern

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis, which
contemplates confinuity of normal business activities and the realisation of assets and
discharge of liabilities in the normal course of business.

As disclosed in the financial statements, the Group incurred losses of US$54,362,879 for the
year ending 30 June 2017 which includes significant non-cash items of US$35,274,338. The
Group also had net cash inflows from operating activities for the year totalling US$1,403,350.
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At the reporting date, Range had US$17,254,360 of unrestricted cash at bank. Range has net
assets of US$20,022,644. The Company intends to complete three acquisitions during 2017
which will utilise a significant proportion to the existing cash on hand. However, the cash on
hand and forecast net revenue from production (including the reduced drilling and oilfield
service costs following the acquisition of RRDSL) are more than sufficient to cover the Group's
cash requirements for the 12 months from date of sign off including the acquisition costs and
any net current liabilities due. The matters disclosed in Note 28, specifically concerning the
Colombian exploration licences, do not impact our going concern assessment as it is not
expected that any amounts would be payable.

The Company will continue to focus its capital allocation on assets which maximise
production and enhance cash generation and returns to shareholders.

Adoption of new and revised accounting standards

In the year ended 30 June 2017, the directors have reviewed all of the new and revised
Standards and Interpretations issued by the AASB that are relevant to the Company and
effective for the current annual reporting period.

As a result of this review, the directors have determined that there is no material impact of
the new and revised Standards and Interpretations on the Company and, therefore, no
material change is necessary to Group accounting policies.

(a) Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries
of Range Resources Limited (“Parent Enfity” or "Company”) as at 30 June 2017 and the
results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended. Range Resources Limited and its subsidiaries
together are referred to as the “"Group™.

Subsidiaries are all those entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group
has conftrol. The Group confrols an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its investment with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power to direct the activities of the entity.

Where controlled enfities have entered or left the Group during the year, their operating
results have been included/excluded from the date confrol was obtained or until the date
control ceased. A list of controlled entities is contained in Note 15 fo the financial statements.
All controlled entities have a June financial year-end.

All inter-company balances and fransactions between entities in the Group, including any
unrealised profits or losses have been eliminated on consolidation. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistencies with those policies
applied by the Group.

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control or
joint control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20-50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.
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(b) Income tax

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for
any non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or are substantively enacted by the reporting date within each jurisdiction.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of tfemporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability, excluding a business combination, where there is no effect on
accounting or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated af the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in profit or loss except
where it relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred
tax is adjusted directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax
profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and fax bases of investments in foreign operations where the company is
able to conftrol the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
itfems recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based
on the assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the
anficipation that the Group will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the
benefit to be realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

(c) Property, plant and equipment

Owned assets

Plant and equipment are measured on the historical cost basis less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of fixed assets constructed within the Group includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, borrowing costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed and variable overheads.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
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repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Oil and gas assets

These properties represents the accumulation of all exploration, evaluation and
development expenditure, pre-production development costs and ongoing costs of
continuing the develop reserves for production incurred by or on behalf of the entity in
relation to areas of interests.

Where further development expenditure is incurred in respect of a property after the
commencement of production, such expenditure is carried forward as part of the cost of
that property only when expected future economic benefits are to be received, otherwise
such expenditure is classified as part of the cost of production.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including capitalised lease assets is depreciated
on a straight-line basis over their useful lives to the Group commencing from the time the
asset is held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of
either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are:

Class of fixed Asset Depreciation Rate
Plant & equipment 11.25% - 33%
Production equipment 10 - 20%

Motor vehicles, furniture & fixtures 25 - 33%
Leasehold improvements 10 - 12.50%

The residual values of the assets and their useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if
appropriate at each reporting date.

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by the directors to ensure
it is not in excess of the recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is
assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flows which will be received from the
employment of the assets and subsequent disposal. The expected net cash flows have been
discounted to their present values in determining recoverable amounts.

The carrying amount of the asset is written down to its recoverable amount if its carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying
amount. These gains or losses are included in profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold,
amounts included in the revaluation reserve relating to that asset are fransferred o
accumulated losses.

(d) Exploration and evaluation expenditure and the recognition of assets

Generally, exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred is accumulated in respect of
each identfifiable area of interest. These costs are only carried forward to the extent that they
are expected to be recouped through the successful development of the area or where
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activities in the area have not yet reached a stage that permits reasonable assessment of
the existence of economically recoverable reserves.

Accumulated costs in relation to an abandoned area are written off in full against profit in
the year in which the decision to abandon the area is made.

A regular review is undertaken of each area of inferest to determine the appropriateness of
continuing to carry forward costs in relation to that area of interest.

The recoverability of the carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation assefts is
dependent on the successful development and commercial exploitation, or alternatively,
sale of the respective areas of interest.

The carrying values of expenditures carried forward are reviewed for impairment at each
reporting date when the facts, events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired.

Accumulated expenditures are written off to profit or loss fo the extent to which they are
considered to be impaired.

Range Resources Limited applies AASB é Exploration and Evaluation of Mineral Resources
which is equivalent to IFRS 6. The carrying value of exploration and evaluation expenditure is
historical cost less impairment.

Ongoing exploration costs incurred in respect of the Group's Trinidadian interests are
expensed as incurred. Initial acquisition costs to obtain the right to explore are capitalised.

(e) Producing assets

Upon the commencement of commercial production from each identifiable area of interest,
the exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred up to that point is impairment tested
and then reclassified to producing assefts.

When production commences, the accumulated costs for the relevant area of interest are
amortised on a "units of production" method which is based on the ratio of actual production
to remaining proved reserves (P1) as estimated by independent petroleum engineers over
the life of the area according to the rate of depletion of the economically recoverable
reserves.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount of the asset only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be reliably measured. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

The carrying amount of producing assets is reviewed annually by the directors to ensure it is
not in excess of the recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows of an asset are discounted to their present value using a
post-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the fime value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash flows that are
largely independent from other assets or groups of assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash generating unit fo which the asset belongs. For producing assets,
the estimated future cash flows for the value-in-use calculation are based on estimates, the
most significant of which are 2P hydrocarbon reserves, future production profiles, commodity
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prices, operating costs and any future development costs necessary to produce the
reserves. Under a fair value less costs to sell calculation, future cash flows are based on
estimates of 2P hydrocarbon reserves. Estimates of future commodity prices are based on the
Group's best estimate of future market prices with reference to external market analysts’
forecasts, current spot prices and forward curves. Future commodity prices are reviewed at
least annually.

The carrying amount of an asset is written down to its recoverable amount if its carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying
amount. These gains or losses are included in profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold,
amounts included in the revaluation reserve relating to that asset are transferred to
accumulated losses.

The Group records the present value of the estimated cost of legal and constructive
obligations to restore operating locations in the period in which the obligation arises. The
nafure of restoration activities includes the removal of facilities, abandonment of wells and
restoration of affected areas. A restoration provision is recognised and updated at different
stages of the development and construction of a facility and then reviewed on an annual
basis. When the liability is initially recorded, the estimated cost is capitalised by increasing the
carrying amount of the related exploration and evaluation/development assets.

Over time, the liability is increased for the change in the present value based on a post-tax
discount rate appropriate to the risk inherent in the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recorded as an accretion charge within finance costs. The carrying amount capitalised in ol
and gas properties is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset.

Costs incurred that relate to an existing condition caused by past operation and do not have
a future economic benefit are expensed.

) Financial instruments

The Group's financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, frade and other
receivables and available-for-sale financial assefs.

Recognition

Financial instruments are initially measured at cost on frade date, which includes fransaction
costs, when the related contractual rights or obligations exist. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these insfruments are measured as set out below.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans and receivables and
available-for-sale investments. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
investments were acquired. Management determines the classification of its investments at
initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market and are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method.
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Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include non-derivative financial assets designated in this
category not included in any of the other categories. Available-for-sale financial assets are
reflected af fair value. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are
taken directly to the available for sale investment revaluation reserve in equity. Investments
are designated as available-for-sale if they do not have fixed maturities and fixed
determinable payments and management intends to hold them for the medium to long
term.

Fair value

Fair value is determined based on current bid prices for all quoted investments. Valuation
techniques are applied to determine the fair value for all unlisted securities held at cost less
impairment, including recent arm'’s length transactions, reference to similar instruments and
option pricing models.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a foreign currency and
classified as available-for-sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the
security. The franslation differences related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised
in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in the available for
sale investment revaluation reserve in equity. Changes in the fair value of other monetary
and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in equity.

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of a
security below its cost is considered an indicator that the securities are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss (measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss) is removed from equity and
included in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are not
reversed through profit or loss.

Recognition and de-recognition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on frade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs. Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and reward of ownership.

When the securities classified as available-for-sale are sold, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in profit or loss as gains and losses for
investment securities.
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(9) Foreign currency transactions and balances

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each entity within the Group is determined using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which that entity operates. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in United States dollars which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transaction and balances

Foreign currency fransactions are translated info the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are
franslated at the year-end exchange rate. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost
continue to be carried at the exchange rate af the date of the fransaction. Non-monetary
items measured aft fair value are reported af the exchange rate at the date when fair values
were determined.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items are recognised
directly in equity to the extent that the gain or loss is directly recognised in equity; otherwise
the exchange difference is recognised in profit or loss.

(h) Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make good obligations are recognised
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A
provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the
expendifure required to seftle the present obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate
used to determine the present value reflects the current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risk specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other
short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within short-term
borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of financial position.
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) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Trade
receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days.

Collectability of frade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known
fo be uncollectible are written off by reducing the carrying amount directly. An allowance
account (provision for impairment of trade receivables) is used when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due, according to the
original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade
receivable is impaired. The amount of impairment allowance is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the original effective interest rate. Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not
discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The amount of impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss within other expenses. When a
tfrade receivable, for which an impairment allowance had been recognised, becomes
uncollectible in a subsequent period, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against other expenses
in profit or loss.

(k) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts
disclosed as revenue are net of returns, frade allowances, rebates and amounts collected
on behalf of third parties. Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group.

Revenue from the sale of oil and gas and related products is recognised when the Group
has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership and the amounts
can be measured reliably. In the case of aoil, this usually occurs at the time of lifting.

Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking info account the inferest
rates applicable to the financial assefts.

) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the
amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office. In these
circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part
of an item of the expense. Receivables and payables in the statement of financial position
are shown inclusive of GST.

Cash flows are presented in the consolidated statement of cash flows on a gross basis,
excepft for the GST component of investing and financing activities, which are disclosed as
operating cash flows.

(m) Comparative figures

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to
conform to changes in presentation for the current financial year.
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(n) Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and
measurement for disclosure purposes.

The fair value of financial instruments tfraded in active markets (such as publicly traded
derivatives, and frading and available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted market prices
atf the reporting date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques. The Group uses a
variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at
each reporting date.

The carrying value less impairment provision of frade receivables and payables are assumed
to approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature. The fair value of financial
liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
follows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

(o) Investments in associates

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting in the
consolidated financial statements.

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate is carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of
net assets of the associate.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to
recognise any additional impairment loss with respect to the Group’s net investment in the
associate.

The Group's share of the associate post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's
share of losses in the associate equals or exceeds its inferest in the associate, including any
unsecured long-term receivables and loans, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The reporting dates of the associate and the Group are identical and the associate’s
accounting policies conform to those used by the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances.

(p) Prepayments for investments

Prepayments for acquisitions of financial assets are recorded at the fair value of
consideratfion to acquire the assets.

On satisfaction of all terms of the acquisition contract have been saftisfied the prepayment is
fransferred and accounted for as an investment.
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(9) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the
end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid
within 30 days of recognition unless alternative terms are agreed. The Group’s most material
balance is with LandOcean which has specific payment terms of 3 years.

(r) Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised
and no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the financial year but
not distributed at reporting date.

(s) Contributed equity

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or optfions are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

1) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company, excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares,
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take info account the afterincome tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares.

(v) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting to the
chief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the managing director.

(v) Impairment of assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which they are separately identifiable
cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assetfs or groups of
assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period.
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(w) Intangible assets (goodwill)

Goodwill is measured at cost less any impairment write downs. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and
losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwillis allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made fo those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose, identified
according to operating segments (note 29).

(x) Share-based payments

The fair value of options granted is recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase
in equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of
the options granted, which includes any market performance conditions and the impact of
any non-vesting conditions but excludes the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditfions.

(y) Employee benefits

Wages and salaries and annual leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits are recognised in current
liabilities in respect of employees’ services up to the reporting date and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Long service benefit

The liability for long service benefit is recognised in current and non-current liabilities,
depending on the unconditional right to defer settflement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting date. The liability is measured as the present value of expected future
payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date
using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and
salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service.

(z) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset.

A distinction is made between finance leases, which effectively transfer from the lessor to the
lessee substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of leased assets, and
operating leases, under which the lessor effectively retains substantially all such risks and
benefits.

Finance leases are capitalised. A lease asset and liability are established at the fair value of
the leased assets, or if lower, the present value of minimum lease payments. Lease
payments are allocated between the principal component of the lease liability and the
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finance costs, so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability.

Leased assets acquired under a finance lease are depreciated over the asset’s useful life or
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty
that the company will obtain ownership af the end of the lease term.

Operating lease payments, net of any incentfives received from the lessor, are charged o
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

(aa) Borrowings

Loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received,
net of fransaction costs. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Where there is an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting date, the loans or borrowings are classified as non-current.

(bb) Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group comprise convertible notes that can
be converted to ordinary shares at the option of the holder, when the number of shares to
be issued is fixed.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is recognised initially at the fair
value of a similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity
component is recognised initially at the difference between the fair value of the compound
financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component. Any directly
aftributable fransaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument
is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity component of
a compound financial instrument is not re-measured subsequent fo initial recognition.

Interest related to the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss. On conversion the
financial liability is reclassified to equity and no gain or loss is recognised.

Convertible notes that can be converted to share capital at the option of the holder and
where the number of shares is variable, contains an embedded derivative liability. The
embedded derivative liability is calculated (at fair value) first and the residual value is
assigned o the debt host confract. The embedded derivative is subsequently measured at
fair values and movements are reflected in the profit or loss.

Certain convertible notes issued by the Group which include embedded derivatives (option
to convert to variable number of shares in the Group are recognised as financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss. On initial recognition, the fair value of the convertible note
will equate to the proceeds received and subsequently the liability is measured at fair value
at each reporting period until seftlement. The fair value movements are recognised on the
profit or loss as finance costs.
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Finance costs

Finance costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the asset. All other
finance costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

(cc) Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale fransaction rather than through continuing use. They are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. For non-
current assets to be classified as held for sale, they must be available forimmediate sale in
their present condition and their sale must be highly probable.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write down of the non-current
assets to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair
value less costs to sell of a non-current asset, but not in excess of any cumulative impairment
loss previously recognised.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale.
Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of assets held for sale contfinue to be
recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are presented separately on the face of the
consolidated statement of financial position, in current assets. The liabilities of disposal
groups classified as held for sale are presented separately on the face of the statement of
financial position, in current liabilities.

(dd) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's business, the operations and cash
flows of which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which:

represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations

is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or
geographical are of operations

is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to re-sale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs atf the earlier of disposal or when the
operation meets the criteria to be classified as held-for-sale.

When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is re-presented as if the
operation had been discontinued from the start of the comparative year.

(dd) Inventories

Inventories include consumable supplies and maintenance spares and are valued at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis and
invludes direct costs and an appropriate portion of fixed and variable production overheads
where applicable. Inventories deterined to be obsolete or damaged are written down to net
realisable value, being the estimated selling price less selling costs.
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Note 2: Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The directors evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated info the financial statements
based on historical knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a
reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current frends and economic
data, obtained both externally and within the Group. Areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where estimations and assumptions are significant to the
financial statements are disclosed here.

Producing asset expenditure

The classification of exploration and evaluation expenditure o producing assets is based on
the time of first commercial production. Producing asset expenditure for each area of
interest is carried forward as an asset provided certain conditions listed in Note 1(e) are met
and depreciated on a unit of production basis on P1 reserves. P1 reserves have been
determined by an independent expert.

Producing assets are assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances suggest that
the carrying amount of a production asset may exceed ifs recoverable amount. These
timings, calculations and reviews require the use of assumptions and judgement. The related
carrying amounts are disclosed in Note 19.

Reserves and resources

Estimates of reserves requires judgement to assess the size and quality of reservoirs and their
anticipated recoveries. Estimates of reserves are used to calculate depreciation, depletion
and amortisation charges.

Impairment of goodwill and producing assets

The Group tests whether goodwill or the producing assets has suffered any impairment in
accordance with the accounting policies stated in notes 1(e) and 1(w). The recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit fo which the assets belong is estimated based on the
present value of future cash flows.

The expected future cash flow estimation is always based on a number of factors, variables
and assumptions, the most important of which are estimates of reserves, future production
profiles, commodity prices and costs. In most cases, the present value of future cash flows is
most sensitive fo estimates of future oil price and discount rates. A change in the modelled
assumptions in isolation could materially change the recoverable amount. Refer to note 16
for details of these key assumptions.

Deferred tax liability

Upon acquisition of SOCA Petroleum Ltd, in accordance with the requirement of AASB 112
Income Taxes, a deferred tax liability of US$46,979,878 was recognised in relation to the
difference between the carrying amount for accounting purposes of deferred development
assets and their actual cost base for fax purposes.

The carrying value of this deferred tax liability has increased to US$55,507,677 at 30 June 2017.
In the event that the manner by which the carrying value of these assets is recovered differs
from that which is assumed for the purpose of this estimation, the associated tax charges
may be significantly less than this amount.
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Share based payments transactions

RANGE

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled share-based payment fransactions with
employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair
value is determined using a Black-Scholes model. The accounting estimates and assumptions
relating to equity-settled share-based payments would have no impact on the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next annual reporting period but may impact

expenses and derivative liability.

Contingent liabilities

The Directors are of the opinion that no provision is required to be raised in respect to any of
th matters disclosed in Note 28 as the likely outcome of any outflow is considered to be

remofte.

Note 3: Revenue

From continuing operations
Revenue from sale of oil

Other income
Interest income

Other income
Total other income

Note 4: Expenses

Note

Note

Consolidated

2017 (USS$)
8,435,309

78,021
96,346
174,367

Consolidated

2017 (USS)

Loss before income tax includes the following specific expenses:

a: Cost of sales
Costs of production

Royalties

Staff costs

Oil and gas properties depreciation,
depletion and amortisation

Total cost of sales

b: Finance costs

Interest and premium paid on financial
liabilities at fair value

Fair value movement of option liability
Fair value movement of derivative liability
Foreign exchange loss

Interest expense

Interest on convertible note

Other finance expenses

Other finance income

Total finance costs
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6,613,133
2,494,497
2,157,836

6,289,324

17,554,790

(494,096)
(786,021)
1,362,426
2,119,996
1,871,318
(267,397)
3,806,226

2016 (USS$)
7,062,226

45,210
5,983
51,193

2016 (US$)

4,944,478
2,104,894
2,322,352

5,490,676

14,862,400

370,893
(1,643,570)

1,507,714
667,839

31,355

934,231
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Note Consolidated
2017 (USS 2016 (USS
General and administration expenses
Directors’ and officers’ fees and benefits 1,097,029 601,413
Share based payments — employee, director

and consultant options (32.187) 250849
Other expenses 4,158,879 2,547,776
Total general and administration expenses 5,223,721 3,400,038
c: Asset values written down

Impairment of current receivables - 600,000
Impairment of investment in available for

sale financial assets ) 400.762
Total assets written down - 1,000,762
d: Exploration expenditure

Puntland - 1.812
Trinidad (i) 822,383 4,123,048
Other 330,471 136,575
Total exploration expenditure 1,152,854 4,261,435

(i) Amounts expensed in the year in Trinidad relate to land fees in relation to Guayaguayare and St
Mary's for which the company policy is to expense.

Note 5: Discontinued operations

During the current year the Group fully wrote down the asset held-for-sale which relates to
45% interest in the unlisted company Strait Oil & Gas Limited ("Strait") due to uncertainty over
its recoverability.

Consolidated

NOIE 2017 (USS) 2016 (USS)
a: Results of discontinued operations
Revenue - -
Cost of sales - i}
Asset write off (1,250,000) (4,750,000)
Other expenses - (130,000)
Results from operating activities (1,250,000) (4,880,000)
Income tax (expense)/benefit - -
Results from operating activities, after tax (1,250,000) (4,880,000)
Loss on sale of subsidiary asset - -
Loss from discontinued operations (1,250,000) (4,880,000)

The loss from the discontinued operations of US$1,250,000 (2016: US$4,880,000) is attributable
entirely to the owners of the Company.

b: Cash flows gained from / (used in) discontinued operations
Net cash used in operating activities - (130,000)

Net cash flow for the year - (130,000)
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Note é: Income tax expense

[\ [o] [}

a: Income tax expense

Current tax

Deferred tax

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods

Income tax expense/(benefit) is attributable to:
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations

Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations
Aggregate income tax expense

Consolidated
2017 (USS)

4,974,750
25,200
4,999,950

4,999,950

4,999,950

RANGE

2016 (USS$)

1,707,852
13,668
1,084,520

1,084,520

1,084,520

b: The prime facie tax on profit from ordinary activities before income tax is reconciled to

the income tax as follows:

Loss from continuing operations before
income tax

Loss from discontinuing operations before
income tax

Prime facie tax payable on profit from
ordinary activities before income tax at 30%
(2016: 30%) Group

Add tax effect of:
Other taxes

Expenses not deductible for fax

Income not assessable for fax

Tax losses not brought to account

Benefit of tax losses not previously
recognised

Deferred tax assets not brought to account
Differences in tax rates

Unrecognised deferred tax asset
Capital losses

Revenue losses

Other

Offset of deferred tax liabilites
Net Deferred Tax Assets not brought 1o
account

c: Recognised deferred tax assets
Temporary differences

Recognised deferred tax liabilities
Accelerated depreciation

DTL arising on business combination
Net deferred tax liabilities
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(48,112,929)

(1,250,000)

(49,362,929)
(14,433,879)
(14,433,879)

25,200
23,850,271
(8,092,768)
11,471,474

4,179,397
(11,999,745)
4,999,950

443,654
10,470,664
1,400,991

12,315,309
(3,147,098)

9,168,211

6,853,135
6,853,135

(26,167,218)
(28,332,926)
(54,500,144)

(37,910,365)

(4,880,000)

(42,790,365)
(12,837,110)
(12,837,110)

13,668

18,518,390
(6,010,578)
10,650,658

(242,740)
(9,007,770)
1,084,520

985,528
9,462,107
4,942,534
15,390,169
(2,332,565)

13,057,604

3,959,803
3,959.803

(17.515,407)

(30,046,205)
(47,561,612)
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RANGE

Deferred tax assets not brought to account, the benefits of which will only be realised if the

conditfions for deductibility set out in Note 1(b) occur.

Note 7: Auditor's remuneration
Consolidated

Nole 2017 (USS)

Remuneration of the auditor of the Parent Entity for:
Auditing or reviewing the financial report by 70.000

BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd '
Non-audit services provided by a related
entity of BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd in respect 17,828
to Parent Entity’s tax compliance
Total remuneration for the Parent Entity 87,828
Remuneration of the auditors of the subsidiaries
Auditing or reviewing the financial report by
BDO UK 3,327
Auditing or reviewing the financial report by
BDO Barbados 10,331
Auditing or reviewing the financial report by
BDO Trinidad 29.251
Total remuneration for the subsidiaries 44,909

Note 8: Earnings per share

Note Consolidated

2017 (USS)
a: Basic loss per share
Loss) per share from continuing operations
afttributable to the ordinary equity holders of (0.68)
the company
(Loss) per share attributable to the ordinary 0.70)

equity holders of the company

b: Diluted loss per share

(Loss) per share from continuing operations
aftributable to the ordinary equity holders of n/a
the company

Loss) per share attributable to the ordinary

equity holders of the company

c: Reconciliation of loss used in calculating earnings per share
Basic/ Diluted loss per share

Loss from continuing operations attributable

n/a

to the ordinary equity holders of the (53,112,879)
company
Loss attributable to the ordinary equity

(54,362,879)

holders of the company
d: Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares used as the denominatorin
calculating basic EPS

7,595,830,782

Range Resources Ltd and Controlled Enfities
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2016 (USS$)

84,726

34,149

118,875

3,707
17,743

25,188
46,638

2016 (USS$)

(0.54)

(0.60)

n/a

n/a

(38,994,885)

(43,874,885)

7,266,100,594
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Effect of dilutive securities: Options on issue at reporting date could potentially dilute
earnings per share in the future. The effect in the current year is to reduce the loss per share
hence they are considered anti-dilutive. Accordingly the diluted loss per share has not been
disclosed.

Note 9: Cash and cash equivalents
Consolidated

Noie 2017 (USS) 2016 (USS)

Cash at bank and on hand 17,254,360 13,001,252

Risk exposure

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign exchange risk and price risk is
provided in Note 34.

Note 10: Restricted cash
Consolidated

Noie 2017 (USS) 2016 (USS)
Cash held in secured account - 8,000,000
Total - 8,000,000

Restricted cash was held in a deposit account that was secured against a bank guarantee
given in respect of the Group's work commitments on the St Mary’s block in Trinidad. The
guarantee ended in October 2016 and these funds were released.

Note 11: Trade and other receivables

Consolidated

2017 (USS) 2016 (USS)
Current
Trade receivables (i) 658,338 375,348
Taxes receivable 5,082,388 3,960,541
Less provision for impairment - (3,089,443)
Total trade and other receivables 5,740,726 4,620,266

Fair value approximates the carrying value of frade and other receivables at 30 June 2017
and 30 June 2016.

(i) Trade receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days. They are presented as
current assets unless collection is not expected for more than 12 months after the reporting
date. Trade receivables are neither past due nor impaired.

Consolidated

Note o7 uss)  2016(uss) |
Non-current
Other receivables (i) 6,886,394 -
Total trade and other receivables 6,886,394 -

(i) Other receivables are comprised primarily of cash advances to Range Resources Dirilling
Services Lid.

Range Resources Ltd and Controlled Enfities
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Fair value approximates the carrying value of trade and other receivables at 30 June 2017
and 30 June 2016.

Risk exposure

Information about the Group's exposure to credit risk, foreign exchange risk and price risk is
provided in Note 34.

Note 12: Other current assets
Consolidated

Nole 2017 (USS) 2016 (USS)
Current
Prepayments 208,946 178,158
Inventory 2,353,143 -
Other assets 24,194 ,
Total other current assets 2,586,283 178,158

Note 13: Assets held for sale

Consolidated
Note

2017 (USS$) 2016 (USS$)

Assets classified as held for sale are as follows:
Strait Oil & Gas Limited — 45% equity interest - 1,250,000

Total - 1,250,000

Movements in assets classified as held for sale are as follows:

Opening net book amount 1,250,000 6,000,000
Transfer from investment in associate - -

Sold in period - -
Impoirmem‘ loss relating to discontinued (1,250,000) (4,750,00)
operations

Closing net book amount - 1,250,000

Impairment losses of US$1,250,000 for write-downs of the disposal group to the lower of its
carrying amount and its recoverable amount have been included in ‘loss on discontinued
operations’ (see note 5 and note 36). The impairment losses have been applied to reduce
the carrying amount of the assets held-for-sale within the disposal group. There is no
cumulative income or expenses included in other comprehensive income relating to the
disposal group.
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Note 14: Financial assets available for sale

Consolidated

Noie 2017 (US$) 2016 (USS)
Interest in other corporations 45,238 45,238
Total available-for-sale financial assets 45,238 45,238
Movement in financial assets available-for-sale
Opening balance 45,238 446,000
Impairment recognised in profit or loss - (400,762)
Closing Balance 45,238 45,238

Available-for-sale financial assets comprise investments in the ordinary share capital of
various entities. There are no fixed returns or fixed maturity date attached to these
investments.

Risk exposure

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign exchange risk and price risk is
provided in Note 34.

Note 15: Controlled Entities

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the
following subsidiaries in accordance with accounting policy described in Note 1(a).

Country of Percentage Owned (%)

Controlled Entities Consolidated .
Incorporation 30 June 2017 30 June 2014

Subsidiaries of Range Resources Limited:

Range Resources (Barbados) Limited Barbados 100 100
SOCA Petroleum Limited Barbados 100 100
West Indies Exploration Company Limited Trinidad 100 100
Range Resources Trinidad Limited Trinidad 100 100

Range Resources (Barbados) GY Limited Barbados 100 100
Range Resources GY Shallow Limited Trinidad 100 100
Range Resources GY Deep Limited Trinidad 100 100

Range Resources HK Limited Hong Kong 100 100

Range Resources Upstream Services Limited U‘n|’red 100 100

Kingdom
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Note 16: Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in note 1(v). Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is
included in infangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is fested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired,
and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

As at 1 July 2016, the Group reported goodwill of US$28,985,014, which was derived from the
acquisition of SOCA Pefroleum Limited through the parent’s subsidiary Range Resources
(Barbados) Ltd.

Consolidated
Note

2017 (USS) 2016 (US$)
At 1 July 2016
Cost 28,985,014 46,198,974
Impairment write down (28,985,014) (17,213,960)
Net book amount - 28,985,014
Year ended 30 June 2017
Opening net book amount 28,985,014 46,198,974
Addifions-acquisition - -
Impairment charge (28,985,014) (17,213,960)
Closing net book amount - 28,985,014
(a) Impairment tests for goodwill

During the year ending 30 June 2017, the Group recorded an impairment of US$28,985,014
with respect to goodwill. The impairment principally arose due to a combination of reduced
overall forecast production volumes, deferred timing for commencement of waterflood
projects and lower commodity pricing assumptions.

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes to a single cash-generating
unit (CGU), identified according to operating segments, being Trinidad.

Estimates of the recoverable amount is based on an asset’s fair value less costs to sell using a
discounted cash flow method and is most sensitive to the following key assumptions:

Obtaining all required approvals and permissions to undertake waterflood development;
Obtaining lease extensions until 2031;

P1 and P2 Recoverable reserves;

Commodity price of between US$47 and US$84 per barrel dependent on the year;

Operating costs at 8%-39% of revenue, depending on oil price and production at that
fime;
Post-tax discount rate of 10.0%.

Economical recoverable reserves represent Management’s expectations at the time of
complefing the impairment festing and based on the reserves statements and exploration
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and evaluation work undertaken by appropriately qualified persons. A summary of the
Company’s Trinidad reserves and resources are published on the Group's website.

The commodity price for oil was based on mean WTI forecast oil price data from a variety of
different analysts and other sources. Estimates (calendar years) are US$47/bbl in 2017,
US$52/bbl in 2018, US$54/bblin 2019, US$58/bbl in 2020, US$61/bblin 2021, US$66/bbl in 2022
and then escalating at 2% per annum for the remainder of the project.

Operating cost assumptions were based on FY18 budgets, actual costs incurred in FY17 and
estimates of additional operating costs for waterflood activities received from Range
Resources Drilling Services Limited.

An adverse 20% change to oil prices, production, operating costs and the discount rate
would result in additional impairments of US$9.0million, US$17.6million, US$4.7million and
US$8.0million respectively to the Trinidad CGU, which includes goodwill, property, plant and
equipment, producing assets and deferred tax liabilities. Any impairment charge in excess of
the goodwill value would be applied against producing assets.
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Note 17: Property, Plant & Equipment

Motor vehicle,
furniture,
fixtures &
fittings

Us$ Us$ us$ UsS$ Us$

Year ended 30 June 2016
Opening net book

Production
equipment

Gathering
station and
field office

Leaseh